RISK DISCLAIMER: EMPLOYEE(S) AND PROSPECTIVE EMPLOYEE(S) ARE ADVISED IN THEIR OWN INTEREST TO CAREFULLY READ THE CONTENTS OF THIS OFFERING DOCUMENT IN PARTICULAR THE RISK FACTORS MENTIONED IN CLAUSE 7.10 AND WARNINGS IN CLAUSE 11.6 BEFORE MAKING ANY INVESTMENT DECISION.

# **OFFERING DOCUMENT OF**

# ABL – GOKP PENSION FUND (ABL-GOKPPF)

An Open Ended Voluntary Pension Scheme, being a Specialized Trust as defined under Section 3 (t) of the Punjab Trusts Act, 2020, as amended vide Punjab Trusts (Amendment) Act, 2022

### Between

ABL ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED

**The Pension Fund Manager** 

And

CENTRAL DEPOSITORY COMPANY OF PAKISTAN LIMITED

**The Trustee** 

# Contents

1.	INTRODUCTION TO ABL-GOKP PENSION FUND	5
1.1	STRUCTURE OF PENSION FUND	5
1.2	SALIENT FEATURES OF PENSION FUND	6
2.	REGULATORY APPROVALS AND CONSENT	8
2.1	REGISTRATION OF THE PENSION FUND MANAGER	8
2.2	AUTHORIZATION OF THE PENSION FUND	g
2.3	APPOINTMENT OF THE TRUSTEE AND REMUNERATION	9
2.4	REGISTRATION OF THE TRUST DEED	9
2.5	APPROVAL OF THE OFFERING DOCUMENT	g
3.	CONSTITUTION OF THE PENSION FUND	10
3.1	CONSTITUTION OF ABL-GOKP PENSION FUND	10
3.2	TRUST DEED (THE "DEED")	10
3.3	MODIFICATION OF THE CONSTITUTIVE DOCUMENTS	10
3.4	SEED CAPITAL PROVIDED OR ARRANGED BY THE PENSION FUND MANAGER	11
3.5	TYPE / FEATURE OF UNITS OF THE SUB-FUNDS	11
4.	OPERATORS AND PRINCIPALS	12
4.1	THE EMPLOYER	12
4.2	THE PENSION FUND MANAGER	12
4.3	BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE PENSION FUND MANAGER	13
4.4.	ROLE OF THE FUND MANAGER OF THE PENSION FUND MANAGER	31
4.5.	OBLIGATIONS OF THE PENSION FUND MANAGER	31
4.6.	RESTRICTIONS FOR PENSION FUND MANAGER	33
4.7		
. RET	TIREMENT OR REMOVAL OF THE PENSION FUND MANAGER	33
4.8.	OBLIGATIONS OF TRUSTEE OF PENSION FUND	35
4.9.	RETIREMENT OR CHANGE OF TRUSTEE	37
4.10	). TRANSFER AGENT / REGISTRAR	38
4.11	. AUDITOR	38
4.12	LEGAL ADVISOR	39
IJAZ	AHMED IJAZ AHMED & ASSOCIATES	39
4.13	BANKERS	39
4.14	BANK ACCOUNTS	39
4.15	INVESTMENT FACILITATORS	40
5.	CHARACTERISTICS OF THE PENSION FUND	40
5.1	ELIGIBILITY	40
5.2	PROCEDURE FOR OPENING INDIVIDUAL PENSION ACCOUNTS	40
5.3	CONTRIBUTION PROCEDURES	41
5 4	INDIVIDUAL PENSION ACCOUNTS	41

5.5	CHANGE OF THE PENSION FUND MANAGER/ PENSION FUND	42
5.6	REGISTER OF EMPLOYEES	43
5.7	DATE OF RETIREMENT	44
5.8	BENEFITS ON RETIREMENT	45
5.9	WITHDRAWAL OF FUNDS BEFORE RETIREMENT	46
5.10	BENEFITS ON DEATH BEFORE RETIREMENT	47
5.11	INSTRUCTIONS FROM EMPLOYEE(S)	48
5.12	ALLOCATION SCHEME	48
5.13	ALLOCATION AMONG THE SUB-FUNDS	50
5.14	ALLOCATION POLICY	50
5.15	THE METHOD OF DETERMINING NET ASSETS VALUE OF THE PENSION FUND	51
5.16	FREQUENCY OF VALUATIONS OF THE NET ASSETS VALUE AND DEALINGS ETC.;	51
5.17	UNIT PRICING AND THE CIRCUMSTANCES UNDER WHICH IT CAN CHANGE	51
5.18	THE MODE OF ANNOUNCEMENT OF NET ASSET VALUE AND UNIT PRICE	51
5.19	PAYMENT OF PROCEEDS ON WITHDRAWALS AND TRANSFERS	52
5.20	WITHHOLDING TAX	53
5.21	DEALING, SUSPENSION, AND DEFERRAL OF DEALING	53
5.22	QUEUE SYSTEM	55
5.23	DE-AUTHORIZATION AND WINDING UP OF THE PENSION FUND	55
5.24	FEATURES OF INSURANCE IN THE PENSION FUND	56
6. FI	EES, CHARGES AND EXPENSES	56
6.1.	FRONT END FEE	56
6.2.	REMUNERATION OF PENSION FUND MANAGER	56
6.3.	REMUNERATION OF THE TRUSTEE	57
6.4.	FORMATION COST	57
6.5.	OTHER EXPENSES	57
6.6.	FEES, CHARGES, COSTS, ETC. TO BE CHARGED TO THE SUB-FUNDS	58
7. IN	IVESTMENT POLICY, RESTRICTIONS, RISK DISCLOSURE AND DISCLAIMER	58
7.1.	OBJECTIVE OF THE ABL-GOKP PENSION FUND	58
7.2.	INVESTMENT POLICY OF THE PENSION FUND	59
7.3.	INVESTMENT OBJECTIVE AND INVESTMENT POLICY OF THE ABL-GOKPPF - EQUITY SUB FUND	59
7.4.	INVESTMENT OBJECTIVE AND INVESTMENT POLICY OF THE ABL-GOKPPF - DEBT SUB FUND	60
7.5. FUND	INVESTMENT OBJECTIVE AND INVESTMENT POLICY OF THE ABL-GOKPPF - MONEY MARKET SUB 61	
7.6.	INVESTMENT OBJECTIVE AND INVESTMENT POLICY OF THE ABL-GOKPPF - EQUITY INDEX SUB FUI 62	ΝD
7.7	INVESTMENT RESTRICTIONS	62
7.8	BORROWING / FINANCING RESTRICTION	63
7.9	EMPLOYEES RIGHTS IN TERMS OF INVESTMENT CHOICE	64
7.10	RISK DISCLOSURE	64

7.11	OTHER RISKS INVOLVED:
7.12	DISCLAIMER
8	SAFEGUARD OF MONEY
9	DISTRIBUTION RESTRICTION POLICY
10	TAXATION
11.1	TAX CREDIT FOR CONTRIBUTIONS TO THE PENSION FUND
11.2	TAX EXEMPTIONS
11.3	WITHHOLDING TAX
11.4	ZAKAT
11.5	DISCLAIMER
11.6	WARNINGS
12	REPORTS AND ACCOUNTS
12.1	FUND ACCOUNTS
12.2	ANNUAL ACCOUNTING PERIOD
12.3	PERIODIC REPORTS TO BE SENT TO EMPLOYEES
12.4	PERIODIC REPORTS TO BE SENT TO COMMISSION
13	SERVICE TO EMPLOYEE(S)
13.1	AVAILABILITY OF FORMS
13.2	REGISTER OF EMPLOYEES
13.3	STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS
14	COMPLAINTS
14.1	PROCEDURE FOR LODGING A COMPLAINT WITH THE FEDERAL INSURANCE OMBUDSMAN 69
15	CONTACT DETAILS OF OFFICE OF FEDERAL INSURANCE OMBUDSMAN
16	TRANSACTIONS WITH CONNECTED PERSONS
17	ARBITRATION IN CASE OF DISPUTES BETWEEN THE PENSION FUND MANAGER AND THE TRUSTEE 71
18	DISPUTES BETWEEN THE EMPLOYEES AND THE PENSION FUND MANAGER
19	GENERAL INFORMATION
20	STATEMENT OF RESPONSIBILITY
21	DEFINITIONS
22	INTERPRETATION
23	HEADINGS

#### OFFERING DOCUMENT OF

### **ABL-GOKP PENSION FUND**

A Voluntary Pension Scheme

#### **MANAGED BY**

#### ABL ASSET MANAGEMENT COMPANY LIMITED

The Pension Fund Manager is a Non-Banking Finance Company licensed by the Commission under the Non-Banking Finance Companies (Establishment and Regulation) Rules, 2003 and Non-Banking Finance Companies and Notified Entities Regulations 2008 ("Regulations") **through** license No. **SECP/LRD/LD/1/AMC/ABL-AML/2022-53** dated **December 9, 2022** to carry out Asset Management Services **and is** registered with the Commission under the Voluntary Pension System Rules, 2005 through Certificate of Registration No. **No. 08/SEC/PW/ABLAMC** dated **September 23, 2013** as a Pension Fund Manager and is a designated fund manager appointed by the Government of Khyber Pakhtunkhwa (the "KPK Government") through the Secretary to the Government Finance Department through an Agreement dated December 22, 2022 pursuant to Khyber Pakhtunkhwa Contributory Provident Fund Rules, 2022 (the "KPK Rules" as amended from time to time);

**Date of Publication of Offering Document Dated:** 

January 01, 2024

#### 1. INTRODUCTION TO ABL-GOKP PENSION FUND

**ABL-GOKP PENSION FUND** is established in Pakistan as a Voluntary Pension Fund through and on the basis of a Trust Deed, dated August 03, 2023 entered into and between ABL Asset Management Company Limited in its capacity as the Pension Fund Manager and Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited in its capacity as the Trustee and authorized under the Voluntary Pension System (VPS) Rules, 2005.

The Pension Fund shall consist of four (4) Sub-Funds to be called:

- I. ABL-GOKPPF Equity Sub Fund (the Equity Sub Fund);
- II. ABL-GOKPPF Equity Index Sub Fund (the Equity Index Sub Fund)
- III. ABL-GOKPPF Debt Sub Fund (the Debt Sub Fund); and
- IV. ABL-GOKPPF Money Market Sub Fund (the Money Market Sub Fund)

After successfully managing the above-mentioned Sub-Funds, the Pension Fund Manager may, with prior written consent of the Employer after amendments in KPK Rules, and subject to) the approval of the Commission, launch other Sub-Funds through a Supplementary Offering Document for investments in other asset classes (for avoidance of doubt, additional Sub-Funds may include combinations of new and existing classes of assets. Thereafter, any reference to the Sub-Funds in the Trust Deed or the Offering Document shall be construed to include any such new Sub-Fund launched at a later date..

#### 1.1 Structure of Pension Fund

The Pension Fund shall be in the form of a trust being made up of Equity Sub Fund, a Debt Sub-Fund Money Market Sub-Fund, Equity Index Sub Fund and such other Sub-Funds as may be allowed by the Commission. The Pension Fund shall have different Allocation Schemes as decided by the Employer and duly allowed by the Commission from time to time. Details of Allocation Schemes currently being offered by the Pension Fund Manager are given in this Offering Document. When the Additional Allocation Schemes or Sub-Funds shall launched, the Pension Fund Manager shall announce the same by Supplementary Offering Document. The Pension Fund established is **perpetual** in life.

# 1.2 Salient Features of Pension Fund

Fund Name	ABL-GOKP PENSION FUND			
Fund Structure	Unit Trust Scheme consisting of Sub-Funds under the VPS Rules 2005			
Sub-Funds	ABL-GOKP PENSION FUND will consist of four Sub Funds, to be called ABL-GOKP - Equity Sub Fund (the Equity Sub Fund); ABL-GOKP - Debt Sub Fund (the Debt Sub Fund); ABL-GOKP - Money Market Sub Fund (the Money Market Sub Fund); and ABL-GOKP - Equity Index Sub Fund (the Equity Index Sub Fund)			
Fund Objective	To provide a secure source of retirement savings and regular income after retirement to the Employee(s)			
Eligibility	All Employees of KPK Government appointed/recruited under the Khyber Pakhtunkhwa Civil Servants (Amendment) Act.2022 or an Employee of the KPK Government, regularized as civil servant through any legal instrument, issued after coming into force of the Khyber Pakhtunkhwa Civil Servants (Amendment) Act, 2022 irrespective of the effective date of regularization, shall be eligible to contribute to the Pension Fund.			
Minimum Contribution	The minimum amount of Contribution to open an account is Rs. 1,000/- and the minimum amount of contribution to an existing account is Rs. 1,000/- per transaction or such other amount as may be prescribed by the Employer.			
Contribution Frequency	Eligible persons or the Employer on their behalf are allowed to contribute in one lump sum or in instalments.			
Contribution Mechanism	<ul> <li>Employee(s) or the Employer on their behalf, as the case may be can deposit the contributions to the Fund in the account of "CDC-Trustee ABL-GOKP PENSION FUND in the following manner:         <ul> <li>Direct bank transfer.</li> <li>Standing instructions from the Employer / Employees to their bank for regular transfer of contribution.</li> <li>In the form of "Account Payee Only" cheque, Payment Orders or demand drafts;</li> <li>Any other electronic form of transfer.</li> </ul> </li> </ul>			
Investment Mechanism	The Contribution amount is credited to the Employee(s) Individual Pension Account and is invested in the underlying Sub fund(s) as per applicable Allocation Scheme to the Employee(s).			
Allocation of Contributions & Allocation Schemes	<ol> <li>The contribution received from or in respect of any Employee(s) by the Pension Fund Manager on any working day shall be immediately credited to his/ her Individual Pension Account and the amount in the Individual Pension Account shall be used to purchase the Units of the Sub-Funds of ABL – GOKP PENSION FUND, at the Net Asset Value notified by the Pension Fund Manager at the close of that working day.</li> <li>The allocation of the contributions between the various Sub-Funds at the date of opening of Individual Pension Account shall be allocated 100% to the Money Market Sub-Fund and thereafter, shall be in accordance with the Allocation Policy applicable to the Employee(s) as mentioned in this Offering Document.</li> <li>The amount of the contribution used for the purchase of the Units of any Sub-Fund shall depend on such percentage as determined in the Specified Allocation Scheme selected by the Employee(s). In the event of no allocation percentages being selected by any Employee(s) the Pension Fund Manager shall allocate the contributions to the default asset allocation Scheme as mentioned in this Offering Document.</li> </ol>			

- 4. The Pension Fund Manager shall make reallocation of the Units between the Sub-Funds at least once a year to ensure that the allocations of Sub-Fund Units of all the Employee(s) are according to the percentages selected by the Employee(s) or where no selection has been made according to the Default Asset Allocation Scheme.
- 5. The Pension Fund Manager shall also offer different Allocation Schemes to Employees to choose from, allowing them to adopt an investment strategy, according to their risk/return requirements. However, for initial three years from opening of IPA the contribution of Employees will be invested in Money Market Sub-Fund only and thereafter in accordance with the life cycle-based Allocation Scheme or Default Allocation Scheme, as applicable to the Employee, as mentioned in this Offering Document.

# Investment Strategy

The Pension Fund Manager shall design investment strategy to optimize returns on investments within the parameters of Investment Policy specified by the Commission subject to such relaxations as may be granted in relation to specific sub fund(s).

The Total Expense Ratio of the Sub-Funds shall be caped as follows:					
Sub- Funds	Maximum Total Expense Ratio	Maximum Insurance			
	excluding Insurance charges and Govt levies (as % of Net Assets)	charges (as % of Net Assets)			
Money Market Sub-Fund	0.75% p.a.	0.25% p.a.			
Debt Sub- Fund	0.75% p.a.	0.25% p.a.			
Equity Index Sub- Fund	1.00% p.a.	0.25% p.a.			
Equity Sub- Fund	1.75% p.a.	0.25% p.a.			

A Pension Fund Manager shall prominently disclose on a daily basis, the following information regarding all its pension funds on its website and on the website of Mutual Funds Association of Pakistan (MUFAP) along with communication to the Employer,-

(i) Total Expense Ratio; and

(ii) Management Fee as a percentage of net assets.

#### Total Expense Ratio

In case the Pension Fund Manager manages Employer Pension Fund for Employees of any local, Provincial or Federal Government (including their autonomous bodies) in Pakistan other than the Employer, the Total Expense Ratio, charged to the Pension Fund, pertaining to the Employees, shall, during the currency of the Agreement between the Employer and the Pension Fund Manager, be subject to the following conditions:

- (a). In case the other government is offering a similar Insurance benefit to its Employees as that offered by the Employer, the Total Expense Ratio, including Insurance charges but excluding Government taxes and levies charged to Pension Fund, shall not be higher than the same Ratio charged to the other Government Pension Fund;
- (b). In case the other government is offering a lower or higher Insurance benefit to its Employees than that offered by the Employer, the Total Expense Ratio, excluding Insurance charges as well as Government taxes and levies charged to Pension Fund, shall not be higher than the same Ratio charged to the other Government Pension Fund; and
- (c). In case the Pension Fund Manager charges a lower Total Expense Ratio to any of the other Government Pension Funds, it shall from the

	effective date of such an occurrence, charge the same Total Expense Ratio to the Pension Fund.		
Front End Load  No Front End Load shall be deducted from the Contributions recei Employee(s).			
Taxation	Tax Credit will be available to Employee(s) on contributions during any Tax Year subject to the limits prescribed under Income Tax Ordinance 2001.		
Benefits / Withdrawal on Retirement	At the date of retirement of the Employee(s) all the units of the sub funds in the Employee(s) Individual Pension Account shall be redeemed at the net asset value notified at close of the day of retirement and the amount due shall be credited to Employee(s) Individual Pension Account in the lower volatility scheme where no option is selected by the Employee(s) offered by the Pension Fund Manager. The Employee(s) shall then have the following options, namely:  (a) to withdraw upto such percentage of amount from his Individual Pension account as specified in the KPK Rules; and  (b) use the remaining amount to purchase an annuity from a life insurance / Insurance company and/or any other annuity plan as offered under the Rules of Employee(s) choice subject to such limits as prescribed by the Employer; or  (c) enter into an agreement with the Pension Fund Manager to transfer Employee(s) balance to an Approved Income Payment Plan offered by the		
Withdrawal before Retirement	Pension Fund Manager as approved by the Commission.  Employee(s) at any time before retirement are entitled to withdraw the whole or any part of the Units held to their credit in their Individual Pension Account. Tax may be applicable in accordance with the requirements of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 and, if applicable, will be deducted by the Pension Fund Manager from the amount withdrawn. The withdrawal shall also be subject to conditions (if any) imposed by the Employer.  Note: The Employee(s) must understand that as per KPK Rules, in case an Employee withdraws any amount from his Individual Pension Account before attaining the retirement age; the Employer shall stop making employer's contributions in the subject Individual Pension Account and shall not resume such contributions until the Employee deposits the withdrawn amount, along with an additional amount equal to one percent (1%) of the withdrawn amount for every completed month, since the date of withdrawal, in his Individual Pension Account.		

### 2. REGULATORY APPROVALS AND CONSENT

### 2.1 Registration of the Pension Fund Manager

ABL Asset Management Company Limited the Pension Fund Manager of ABL—GOKP PENSION FUND, having its registered office 14 Main Boulevard DHA Phase 6, Lahore, Pakistan, is a Non-Banking Finance Company and has been licensed by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan under the Non-Banking Finance Companies (Establishment and Regulation) Rules, 2003 and Non-Banking Finance Companies and Notified Entities Regulations 2008 ("Regulations") to, interalia, carryout Asset Management Services under License SECP/LRD/LD/1/AMC/ABL-AML/2022-53 dated December 9, 2022 (appended hereto as Annexure "A") and is, registered with the Commission under the Voluntary Pension System Rules, 2005 through Certificate of Registration 10/SEC/PRDD/VPS/AIML/106 dated December 21, 2015 and is a designated fund manager appointed by the Government of Khyber Pakhtunkhwa through the Secretary to Government Finance Department under an Agreement dated December 22, 2022 appended hereto as Annexure "A", "A-1" and "A-2" respectively.

#### 2.2 Authorization of the Pension Fund

The Pension Fund Manager has been authorized by the Commission through its letter No. SCD/AMCW/ABLGOKPPF/2023/153 dated December 28, 2023 appended hereto as **Annexure "B-1"**, to constitute the Pension Fund under the name and title of **ABL-GOKP PENSION FUND** (hereinafter referred to as the **ABL-GOKPPF**, "Pension Fund", or "Trust") and authorized the formation of a scheme, under the name, "**ABL-GOKP PENSION FUND**", under rule (9) of the Voluntary Pension System Rules, 2005.

### 2.3 Appointment of the Trustee and Remuneration

The Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited, having its registered office at CDC House, 99-"B", Block "B", S.M.C.H.S., Main Shahrah-e-Faisal, Karachi, Pakistan, has been approved by the Commission to act as the trustee and its remuneration of "ABL-GOKP PENSION FUND" through its letter No. SCD/AMCW/ABLGOKPPF/2023-174 dated October 24, 2023 appended here to as Annexure "C".

### 2.4 Registration of the Trust Deed

The Pension Fund Manager has been authorized by the Commission to execute and to register the Trust Deed. Approval of Trust Deed is appended hereto as **Annexure "B-3".** 

Assistant Director of Industries and Commerce Directorate of the Department has issued a Certificate of Registration No KAR/ST/036/2023 dated August 03, 2023 upon registration of the Trust under Sindh Trust Act 2020.

#### 2.5 Approval of the Offering Document

The Commission has, through its letter No. SCD/AMCW/ABLGOKPPF/2023/369 dated December 29, 2023 appended hereto as Annexure "B-2" approved this Offering Document pursuant to sub-Rule (5) of Rule (9) of the Rules and as per the guidelines for Authorization of Pension Fund under sub-Rule (1) of Rule (9) of the Rules.

This Offering Document sets out the arrangements covering the basic structure of **ABL-GOKP PENSION FUND**. The provisions of the Voluntary Pension System Rules, 2005, Trust Deed, the Agreement between the KPK Government and the Pension Fund Manager and guidelines issued by SECP from time to time, hereafter govern this Offering Document and in case of any ambiguity in the constitutive documents of **ABL-GOKP PENSION FUND**, the VPS Rules 2005 or the clarifications/exemptions/relaxations/interpretations issued by the Commission from time to time shall prevail. It sets forth information about the Fund that an Employee(s) should know before contributing to the Pension Fund. Employee(s) should read this Offering Document carefully prior to contributing to / participating in the Pension Fund, and retain the Offering Document for future reference.

However, it must be distinctly understood that such an approval or authorization by the Commission neither implies official recommendation by the Commission to participate in /contribute to the Pension Fund nor does the Commission take any responsibility for the financial soundness of the Pension Fund and its Sub Funds or for the correctness of any statements made or opinions expressed in this Offering Document.

If the Employee has any doubt about the contents of this Offering Document, he/she should seek independent professional advice, from his/her legal, financial or tax advisor.

This Offering Document contains necessary information for the Employees to make an informed decision to participate in the Pension Fund described herein. The Employee(s) are advised, in their own interest, to carefully read the contents of the Offering Document, in particular, the risks mentioned in Clause 7.10 & 7.11 and Warnings in Clause 11.6, before making any participation/contribution

decision. Employee(s) may note that this Offering Document remains effective until a material change occurs and they should retain this Offering Document for future reference. Material changes shall be filed for approval with the Commission with prior consent of the Trustee and the Employer (where required) and subsequently be circulated to all the Employees or may be notified by advertisements in the newspapers, or on the Pension Fund Manager's website, subject to the applicable provisions of the Trust Deed and the Rules.

Employee(s) must recognize that all investments involve varying levels of risk. The portfolios of the Sub Funds of the Pension Fund consist of market-based investments and are subject to market fluctuations and risks inherent in all such investments. It should be noted that the value of Units of the Sub Funds can fall as well as rise, in response to market conditions. It should also be noted that under certain circumstances the issuance/redemption of Units may be restricted.

This Offering Document shall be subject to and be governed by the Laws of Pakistan including the Ordinance, the Rules and all other applicable laws, rules and regulations and it shall be deemed for all purposes whatsoever that all the provisions required to be contained by the Rules and Regulations are incorporated in this Offering Document and in the event of any conflict between the Offering Document of the Fund and the Rules/Regulation, the latter shall supersede and prevail over the provisions contained in this Offering Document, unless specific exemption has been granted by the Commission.

#### 3. CONSTITUTION OF THE PENSION FUND

#### 3.1 Constitution of ABL-GOKP Pension Fund

The Pension Fund has been established as a trust under the Sindh Trust Act, 2020 through a trust deed dated August 03, 2023 executed between **ABL Asset Management Company Limited** (the Pension Fund Manager), having its registered office at Islamic Chamber of Commerce, Industry & Agriculture Building, 2nd floor, ST–2/A, Block-9, KDA Scheme 5, Clifton Karachi – 75600 ABL Asset Management Company Limited (the Pension Fund Manager)

#### **AND**

Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited incorporated in Pakistan under the Companies Ordinance, 1984, Companies Act, 2017 and registered by SECP to act as a Trustee of the Collective Investment Scheme & Voluntary Pension Scheme, having its registered office at CDC House, 99-B, Block "B", S.M.C.H.S Main Shahrah-e-Faisal Karachi, Pakistan, as the Trustee, as party of the other part

### 3.2 Trust Deed (the "Deed")

The Trust Deed shall be subject to, and governed by the Voluntary Pension System Rules, 2005 (Rules) and all other applicable laws and regulations and shall be deemed, for all purposes, whatsoever, to incorporate the provisions required to be contained in a trust deed by the Rules as a part and parcel hereof and, in the event of any conflict between the Trust Deed and the Rules, the latter will supersede and prevail over the provisions contained in the Trust Deed unless specific exemption has granted by the Commission.

The terms and conditions in the Trust Deed, and any Supplementary Trust Deed shall be binding on each Employee(s) as if he has been a party to it.

### 3.3 Modification of the Constitutive Documents

This Offering Document will be updated to take account of any relevant material changes, circular, and directives from the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP).

In case amendments are proposed in the Constitutive Documents due to change in regulatory requirements, the same shall be incorporated with the consent of Trustee and notified within seven days to the Employee(s) subject to the provisions of the Rules and the Regulations and duly posted on official website of the Pension Fund Manager.

In case modification is required in the fundamental attributes of Pension Fund and / or amendments with respect to offering of units to Employees shall be subject to 30 days prior notice to Employee(s), consent of the Trustee and the Employer (where required) and prior approval of Commission.

#### 3.4 Seed Capital provided or arranged by the Pension Fund Manager

The seed capital of the Pension Fund shall be provided, invested or arranged by the Pension Fund Manager. Seed Capital Units have been issued to the Seed Investor as under:

Name of Sub-Fund	No. of Units	Initial Par Value of each Unit (Rupees)	Amount (Rupees)
ABL-GOKPPF - Equity Sub Fund	5,000	100	500,000
ABL-GOKPPF - Debt Sub Fund	5,000	100	500,000
ABL-GOKPPF - Money Market Sub Fund	300,000	100	30,000,000
ABL-GOKPPF - Equity Index Sub Fund	5,000	100	500,000

The Seed Capital Units subscribed by the Seed Investor have been issued at a par value of Pakistan Rupees One Hundred per Unit (Rs. 100/-Unit) and shall not be redeemable/ transferable or tradable for a minimum period of three (3) years from the date of issue or as maybe determined by the Commission. Such restriction and its termination date shall be entered into the Register and shall be noted on any Accounts Statement or certificate issued in respect of such units.

### 3.5 Type / Feature of Units of the Sub-Funds

The Pension Fund shall consist of four Sub-Funds to be called:

- I. ABL-GOKPPF Equity Sub Fund (the Equity Sub Fund);
- II. ABL-GOKPPF Debt Sub Fund (the Debt Sub Fund);
- III. ABL-GOKPPF Money Market Sub Fund (the Money Market Sub Fund); and
- IV. ABL-GOKPPF- Equity Index Sub Fund (the Equity Index Sub Fund)
  - (a) All Units and fractions thereof represent an undivided share in the respective Sub-Fund and rank pari passu as to their rights in the Net Assets and earnings of that Sub-Fund. Each Employee(s) has a beneficial interest in the Pension Fund proportionate to the Units held by such Employee(s) in the respective Sub-Fund in Employee(s) Individual Pension Account. The liability of the Employee(s) shall be limited to the amount paid against the number of Units or in certain circumstances cash, as may be allowed by the Rules, held by each Employee(s) in Employee(s) Individual Pension Account.
  - (b) All Units shall be issued in a non-certificated form, except the Seed Capital Units that may be issued in a certificated form, if required by the Seed Investor.
- (c) The Units in the Sub-Funds issued to the Employee(s) would be non-transferable to another Employee(s)/person. They shall only be redeemable in case of retirement (including retirement in the instance of disability), premature encashment/ withdrawal, death of the Employee(s), and change of pension fund manager, change of Allocation Schemes and/or rebalancing of the portfolio/ Allocation Schemes.
- (d) The initial Par value of the Units of each of the Sub-Funds is Pakistan Rupees One Hundred (Rs. 100), which is applicable to the first offering. The amount received from the Seed Investors has been allocated to each Sub-Fund. From the Launch Date, the Pension

Fund Manager shall open participation in the Pension Fund to the Employee(s) on a continuous basis, through offer of Units of Sub-Funds (as per the allocation policy prescribed by the Employer and approved by the Commission) issued at NAV calculated in the manner prescribed under the Rules or as may be specified by the Commission from time to time.

(e) Units of the relevant Sub Fund shall be issued to each Employee(s) as per the selected 'Allocation Scheme', identified in clause 5.12, for the contributions among the Sub-Funds.

#### 4. OPERATORS AND PRINCIPALS

#### 4.1 The Employer

Government of Khyber Pakhtunkhwa is an Employer in terms of the Agreement signed on December 22, 2022.

### 4.2 The Pension Fund Manager

ABL ASSET MANAGEMENT COMPANY LIMITED is the Pension Fund Manager of ABL-GOKP Pension Fund, having its registered office as mentioned below:

#### 14, Main Boulevard, DHA Phase 6, Lahore, Pakistan.

Any change in the registered office address of the Pension Fund Manager shall be notified by the Pension Fund Manager to the Commission and the Trustee from time to time.

### **Organization**

ABL Asset Management Company Limited (ABL AMC) is a Non-Banking Finance Company licensed to undertake Asset Management Services as per the NBFC & NE Rules, 2008. ABL AMC is a wholly owned subsidiary of Allied Bank Limited, one of the leading commercial banks of Pakistan.

ABL AMC is currently managing Fourteen (14) mutual funds, Ten (10) investment plans and two (2) Voluntary Pension Schemes.

### **Rating of the Pension Fund Manager**

ABL AMC has been awarded a Management Quality Rating of "AM1" from PACRA Credit Company Limited.

#### **Principal Shareholders**

The following is the current shareholding structure of the company:

Name	Paid Up Capital			
Name	Number of Shares	Amount in Rupees		
Allied Bank Limited	49,999,993	499,999,930		
Sheikh Mukhtar Ahmed	1	10		
Mr. Mohammad Naeem Mukhtar	1	10		
Mr. Muhammad Waseem Mukhtar	1	10		
Mr. Aizid Razzaq Gill	1	10		
Mr. Pervaiz Iqbal Butt	1	10		
Mr. Muhammad Kamran Shahzad	1	10		
Ms. Saira Shahid Hussain	1	10		
Total	50,000,000	500,000,000		

#### **Holding Company of ABLAMC**

Allied Bank is part of the Ibrahim Group, one of the largest industrial conglomerates in Pakistan with business in textile, trading, polyester fibers, energy and financial services sectors. ABL was incorporated in Lahore before independence in 1942 as Australasia Bank and was renamed as Allied Bank of Pakistan Limited in 1974 and Allied Bank Limited in 2005.

Following the takeover of its management control by the Group in 2004 through the privatization process of GoP and subsequent merger of Ibrahim Leasing into Allied Bank in 2005, the board formulated comprehensive strategic priorities to address the needs to run a world class financial institution.

Today the Bank stands on a solid foundation of over 75 years of its existence having a strong equity, assets and deposits base offering universal banking services with higher focus on retail banking. Allied Bank is one of the largest banks in Pakistan, offering various technology-based products and services including real-time online banking to its diversified clientele through its network of 1425 online branches and more than 1500 ATMs across Pakistan. ABL's turnaround in such a short span has been achieved on account of the Board's and the management's commitment to professionalism, adaption to changes, environmental challenges and urge for growth.

Based on its consolidated financial performance and significant improvement in areas of risk management and corporate governance, the Pakistan Credit Rating Agency (PACRA) assigned the long-term rating of Allied Bank to AAA (Triple A) and short-term rating to A1+ (A one plus).

# 4.3 Board of Directors of the Pension Fund Manager

Name of Director	Position	Other Directorships	Occupation	Address
Sheikh Mukhtar Ahmed	Chairman	<ol> <li>Ibrahim Fibers Limited.</li> <li>Ibrahim Agencies (Pvt.) Limited.</li> <li>Ibrahim Holding (Pvt.) Limited.</li> <li>Allied Bank Limited.</li> <li>Atlantic Aviation (Pvt.) Limited.</li> <li>IH Holding (Pvt.) Limited</li> </ol>	Industrialist	3, Race course road, Civil line Faisalabad.
Mr. Mohammad Naeem Mukhtar	Director	<ol> <li>Ibrahim Fibers Limited.</li> <li>Ibrahim Agencies (Pvt.) Ltd.</li> <li>Allied Bank Limited.</li> <li>NMF – LUMS</li> </ol>	Industrialist	3, Race course road, Civil line Faisalabad.
Mr. Muhammad Waseem Mukhtar	Director	<ol> <li>Ibrahim Fibers Limited.</li> <li>Ibrahim Agencies (Pvt.) Limited.</li> <li>Ibrahim Holding (Pvt.) Limited.</li> <li>Allied Bank Limited.</li> <li>Atlantic Aviation (Pvt.) Limited.</li> <li>IH Holding (Pvt.) Limited</li> <li>Arabian Sea Country Club</li> <li>Hub Power Company Limited</li> </ol>	Industrialist	3, Race course road, Civil line Faisalabad.
Mr. Pervaiz Iqbal Butt	Independent Director	Polytek Associate (Private) Limited	Business	59-W, Aibak Block New Garden Town,Lahore.
Mr. Aizid Razzaq Gill	Director	CEO – Allied Bank Limited	Banker	House No.177/1, C- Block, Model Town, Lahore

Mr. Muhammad Kamran Shehzad	Independent Director	Chairman-Bench Matrix (Pvt.)     Ltd.     Exide Battery     Mapout Modaraba Management company	Services	House # 111, Khayaban-e- Saadi, DHA-VII, Karachi
Ms. Saira Shahid Hussain	Director	N/A	Service	House # 522, Street # 5 DHA Phase-5,Lahore
Mr. Naveed Nasim	CEO	N/A.	Service	43/5-B, House No. D1, Shakir Villas, PECHS Block 6, Karachi

### Profile of the Board of Directors of the Pension Fund Manager

- 5. Sheikh Mukhtar Ahmed started his business career immediately after migrating from India at the time of Independence of Pakistan in 1947 and contributed to the industrial and business growth of Pakistan through his entrepreneurship skills and business acumen. He has over 55 years of experience in establishing and successfully managing various industrial and financial companies. Under his auspices, Ibrahim Group has emerged as a leading conglomerate of the country. He joined the Board of Allied Bank in 2004 and the ABL AMC Board in 2008.
- **6. Mr. Mohammad Naeem Mukhtar** is Chairman of the Board of Allied Bank since 2004. He has done his MBA from Cardiff Business School U.K., Post Graduate diploma in Textiles from U.K. and Chartered Textile Engineer (CText ATI) from The Textile Institute in Manchester, U.K. He has 27 years of experience of Finance and Industry. Besides Chairman of Board of Directors of Allied Bank, he is also the Chief Executive Officer of M/s Ibrahim Fibers Limited, Director of M/s Ibrahim Agencies (Pvt.) Limited and Member Board of Governors of National Management Foundation, the parent body of Lahore University of Management Sciences (LUMS).
- 7. Mr. Muhammad Waseem Mukhtar holds a Master's degree in Total Quality Management (TQM) from University of Glamorgan, Wales, U.K and has diversified experience of Finance, IT and Industry. He is on the Board of Allied Bank since 2004. His proactive strategic guidance played a vital role in technological up-gradation to enhance service quality across Allied Bank. He joined the Board of the ABL AMC in 2010.
- 8. **Pervaiz Iqbal Butt,** holds a BSc. degree in Electrical Engineering from University of Engineering and Technology. He is also a "Certified Director" from Pakistan Institute of Corporate Governance. He has decades of experience in marine engineering and other heavy Industries. Previously, he has served as an Independent Director at Allied Bank Limited from 2007 to 2015. Mr. Butt is also the director of Polytek Associate (Private) Limited.
- 9. **Mr. Muhammad Kamran Shehzad**, is former Deputy Governor of State Bank of Pakistan. His distinguished career spreads over a period of 38 years in Central and Commercial/ Banking and Finance. During his time at SBP Mr. Kamran Shehzad spearheaded banking sector reforms, privatization of State owned Institutions and development of Micro Finance amongst other initiatives.
- 10. Mr. Aizid Razzaq Gill, is a seasoned professional banker with 24 years of experience in Financial Management, Risk Analysis & Research and expertise in Portfolio Management of Corporate and Commercial Banking obligors. He has worked with various financial institutions and held key positions in the Corporate Banking Sector. After joining Allied Bank in 2005 as Regional

Corporate Head, he has held different senior management positions such as Head-Commercial Assets, Head of Commercial & Retail Risk, Head of Operational Risk, Group Head Corporate & Financial Institutions Risk and Group Head Liabilities. Prior to becoming CEO at Allied Bank, he was performing the role of Chief Risk Officer (CRO) of the Bank. Mr. Gill is a graduate from University of Engineering & Technology Lahore (UET) and has his Master's degree in Business Administration from California State University, Fullerton (CSUF), USA. He is a Chevening Scholar, with a Master's degree in Business Economics from University of Manchester Institute of Science & Technology (UMIST), UK. He has also attended several Executive Education courses on Leadership and Management from various institutions including Columbia University and London Business School.

- 11. **Ms. Saira Shahid Hussain** is driving forward the Human Capital vision and plans for developing an array of Human Resources initiatives across Allied Bank Limited. She holds over 25+ years of diversified experience in the field of Human Resources working for various National and International level organizations. She held multiple leadership roles with various corporate sectors across Pakistan. Ms. Saira holds a Master's degree in Business Administration and is a 'Certified Master Trainer'. She is a recognized thought-leader, speaker on the topics of leadership, gender diversity, career progression, and youth employment. She has represented Pakistan as Gender Ambassador on various Global forum 4.2.6 Profile of Management
- 12. Mr. Naveed Nasim is the Chief Executive Officer at ABL Funds. He is a seasoned professional with over 23 years of experience in Corporate and Investment Banking, Risk Management and Commercial Banking. He has worked with leading financial institutions including Habib Bank Limited and Allied Bank Limited and held key positions in the area of Corporate and Investment banking and Risk Management. Before joining ABL Funds, he was serving as the Group Head-CIBG at Allied Bank Limited (ABL) and was managing portfolio of Rs. 300 billion with over 100 relationships. During his tenure at ABL, he was instrumental in the implementation of various risk models and processes including Basel Framework and Risk Management framework. He was nominated by Allied Bank as a Director on the Board of Pakistan Corporate Restructuring Company Limited (PCRCL) and Pakistan Mortgage Refinance Company (PMRC). Mr. Nasim holds BBA (Hons) & MBA from IBA, Karachi. He is a Certified Trade Financial Professional (CTFP). During his career, he has attended various Executive Education courses on Leadership, Management and Enterprise Risk Management from leading institutions.

### **Profile of Management**

#### **Chief Executive Officer**

Mr. Naveed Nasim is the Chief Executive Officer at ABL Funds. He is a seasoned professional with over 23 years of experience in Corporate and Investment Banking, Risk Management and Commercial Banking. He has worked with leading financial institutions including Habib Bank Limited and Allied Bank Limited and held key positions in the area of Corporate and Investment banking and Risk Management. Before joining ABL Funds, he was serving as the Group Head-CIBG at Allied Bank Limited (ABL) and was managing portfolio of Rs. 300 billion with over 100 relationships. During his tenure at ABL, he was instrumental in the implementation of various risk models and processes including Basel Framework and Risk Management framework. He was nominated by Allied Bank as a Director on the Board of Pakistan Corporate Restructuring Company Limited (PCRCL) and Pakistan Mortgage Refinance Company (PMRC). Mr. Nasim holds BBA (Hons) & MBA from IBA, Karachi. He is a Certified Trade Financial Professional (CTFP). During his career, he has attended various Executive Education courses on Leadership, Management and Enterprise Risk Management from leading institutions

## Syed Khalid Husain Head of Business Development

Syed Khalid Husain brings with him an extensive 35 years of rich experience from the financial sector.

During his 25 year tenure at Allied Bank, he took charge of various divisions in both Corporate & Retail banking. His last assignment at Allied Bank was to spearhead the largest region of the bank for Pakistan as Head of Karachi City Region. He was also looking after the Corporate Deposits of Sindh and Baluchistan Provinces. Under his supervision as being the Chief Manager in top business branches of Karachi, the branches won the Best Branch of Pakistan Best Branch of Sindh awards. Apart from being the Chief Manager in top business branches of Karachi he also represented Allied Bank in the International Banking course organized by State Bank Of Pakistan in which 20 Countries Participated.

In 2008, Syed Khalid Husain took charge as Head of Business Development at ABLAMC. In his time at the AMC, he worked hard in creating awareness of mutual funds and its benefits to the masses. His main achievement was the development of largest retail structure throughout Pakistan by organizing sale of funds from over 1000 branches of Allied Bank and establishment of ABL AMC's dedicated retail centers in major cities like Karachi, Lahore, Rawalpindi, & Faisalabad.

### Mr. Saqib Matin, FCA, FPA Chief Financial Officer & Company Secretary

Saqib Matin, FCA FPA, is the Chief Financial Officer & Company Secretary of ABL Asset Management Company Limited. He is a Fellow Chartered Accountant (FCA) and as well as an Associate Member of Pakistan Institute of Public Finance Accountants. He joined ABL Asset Management Company Limited in January 2008 as Chief Financial Officer. He brings with him more than 14 years of diversified experience in the fields of accountancy, taxation, corporate and audit. Previously, he was associated with Atlas Asset Management Limited as Manager Fund Accounting & Financial Reporting. He also served in SME Bank Limited and Sapphire Textile Mills Limited as Manager Accounts. He commenced his professional career from Hameed Chaudhri & Co., Chartered Accountants.

### Mr. Kamran Shahzad Chief Internal Auditor

Kamran Shahzad FCA is the Chief Internal Auditor and Secretary to the Board Audit Committee of ABL Asset Management. Kamran is a qualified Chartered Accountant with more than 10 years of experience in Qatar, Saudi Arabia, U.A.E. Bahrain and Pakistan. He is member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan and Pakistan Institute of Public Finance Accountants. Besides this, he is also a SAP Certified Implementation and Support Consultant and winner of ICAP members' Professional Excellence Award 2014. Previously, he has served upto the positions of Vice President in audit function of Allied Bank Limited, Deputy Director in a public sector organization and Manager Advisory in a leading firm of Chartered Accountants.

### Mr. Fahad Aziz Chief Investment Officer

Mr. Fahad carries with himself over 17 years of experience in the financial industry specifically Fixed Income Fund Management and Economic Research. At ABL Funds, he is responsible for overall management of conventional and Islamic Fixed Income Funds' Portfolio. Besides as a member of ABL Funds's Investment Committee, he plays an active role in SMA Portfolio Management. Prior to this Mr. Fahad was managing both Conventional and Islamic portfolio of Fixed Income and Money Market Funds at HBL Asset Management Limited of funds. Mr. Fahad holds an MBA in Finance and Computer Sciences from Institute of Business Management.

### Mr. Rehan Ansari Head of Operation

Mr. Rehan Ansari is leading the Registrar Services & Operations Department at ABL Funds. He is a qualified Cost & Management Accountant (ACMA) from the Institute of Cost & Management Accountants of Pakistan (ICMAP). He joined ABL Funds in 2008. He possesses over a decade experience of working with leading financial institutions. Prior to Joining ABL Funds, Rehan served in Arif Habib Investments Limited as Assistant Vice President (AVP) for three years and also worked

in different renowned brokerage houses in the initial years of his career. He has diversified experience in the fields of accountancy, corporate taxation & settlements, At ABL Funds, he's also playing the additional role in handling client queries and working in close coordination with the Business Development Department & other Departments.

Mr. Rehan Saif Head of Compliance

Mr. Rehan Saif brings with him an extensive 25 years of experience in the field of Compliance, regulatory affairs, risk management, product development, surveillance, investigation and enforcement, policies and procedures, customer support and training and awareness programs. Since his joining in 2019 at ABL Funds, he is leading the Compliance Department. Previously, he has served in senior management positions in the National Clearing Company of Pakistan Limited (NCCPL), Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited (CDC), and the Lahore Stock Exchange (G) Limited. He played an important role in various capital market development projects and implementation of the automations.

Mr. Nasir Ali Shujauddin Head of Institutional Sales, Business Strategy & SMA

**Mr. Nasir Ali Shujauddin** brings with him over 12 years of combined experience of Asset Management and Corporate Banking. Prior to joining ABL Funds, his was last associated with MCB Bank Limited as Relationship Manager, Corporate Finance & International Banking Group. He holds a Master of Business Administration (MBA) degree from KASBIT and currently he is doing Master of Science (MS) from IBA.

Ms. Zufa Kanwal Head of Marketing

Ms. Zufa Kanwal is a seasoned financial services marketer adept at brand building, digital marketing, marketing communications and sales training. She is well experienced in influencing and relationship-building through content marketing and social media engagement to create brand awareness, foster brand loyalty and increase profitability. Since her joining in 2017 at ABL Funds, she spearheads the nationwide marketing efforts with the objective to translate the company's vision into action through effective and strategic marketing planning and execution across all channels from digital to print. Her professional career spans over 13 years in a range of marketing roles. Previously she was associated with Al Meezan Investments and was responsible for Digital Marketing and Communications. Ms. Zufa has been a visiting faculty member at Karachi University for the Masters' level Management students. She holds an MPA (Finance and HR)- Gold Medalist, from Karachi University. She also holds CFA Investment Foundation Certification, IFMP Certified Mutual Funds' Distribution Certification and is also a Certified Trainer.

#### **Existing Schemes under Management and their performance**

**Existing Funds under Management** 

**ABL Income Fund - (Income Scheme)** 

Date of Launch: September 20, 2008 Listing: Pakistan Stock Exchange

Par Value: Rs. 10/-

Bench mark: 6 Month Kibor

Net Assets (September 30, 2023)	Rs. 1,720.5 million			
NAV (September 30, 2023)	Rs. 10.1407 per u	Rs. 10.1407 per unit		
Fund Stability Rating	A(f)			
Performance	Distribution per unit	Return	Net Assets (mn.)	
Year Ended June 30, 2023	1.273	13.66%	7,292.00	
Year Ended June 30, 2022	0.9499	9.88%	12,831.99	
Year Ended June 30, 2021	0.4642	4.76%	8,516.13	
Year Ended June 30, 2020	1.4354	14.32%	1,490.93	
Year Ended June 30, 2019	0.7034	7.12%	1,692.90	

# **ABL Stock Fund - (Equity Scheme)**

Date of Launch: June 28, 2009 Listing: Pakistan Stock Exchange

Par Value: Rs. 10/-

Benchmark: KSE 100 Index

Net Assets (September 30, 2023)	Rs. 2,235.83 million			
NAV (September 30, 2023)	Rs. 14.1472 per unit			
Performance	Distribution Return per unit		Net Assets (mn.)	
Year Ended June 30, 2023	Nil	(2.39%)	2,384.10	
Year Ended June 30, 2022	Nil	(18.26%)	5,160.18	
Year Ended June 30, 2021	0.2382	39.26%	6,518.21	
Year Ended June 30, 2020	Nil	(1.44%)	4,426.79	
Year Ended June 30, 2019	Nil	(16.54%)	3,952.00	

# **ABL Cash Fund - (Money Market Scheme)**

Date of Launch: July 30, 2010 Listing: Pakistan Stock Exchange

Par Value: Rs. 10/-

Benchmark: 70%-Average of 3M PKRV & 30%-Average of 3 Month Bank Deposit Rate

Net Assets (September 30, 2023)	Rs. 49,773.30 million			
NAV (September 30, 2023)	Rs. 10.2452 per unit			
Fund Stability Rating	AA+(f)	AA+(f)		
Performance	Distribution per unit	Return	Net Assets (mn.)	
Year Ended June 30, 2023	1.629	17.50%	33,616.30	
Year Ended June 30, 2022	0.8685	10.31%	44,765.94	
Year Ended June 30, 2021	0.6777	6.91%	34,807.57	
Year Ended June 30, 2020	1.2092	12.61%	26,910.97	
Year Ended June 30, 2019	1.3116	9.02%	21,248.466	

# ABL Islamic Income Fund - (Shariah Complaint - Income Scheme)

Date of Launch: July 30, 2010 Listing: Pakistan Stock Exchange

Par Value: Rs. 10/-

Benchmark: Average of 6 Month Deposit rates of 3 Islamic Banks selected by MUFAP

Net Assets (September 30, 2023)	Rs. 1,058.96 million		
NAV (September 30, 2023)	Rs. 10.7466 per unit		
Fund Stability Rating	A+(f)		
Performance	Distribution per unit	Return	Net Assets (mn.)
Year Ended June 30, 2023	1.2462	12.42%	1,012.81
Year Ended June 30, 2022	0.8471	8.63%	3,532.28
Year Ended June 30, 2021	0.5854	5.75%	4,737.57
Year Ended June 30, 2020	1.1375	11.28%	6,141.18
Year Ended June 30, 2019	0.8481	8.47%	3,732.59

### **ABL Government Securities Fund - (Income Scheme)**

Date of Launch: November 30, 2011 Listing: Pakistan Stock Exchange

Par Value: Rs. 10/-

Benchmark: 6 Months PKRV rates

Net Assets (September 30, 2023)	Rs. 1,313.72 million		
NAV (September 30, 2023)	Rs. 10.7017 per unit		
Fund Stability Rating	AA-(f)		
Performance	Distribution per unit	Return	Net Assets (mn.)
Year Ended June 30, 2023	1.4222	14.78%	643.43
Year Ended June 30, 2022	0.8178	8.25%	1,361.52
Year Ended June 30, 2021	0.4642	5.08%	2,875.50
Year Ended June 30, 2020	1.5734	15.30%	4,679.35
Year Ended June 30, 2019	0.7627	7.73%	2,811.07

# ABL Islamic Stock Fund - (Shariah Complaint - Equity Scheme)

Date of Launch: June 12, 2013 Listing: Pakistan Stock Exchange

Par Value: Rs. 10/-

Benchmark: KMI-30 index

Net Assets (September 30, 2023)	Rs. 1,076.60 million			
NAV (September 30, 2023)	Rs. 14.2187 per un	Rs. 14.2187 per unit		
Performance	Distribution per unit	Return	Net Assets (mn.)	
Year Ended June 30, 2023	Nil	(0.91%)	1,111.59	
Year Ended June 30, 2022	Nil	(18.79%)	2,707.16	
Year Ended June 30, 2021	0.2226	34.97%	2,876.64	
Year Ended June 30, 2020	0.0172	0.56%	2,316.58	
Year Ended June 30, 2019	Nil	(16.65%)	1,976.93	

# ABL Islamic Financial Planning Fund - (Shariah Complaint - Fund of Fund Scheme)

Benchmark: Weighted average return of KMI 30 Index and average 6-month deposit rate of three Islamic Banks

### **Conservative Allocation Plan**

Date of Launch: December 22, 2015 Listing: Pakistan Stock Exchange

Net Assets (September 30, 2023)	Rs. 3,036.67 million		
NAV (September 30, 2023)	Rs. 121.5502 per unit		
Performance	Distribution per unit	Return	Net Assets (mn.)
Year Ended June 30, 2023	12.9166	10.98%	1,837.63
Year Ended June 30, 2022	5.2407	4.52%	60.28
Year Ended June 30, 2021	10.3650	8.73%	60.24
Year Ended June 30, 2020	2.1572	5.92%	65.09
Year Ended June 30, 2019	1.4420	1.35%	35.20

# ABL Islamic Financial Planning Fund - Aggressive Asset Allocation Plan

Date of Launch: December 22, 2015 Listing: Pakistan Stock Exchange

Par Value: Rs. 100/-

Net Assets (September 30, 2023)	Rs. 1.43 million		
NAV (September 30, 2023)	Rs. 99.747 per unit		
Performance	Distribution per unit	Return	Net Assets (mn.)
Year Ended June 30, 2023	4.2384	3.82%	1.37
Year Ended June 30, 2022	10.0335	10.22%	4.092
Year Ended June 30, 2021	27.3069	29.16%	7.98
Year Ended June 30, 2020	0.0172	0.05%	41.50
Year Ended June 30, 2019	Nil	(7.86%)	83.57

# ABL Islamic Financial Planning Fund – Active Allocation Plan

Date of Launch: December 22, 2015 Listing: Pakistan Stock Exchange

Net Assets (September 30, 2023)	Rs. 80.87 million		
NAV (September 30, 2023)	Rs. 88.8502 per unit		
Performance	Distribution per unit	Return	Net Assets (mn.)
Year Ended June 30, 2023	4.6757	5.57%	80.41

Year Ended June 30, 2022	Nil	(8.87%)	246.75
Year Ended June 30, 2021	30.7157	27.40%	396.77
Year Ended June 30, 2020	Nil	(2.57%)	429.49
Year Ended June 30, 2019	Nil	(7.58%)	571.45

# ABL Islamic Financial Planning Fund – Strategic Allocation Plan

Date of Launch: March 31, 2016 Listing: Pakistan Stock Exchange

Par Value: Rs. 100/-

Net Assets (September 30, 2023)	Rs. 16.25 million		
NAV (September 30, 2023)	Rs. 91.9826 per unit		
Performance	Distribution per unit	Return	Net Assets (mn.)
Year Ended June 30, 2023	3.683	4.34%	23.79
Year Ended June 30, 2022	Nil	(9.52%)	25.74
Year Ended June 30, 2021	30.978	30.38%	176.29
Year Ended June 30, 2020	5.9029	(5.19%)	164.61
Year Ended June 30, 2019	Nil	(1.87%)	255.42

# ABL Islamic Financial Planning Fund – Strategic Allocation Plan III

Date of Launch: March 3, 2017 Listing: Pakistan Stock Exchange

Net Assets (September 30, 2023)	Rs. 10.90 million			
NAV (September 30, 2023)	Rs. 92.443 per unit	Rs. 92.443 per unit		
Performance	Distribution per unit	Return	Net Assets (mn.)	
Year Ended June 30, 2023	4.8042	4.91%	10.30	
Year Ended June 30, 2022	Nil	(11.55%)	25.37	
Year Ended June 30, 2021	28.5572	27.31%	28.8	
Year Ended June 30, 2020	Nil	2.57%	33.14	
Year Ended June 30, 2019	Nil	(0.57%)	335.42	

# ABL Islamic Financial Planning Fund - Capital Preservation Plan - I

Date of Launch: March 29, 2019 Listing: Pakistan Stock Exchange

Par Value: Rs. 100/-

Net Assets (September 30, 2023)	Rs. 203.39 million		
NAV (September 30, 2023)	Rs. 105.2083 per unit		
Performance	Distribution per unit	Return	Net Assets (mn.)
Year Ended June 30, 2023	9.3239	9.6%	371.14
Year Ended June 30, 2022	0.7057	0.6%	1,084.91
Year Ended June 30, 2021	18.6391	18.5%	1,216.34
Year Ended June 30, 2020	6.1371	0.03%	378.93
For the period from March 29, 2019 to June 30, 2019	2.1352	2.17%	395.40

### ABL Islamic Financial Planning Fund - Capital Preservation Plan - II

Date of Launch: November 20, 2021 Listing: Pakistan Stock Exchange

Par Value: Rs. 100/-

Net Assets (September 30, 2023)	Rs. 47.88 million		
NAV (September 30, 2023)	Rs. 104.3854 per unit		
Performance	Distribution per unit	Return	Net Assets (mn.)
Year Ended June 30, 2023	9.9455	0.19%	253.18
For the period from November 20, 2021 to June 30, 2022	0.7384	(0.11%)	600.92

# ABL Financial Planning Fund - (Fund of Fund Scheme)

Weighted average return of KSE 100 Index and average 6 months deposit rate of three Banks.

### **Conservative Allocation Plan**

Date of Launch: December 31, 2015 Listing: Pakistan Stock Exchange

Net Assets (September 30, 2023)	Rs. 179.89 million		
NAV (September 30, 2023)	Rs. 116.0892 per unit		
Performance	Distribution per unit	Return	Net Assets (mn.)
Year Ended June 30, 2023	12.0772	11.19%	168.02
Year Ended June 30, 2022	5.4246	4.89%	159.60
Year Ended June 30, 2021	10.0467	9%	160.15
Year Ended June 30, 2020	12.3601	11.40%	188.27
Year Ended June 30, 2019	2.0844	2.02%	190.13

### **Active Allocation Plan**

Date of Launch: December 31, 2015 Listing: Pakistan Stock Exchange Par Value: Rs. 100/-

Net Assets (September 30, 2023)	Rs. 7.74 million		
NAV (September 30, 2023)	Rs. 86.579 per unit		
Performance	Distribution per unit	Return	Net Assets (mn.)
Year Ended June 30, 2023	2.6008	5.66%	18.18
Year Ended June 30, 2022	Nil	(10.20%)	130.99
Year Ended June 30, 2021	28.1930	35.72%	152.48
Year Ended June 30, 2020	Nil	(5.52%)	176.68
Year Ended June 30, 2019	Nil	(6.71%)	356.22

# **Strategic Allocation Plan**

Date of Launch: December 30, 2016 Listing: Pakistan Stock Exchange

Net Assets (September 30, 2023)	Rs. 144.85 million		
NAV (September 30, 2023)	Rs. 84.8467		
Performance	Distribution per unit	Return	Net Assets (mn.)
Year Ended June 30, 2023	2.6830	4.01%	138.88

Year Ended June 30, 2022	Nil	(11.72%)	221.27
Year Ended June 30, 2021	31.8454	34.64%	267.57
Year Ended June 30, 2020	2.3425	(3.81%)	213.57
Year Ended June 30, 2019	Nil	(3.44%)	525.13

### ABL Islamic Dedicated Stock Fund - (Shariah Complaint - Equity Scheme)

Date of Launch: December 19, 2016 Listing: Pakistan Stock Exchange

Par Value: Rs. 10/-

Benchmark: KMI-30 index

Net Assets (September 30, 2023)	Rs. 85.64 million		
NAV (September 30, 2023)	Rs. 7.5722 per unit		
Performance	Distribution per unit	Return	Net Assets (mn.)
Year Ended June 30, 2023	Nil	(16.93%)	95.40
Year Ended June 30, 2022	Nil	(3.77%)	667.31
Year Ended June 30, 2021	0.5192	36.98%	490.47
Year Ended June 30, 2020	Nil	(19.30%)	419.51
Year Ended June 30, 2019	Nil	(0.13%)	684.54

### ABL Islamic Asset Allocation Fund - (Shariah Complaint - Asset Allocation Scheme)

Date of Launch: May 31, 2018 Listing: Pakistan Stock Exchange

Par Value: Rs. 10/-

Benchmark: Wt. Avg. daily return of KMI 30 index & 6M Avg. deposit rates of 3 A rated Islamic

banks/ Islamic windows of scheduled commercial banks based on actual proportion

of investment in Equity/Fixed Income/ Money Market component.

Net Assets (September 30, 2023)	Rs. 1,878.08 million		
NAV (September 30, 2023)	Rs. 10.4483 per unit		
Performance	Distribution per unit	Return	Net Assets (mn.)
Year Ended June 30, 2023	1.5463	15%	2,519.10
Year Ended June 30, 2022	0.8451	8.8%	2,777.70
Year Ended June 30, 2021	0.7956	8.1%	2,683.76
Year Ended June 30, 2020	0.6957	6.86%	2,171.57

For the period from May 31, 2018 to June 30, 2019	0.010	(1.09%)	234.59
---------------------------------------------------	-------	---------	--------

### **Allied Finergy Fund - (Asset Allocation Scheme)**

Date of Launch: November 23, 2018 Listing: Pakistan Stock Exchange

Par Value: Rs. 10/-

Benchmark: Wt. Avg. daily return of PSX 100 index & 6M Kibor and (70% three (3) months PKRV rates + 30% three (3) months average deposit rate of three (3) AA rated scheduled banks as selected by MUFAP), based on the fund's actual allocation in equity, fixed income and money market instruments.

Net Assets (September 30, 2023)	Rs. 327.42 million  Rs. 10.5976 per unit		
NAV (September 30, 2023)			
Performance	Distribution per unit	Return	Net Assets (mn.)
Year Ended June 30, 2023	Nil	(0.61%)	282.60
Year Ended June 30, 2022	Nil	(7.85%)	348.03
Year Ended June 30, 2021	0.8207	16.35%	694.01
Year Ended June 30, 2020	Nil	(5.48%)	495.78
For the period from November 23, 2018 to June 30, 2019	Nil	(2.12%)	447.89

### **ABL Special Saving Fund (Capital Protected Scheme)**

### **ABL Special Saving Plan I**

Date of Launch: September 19, 2019 Listing: Pakistan Stock Exchange

Par Value: Rs. 10/-

Benchmark: Average of 6 Months PKRV Rates

Net Assets (September 30, 2023)	Rs. 16,324.14		
NAV (September 30, 2023)	Rs. 10.1107 per unit		
Performance	Distribution per unit	Return	Net Assets (mn.)
Year Ended June 30, 2023	1.6126	16.96%	20,129.54
Year Ended June 30, 2022	0.7093	7.34%	106.80
Year Ended June 30, 2021	0.3245	3.28%	579.95
For the Period from September 19, 2019 to June 30, 202	1.3030	14.02%	847.42

# **ABL Special Saving Plan II**

Date of Launch: September 20, 2019 Listing: Pakistan Stock Exchange

Par Value: Rs. 10/-

Benchmark: Average of 3 Months PKRV Rates

Net Assets (September 30, 2023)	Rs. 6,427.46 million		
NAV (September 30, 2023)	Rs. 11.3191 per unit		
Performance	Distribution per unit	Return	Net Assets (mn.)
Year Ended June 30, 2023	2.7654	28.17%	3,522.95
Year Ended June 30, 2022	0.7909	7.45%	155.18
Year Ended June 30, 2021	0.0446	6.73%	64.61
For the Period from September 20, 2019 to June 30, 202	0.9844	10.31%	1,914.15

# **ABL Special Saving Plan III**

Date of Launch: October 11, 2019 Listing: Pakistan Stock Exchange

Par Value: Rs. 10/-

Benchmark: Average of 6 Months PKRV Rates

Net Assets (September 30, 2023)	Rs.3,479.56 million		
NAV (September 30, 2023)	Rs. 10.7085 per unit		
Performance	Distribution per unit	Return	Net Assets (mn.)
Year Ended June 30, 2023	1.6965	17.77%	4,571.50
Year Ended June 30, 2022	0.9703	10.09%	6,141.20
Year Ended June 30, 2021	0.5712	6.79%	455.91
For the Period from October 11, 2019 to June 30, 2020	0.9840	10.09%	4,346.89

# **ABL Special Saving Plan IV**

Date of Launch: December 6, 2019 Listing: Pakistan Stock Exchange

Par Value: Rs. 10/-

Benchmark: Average of 1 Month PKRV Rates

Net Assets (September 30, 2023)	Rs. 2,077.38 million		
NAV (September 30, 2023)	Rs. 10.6835 per unit		
Performance	Distribution per unit	Return	Net Assets (mn.)
Year Ended June 30, 2023	2.7477	27.62%	1,845.56
Year Ended June 30, 2022	0.7290	7.61%	77.423
Year Ended June 30, 2021	0.4548	4.94%	169.07
For the Period from December 06, 2019 to June 30, 2020	1.0169	11.08%	401.76

# **ABL Special Saving Plan V**

Date of Launch: February 26, 2021 Listing: Pakistan Stock Exchange

Par Value: Rs. 10/-

Benchmark: Average of 6 Months PKRV Rates

Net Assets (September 30, 2023)	Rs. 9,175.18 million	ı			
NAV (September 30, 2023)	Rs. 10.6498 per unit				
Performance	Distribution per unit Return Net Assets (n				
Year Ended June 30, 2023	1.7435	18.16%	5,690.36		
Year Ended June 30, 2022	0.7996	8.44%	499.68		
For the period from February 26, 2021 to June 30, 2021	1.0626	11.28%	3,911.51		

# **ABL Special Saving Plan VI**

Date of Launch: August 5, 2022 Listing: Pakistan Stock Exchange

Par Value: Rs. 10/-

Benchmark: Average of 6 Months PKRV Rates

Net Assets (September 30, 2023)	Rs. 670.40 million				
NAV (September 30, 2023)	Rs.10.581 per unit				
Performance	Distribution per unit Return Net Assets (mn.)				
For the period from August 5, 2022 to June 30, 2023	1.4607	5.17%	714.73		

# **ABL Special Saving Fixed Rate Plan**

Date of Launch: February 7, 2023 Listing: Pakistan Stock Exchange

Par Value: Rs. 10/-

Benchmark: Average of 6 Months PKRV Rates

Net Assets (September 30, 2023)	Rs. 1,472.41 million				
NAV (September 30, 2023)	Rs. 10.4955 per unit				
Performance	Distribution per unit Return Net Assets (mn.)				
1 Ci foi mance	_	Keturii	Net Assets (IIII.)		

### ABL Islamic Cash Fund - (Shariah Complaint - Money Market Scheme)

Date of Launch: February 13, 2020 Listing: Pakistan Stock Exchange

Par Value: Rs. 10/-

Benchmark: Three months average deposit rates of three (3) AA rated Islamic Banks or Islamic

windows of Conventional Banks as selected by MUFAP.

Net Assets (September 30, 2023)	Rs. 29,615.30 million				
NAV (September 30, 2023)	Rs. 10 per unit				
Fund Stability Rating	AA+(f)				
Performance	Distribution per unit Return Net Assets (mn.				
Year Ended June 30, 2023	1.5463	16.91%	24,739.20		
Year Ended June 30, 2022	0.9307	9.79%	16,067.24		
Year Ended June 30, 2021	0.6414	6.62%	7,514.91		
For the period from February 13, 2020 to June 30, 2020	0.3705	10.03%	1,492.97		

### **ABL Financial Sector Fund (Income Scheme)**

Date of Launch: August 31, 2023

Par Value: Rs. 10/-

Benchmark: Six (6) Months KIBOR Rates

Net Assets (September 30, 2023)	Rs. 972.59 million
NAV (September 30, 2023)	Rs. 10.0119 per unit

# **ABL Pension Fund (Voluntary Pension Scheme)**

Date of Launch: August 20, 2014

Par Value: Rs. 100/-

Net Assets (September 30, 2023)- Rs.553.09 million						
Return Performance	Year Ended June 30, 2023	Year Ended June 30, 2022	Year Ended June 30, 2021	Year Ended June 30, 2020	Year Ended June 30, 2019	
Equity Sub- Fund	(1.33%)	(16.07%)	41.26%	(0.20%)	(19.15%)	
Debt Sub- Fund	17.51%	7.29%	5.24%	15.54%	7.28%	
Money Market Sub-Fund	15.66%	7.54%	5.12%	11.95%	7.49%	

# ABL Islamic Pension Fund (Shariah Compliant - Voluntary Pension Scheme)

Date of Launch: August 20, 20214

Par Value: Rs. 100/-

Net Assets (August 31, 2023)- Rs. 286.63 million					
Return	Year Ended				
Performance	June 30, 2023	June 30, 2022	June 30, 2021	June 30, 2020	June 30, 2019
Equity Sub-	1.24%	(14.44%)	45.03%	0.36%	(19.97%)
Fund					
Debt Sub-	10.65%	5.30%	4.82%	7.97%	3.46%
Fund					
Money Market	12.71%	6.70%	4.48%	7.11%	3.51%
Sub-Fund					

# **Performance of Listed Associated Companies**

#### **Allied Bank Limited**

in millions)	December	December	December	December	December 31,
	31, 2022	31, 2021	31, 2020	31, 2019	2018
Profit After tax	21,194	17,313	18,029	14,112	12,880
Total Assets	2,250,972	2,010,157	1,590,458	1,481,121	1,350,598
Total Equity	127,811	127,245	131,560	115,351	107,304
Dividend per Share Cash	85%	80%	80%	80%	80%

#### **Ibrahim Fiber Limited**

in millions)	December	December	December	December	December 31, 2018
	31, 2022	31, 2021	31, 2020	31, 2019	2018
Profit After tax	5,311	5,407	(1,295)	998	2,107
Total Assets	83,076	71,739	59,588	53,570	47,008
Total Equity	54,450	49,212	37,865	39,474	38,957
Dividend per Share Cash	0%	20%	0%	10%	15%

### 4.4. Role of the Fund Manager of the Pension Fund Manager

The Pension Fund Manager shall designate a Fund Manager for **ABL-GOKP PENSION FUND**, who shall, use his investment experience and knowledge of pensions and based on the input from the Research Department, structure the portfolios for the individual Sub-Funds.

Additionally, the allocation of exposure to the asset classes within the sub funds offered under the Pension Fund, will be reviewed by the Investment Committee from time to time and based on the assessment of key economic indicators. The Fund Manager will, in conjunction with the Investment Committee of the Pension Fund, decide on the relative attractiveness and valuation of various investment avenues available. However, such changes shall be made within the limits set out in the Approved Investment Policy specified by the Commission.

#### DISCLAIMER

The Pension Fund Manager shall not be under any liability except such liability as may be expressly assumed by it under the Rules, Regulations and the Constitutive Documents, nor shall the Pension Fund Manager (save as herein otherwise provided) be liable for any act or omission of the Trustee nor for anything except for its own gross negligence or willful breach of duty and the acts and omissions of all persons to whom it may delegate any of its functions as manager as if they were its own acts and omissions. If for any reason it becomes impossible or impracticable to carry out the provisions of the Constitutive Documents, the Pension Fund Manager shall not be under any liability therefore or thereby and it shall not incur any liability by reason of any error of law or any matter or thing done or suffered or omitted to be done in good faith hereunder. The Pension Fund Manager shall not be liable for any loss caused to the Fund or to the value of the Trust Property due to any elements or circumstances of Force Majeure.

#### 4.5. Obligations of the Pension Fund Manager

- 4.5.1 The responsibilities of the Pension Fund Manager are to invest and manage the assets of the Pension Fund according to the provisions of the Trust Deed, the Rules, the Regulations and the provisions contained in the offering documents in good faith, to the best of its ability, and without gaining any undue advantage for itself or any Connected Persons or its officers in the best interest of the Employee(s).
- 4.5.2 The Pension Fund Manager shall be responsible for all acts and omissions of all persons or agents to whom it may delegate the performance of its functions as Pension Fund Manager of the Pension Fund, howsoever designated, as if they were its own acts or omissions.

- 4.5.3 The Pension Fund Manager shall account to the Trustee for any loss in value of the assets of the Pension Fund caused by its negligence, reckless or willful acts or omissions.
- 4.5.4 The Pension Fund Manager shall maintain proper accounts and records at its principal office, to enable a complete and accurate view to be formed of the assets and liabilities and the income and expenditure of each of the Sub-Funds, all transactions for the account of the Sub-Funds and Contributions received by the Pension Fund and withdrawals by the Employee(s) including detail of tax penalties and withholding tax deducted at source and transfer or receipt of balances in the Individual Pension Accounts of the Employee(s) to or from other pension fund managers.
- 4.5.5 The Pension Fund Manager shall prepare and transmit an annual report, together with a copy of the balance sheet and income and expenditure account and the Auditor's report of the Sub-Funds, within four months of the close of each Accounting Period to the Commission, Employer and the Employee(s), and the balance sheet and income and expenditure account shall comply with the requirements of the Regulations.
- 4.5.6 The Pension Fund Manager shall within one month of the close of the first, and third quarter and within two months of close of second quarter of each Accounting Period, prepare and make available on its website for the Employee(s), the Employer and the Commission a balance sheet as on the end of that quarter and a profit and loss account for that quarter, whether audited or otherwise, of the Pension Fund, and the balance sheet and income and expenditure account shall comply with the requirements of the Regulations; provided that the Pension Fund Manager may, with the prior approval of the Employer, post the said quarterly accounts on its website instead of mailing them to the Employee(s). However it shall make the printed copy available to a Employee(s) free of cost as and when required.
- 4.5.7 The Pension Fund Manager shall maintain the Register and inform the Commission and Employer of the address where the Register is kept. For this purpose, it may appoint a Registrar, who shall maintain Employee(s)' records, issue statements of account and receipts for Contributions, process withdrawals and carry out all other related activities.
- 4.5.8 The Pension Fund Manager will appoint with the consent of the Trustee, at the establishment of the Pension Fund and upon any vacancy, the Auditor. Such auditor shall not be appointed for more than five consecutive years.
- 4.5.9 The Pension Fund Manager shall furnish to the Commission within one month of the close of each Accounting Period (i) particulars of the personnel (executive, research and other) managing the Pension Fund, (ii) total number of Employee(s), (iii) total value of all Individual Pension Accounts, (iv) total Contributions for the Accounting Period (if any), and (v) such other information that may be prescribed by the Commission from time to time.
- 4.5.10 The Pension Fund Manager shall send an account statement as at the 30th June and the 31st December each year, within thirty days thereafter to each Employee(s), , giving detail of the amounts received or withdrawn and tax deducted and the number of units allocated and held, the current valuation of the units and such other information as may be specified by the Commission, free of charge.
- 4.5.11 The Pension Fund Manager may send an account statement each time when there is an activity in the Employee(s) account within seven working days of such activity and the Employee(s) may be entitled to receive any information, in respect of his account, at any time, on written application either physically or online;
- 4.5.12 The Pension Fund Manager shall send any other statement or certificate to the Employee(s) which may be necessary under the Rules and the Agreement.
- 4.5.13 The Pension Fund Manager shall furnish to the Commission and the Employer a copy of its annual report and half yearly report, together with copies of the balance sheet, profit and loss account,

directors' report and auditors' report within one month of its annual general meeting and shall furnish its half yearly report to the Commission within two months of close of its half year;

- 4.5.14 Specify a criterion in writing to provide for a diverse panel of brokers at the time of offering of a pension fund or for any subsequent change and shall not enter, on behalf of a pension fund, into transactions with any broker that exceed twenty-five per cent or more of the brokerage or the commission payable by a pension fund in any one accounting year. Provided that this restriction shall not apply to transactions relating to money market instruments or debt securities.
- 4.5.16 The Pension Fund Manager shall provide and replicate all recorded information to the trustee and shall arrange the reconciliation of these records with the Trustee and Employer on a periodic basis as may be mutually agreed between the parties or as specified by the Commission.

#### 4.6. Restrictions for Pension Fund Manager

The Pension Fund Manager shall not:

- a) offer this Employer Pension Fund to any other person except the Eligible Persons.
- b) merge with, acquire or take over management of any other pension fund or pension fund manager unless it has obtained the prior approval of the Commission in writing for such merger, acquisition or takeover;
- c) pledge any of the securities held or beneficially owned by the Pension Fund except for the benefit of the Pension Fund;
- d) Purchase from or sell any security to any connected person or Employee except with the approval of its Board of Directors in writing and consent of the Trustee
- e) participate in a joint account with others in any transaction; except for placement of orders under a single Universal Identification Number (UIN) subject to mechanism approved by the commission
- f) make any investment with the purpose of having the effect of vesting the management or control in the Pension Fund; or
- g) employ as a broker, directly or indirectly, any of its directors, officers or Employees or a member of a family of such person which shall include spouse, parents, children, brothers and sisters and enter into transactions with any broker who is a Connected Person where such transactions shall equal or exceed twenty-five per cent or more of the brokerage or commission paid by the Pension Fund in any one Accounting Period;
- h) Enter into a short sale transaction in any security.

#### 4.7. Retirement or Removal of the Pension Fund Manager

- 4.7.1 The Employer in pursuance of sub-rule 11 of rule 4 of the KPK Rules, may remove/terminate the Pension Fund Manager from the management of the pension fund after giving 30 days prior written notice of removal/termination to Pension Fund Manager and intimation to Trustee and Commission.
- 4.7.2 The Pension Fund Manager may, by giving at least 3 months' prior written notice in writing to the Employees as per the Agreement with the prior written approval of the Commission and the

Employer, retire from management of the Pension Fund.

- 4.7.3 Where the Pension Fund Manager has given notice in accordance with Clause 4.7.2, its retirement shall be effective on the date, being within 3 months after the date of such notice, the Employer, shall appoint a new pension fund manager to manage the Pension Fund.
- 4.7.4 The Trustee may, by giving notice in writing to the Pension Fund Manager with the prior approval of the Employer and the Commission remove the Pension Fund Manager if any of the following events have occurred:
- (a) the Pension Fund Manager has contravened the provisions of the Trust Deed in any material respect and has failed to rectify the contravention within (i) 30 days from the date of notice in writing given by the Trustee to the Pension Fund Manager regarding the contravention, such notice to be given under intimation to the Commission, or (ii) such other period as may be specified by the Commission, in respect of the subject contravention; *provided that* such notice by itself shall not be considered as an admission of contravention on part of the Pension Fund Manager who shall have the right to defend such action;
- (b) the Pension Fund Manager goes into liquidation (other than voluntary liquidation on terms previously agreed to with the Trustee for purpose of reconstruction and amalgamation); or
- (c) a receiver is appointed over any of the assets of the Pension Fund Manager.
- 4.7.5 The removal of the Pension Fund Manager from management of the Pension Fund by the Trustee under Clause 4.7.4 shall be effective on the date on which, with the approval in writing of the Commission and prior consent of, the Employer subject to the condition that the Employer has appointed a new pension fund manager to manage the Pension Fund.
- 4.7.6 The Commission may, in exercise of its powers under the Rules, remove the Pension Fund Manager from management of the Pension Fund and appoint in its place a new pension fund manager to manage the Pension Fund in accordance with the Trust Deed and the Rules.
- 4.7.7 The Commission may, in exercise of its powers under the Rules, cancel the registration of the Pension Fund Manager as a pension fund manager, in which case the Pension Fund Manager, if not already removed from the management of the Pension Fund, shall stand removed from such management upon such cancellation.
- 4.7.8 If the Commission has cancelled the registration of the Pension Fund Manager as provided in Clause 4.7.7, the Employer shall appoint another pension fund manager to manage the Pension Fund in accordance with the Deed and the Rules.
- 4.7.9 Upon a new pension fund manager being appointed, the Pension Fund Manager shall take immediate steps to deliver all the documents and records pertaining to the Trust to the new pension fund manager and shall pay all sums due to the Trustee.
- 4.7.10 Upon its appointment the new pension fund manager shall exercise all the powers and enjoy all rights and shall be subject to all duties and obligations of the Pension Fund Manager hereunder as fully as though such new pension fund manager had originally been a party hereto.

- 4.7.11 If so directed by the Commission, the Pension Fund Manager shall not receive any Contributions from any of the Employee(s) or make any other transaction on account of the Pension Fund as from the date of issue of the notice as referred to in Clause 4.7.1, 4.7.4 or 4.7.6 or as from the date of issue of the Commission's order in writing under Rule 6 of the Rules.
- 4.7.12 The Trustee shall ensure that accounts of the Pension Fund till the day of the appointment of the new Pension Fund Manager are audited by the Auditors of the Pension Fund and the audit report is submitted, within one month from the date of such appointment, to the Commission, the Trustee and the new Pension Fund Manager. The Trustee with the approval of the Commission shall decide the cost of such interim audit and the same may be charged to the Pension Fund with the prior approval of the Commission.
- 4.7.13 The Pension Fund Manager, upon termination/removal/retirement, shall continue to manage the Pension fund until the entire balance in all Individual Pension Accounts of the Employees are not transferred in the Individual Pension Accounts of the respective Employees with one or more other Pension Fund Managers. For this purpose, the Pension Fund Manager shall share the relevant data with the new Pension Fund Manager(s), in accordance with the instructions given by the Employer. Both parties shall make best efforts to complete the process for transfer of Pension Fund balances within the stipulated period.

### 4.8. Obligations of Trustee of Pension Fund

- 4.8.1 The Trustee shall comply with the provisions of the Trust Deed and the Rules when performing any act or matter to be done by it in the performance of its duties and such acts or matters may also be performed on behalf of the Trustee by any officer or responsible official of the Trustee or by any nominee or agent appointed by the Trustee in consultation with the Pension Fund Manager; provided that the Trustee shall be responsible for the acts and omissions of all persons to whom it may delegate any of its duties, as if these were its own acts and omissions and shall account to the Pension Fund for any loss in value of the Trust Property where such loss has been caused by negligence or any reckless or willful act and / or omission of the Trustee or of any of its directors, officers, nominees or agents.
- 4.8.2 The Trustee shall exercise all due diligence and vigilance in carrying out its duties and in protecting the interests of the Employee(s). The Trustee shall not be under any liability on account of anything done or not done by the Trustee in good faith in accordance with or in pursuance of any request of the Pension Fund Manager, provided that the Trustee's actions and the Pension Fund Manager's requests are not in conflict with the provisions of the Trust Deed or the Rules. Whenever pursuant to any provision of the Trust Deed any certificate, notice, direction, instruction or other communication is to be given by the Pension Fund Manager to the Trustee, the Trustee may accept as sufficient evidence thereof a document signed or purporting to be signed on behalf of the Pension Fund Manager by any person whose signature the Trustee is for the time being authorized in writing by the Pension Fund Manager to accept.
- 4.8.3 The Trustee shall take into its custody or under its control all the Trust Property, including properties of the Sub-Funds and hold the same in trust for the Employee(s) in accordance with the Applicable Law, the Rules and the provisions of the Trust Deed.
- 4.8.4 The Trustee shall be liable for any act or omission of any agent with whom any Investments are deposited as if they were the acts or omissions of any nominee in relation to any Investment.

- 4.8.5 The Trustee shall be liable for the act and omission of the lender and its agent in relation to assets forming part of the property of the Pension Fund and, where borrowing is undertaken for the account of the Pension Fund, such assets may be registered in the lender's name or in that of a nominee appointed by the lender.
- 4.8.6 The Trustee shall ensure that the issue, redemption and cancellation of Units are carried out in accordance with the provisions of the Trust Deed and the Rules.
- 4.8.7 The Trustee shall ensure that the methods adopted by the Pension Fund Manager in calculating the values of the Units of each Sub-Fund are adequate and that the Net Asset Value is calculated in accordance with the provisions of the Trust Deed or as specified by the Commission.
- 4.8.8 The Trustee shall carry out the instructions of the Pension Fund Manager in respect of Investments unless they are in conflict with the Investment Policy, the Offering Document or the Trust Deed.
- 4.8.9 The Trustee shall ensure that the Investment Policy and the borrowing limitations set out in the Trust Deed, the Rules and other conditions under which the Pension Fund was authorized are complied with.
- 4.8.10 The Trustee shall issue a report to be included in the annual report to be sent to Employee(s) whether, in the Trustee's opinion, the Pension Fund Manager has in all material respects managed the Pension Fund and the Sub-Funds in accordance with the provisions of the Trust Deed, and if the Pension Fund Manager has not done so, the respects in which it has not done so and the steps which the Trustee has taken in respect thereof.
- 4.8.11 The Trustee shall ensure that Units are not allocated until Contributions have been received.
- 4.8.12 The Trustee shall immediately inform the Commission under intimation to the Employer (if material), if any action of the Pension Fund Manager contravenes any provision of the Ordinance, the Act, the rules, constitutive document, offering document, guidelines, codes, circulars, directives or any other applicable laws.
- 4.8.13 The Trustee shall comply with the directions of the Commission given in the interest of the Employee(s).
- 4.8.14 The Trustee shall, from time to time appoint, remove or replace one or more Custodian(s) as an agent of the Trustee at one or more locations, on terms and conditions to be agreed between the Custodian and the Trustee;
- 4.8.15 The Trustee shall make available or ensure that there is made available to the Pension Fund Manager such information as the Pension Fund Manager may reasonably require from time to time in respect of the Trust Property and all other matters relating to the Pension Fund.
- 4.8.16 The Trustee shall be entitled to require the Auditors to provide such reports as may be agreed between the Trustee and the Pension Fund Manager and as may be considered necessary to facilitate the Trustee in issuing the certification required under the Rules. The Trustee shall endeavor to provide the certification at the earliest date reasonably possible.

- 4.8.17 The Trustee shall promptly provide proxies or other forms of power of attorney to the order of the Pension Fund Manager with regards to any voting rights attaching to any Investments.
- 4.8.18 The Commission may, if it is satisfied that it is necessary and expedient so to do in the interest of the Employee(s), or in the interest of the capital market public and Employees, by an order in writing, give such directions to the Trustee which are essential to enforce the Rules including but not limited to making arrangements for safe custody of assets of the Pension Fund, submission of reports and disclosure of information.
- 4.8.19 The Trustee shall, if requested by Pension Fund Manager and may if it considers necessary for the protection of Trust Property or safeguarding the interest of Employee(s),, institute or defend any suit, proceeding, arbitration or inquiry or any corporate or shareholders' action in respect of the Trust Property or any part thereof, with full powers to sign, swear, verify and submit pleading and affidavits, to file documents, to give evidence, to appoint and remove counsel and to do all incidental acts, things and deeds through the Trustee's authorized directors and officers. All costs, charges and expenses (including legal fees) incurred in instituting or defending any such action shall be borne by the Pension Fund and the Trustee shall be indemnified against all such costs, charges and expenses, provided that no such indemnity shall be available in respect of any action taken against the Trustee for negligence or breach of fiduciary duties in connection with its duties as the Trustee under the Trust Deed or the Rules.
- 4.8.20 The Trustee shall obtain and maintain replication of all the records of the Employee(s) maintained by the Pension Fund Manager or the Registrar, as the case may be, and shall keep the records updated on fortnightly basis.

## 4.9. Retirement or Change of Trustee

- 4.9.1 The Trustee shall not be entitled to retire voluntarily or otherwise except upon the appointment of a new trustee. In the event of the Trustee desiring to retire, the Pension Fund Manager with the prior written approval of the Commission and within a period of three months of the Trustee giving notice of its intention to retire to the Pension Fund Manager shall by a deed supplemental hereto under the seal of the Pension Fund Manager and the Trustee appoint a new trustee under the provisions of the Rules in place of the retiring Trustee and also provide in such deed for the automatic vesting of all the assets of the Trust in the name of the new trustee. The retirement of the Trustee shall take effect at the same time as the new trustee is appointed and the supplemental trust deed reflecting this appointment is executed. The Trustee shall ensure that accounts of the Pension Fund till the day of the appointment of the new Trustee are audited by the Auditors and the audit report is submitted within one-month time from the date of such appointment to the Commission, the newly appointed Trustee and the Pension Fund Manager. The Trustee with the approval of the Commission shall decide the cost of such interim audit and the same may be charged to the Pension Fund with the prior approval of the Commission.
- 4.9.2 If the Trustee goes into liquidation (otherwise than for the purpose of amalgamation or reconstruction on terms previously agreed to with the Pension Fund Manager) or ceases to carry on business of trusteeship or a receiver of its undertaking is appointed or it becomes ineligible to act as a trustee of the Pension Fund or its registration as a trustee has been suspended or cancelled by the Commission under the provisions of the Rules, the Pension Fund Manager shall forthwith by instrument in writing remove the Trustee from its appointment under the Trust Deed and shall by the same or some other instrument in writing simultaneously appoint as trustee some other company or corporation according to the provisions of the Rules and the Trust Deed as the new trustee.

- 4.9.3 The Commission after giving thirty days' notice, may remove the Trustee by order in writing on grounds of any material default or non-compliance with the provisions of the Rules or the Trust Deed, negligence of its duties or incompetence in performing its duties or if the Commission is of the opinion that the Trustee has otherwise neglected or failed to comply with any order or direction of the Commission and considers that it would be in the interest of the Employee(s) so to do; *provided that* such notice shall not per se be regarded as an admission of contravention on part of the Trustee who shall have the right to defend such notice or action.
- 4.9.4 The Pension Fund Manager may also remove the Trustee with the prior approval of the Commission after giving thirty days' notice if the Pension Fund Manager feels that the Trustee is charging a remuneration that is not comparable to the market norm and it would be in the interest of the Employee(s) to appoint another trustee. For this purpose, if the Pension Fund Manager, based on a firm quotation or offer received from an alternate institution (qualified to be appointed as trustee of a pension fund) determines that the remuneration being paid to the Trustee is not comparable to the market norm and that for this reason it would be in the interest of the Employee(s) to appoint another trustee on such favorable terms, it will issue a thirty days' notice of removal of the Trustee on this ground; *provided that* after receiving such notice from the Pension Fund Manager, the Trustee shall have the option to continue as trustee of the Pension Fund on such favorable terms offered by the alternate institution or to retire as trustee of the Pension Fund and notify the Pension Fund Manager accordingly. The change of Trustee shall become effective with the Commission's approval once the newly appointed trustee takes charge of all duties and responsibilities.
- 4.9.5 Upon the appointment of a new trustee, the Trustee shall immediately deliver all the documents and records to the new trustee and shall transfer all the Trust Property and any amount deposited in any Individual Pension Account held by or for the Trustee under any Approved Income Payment Plan to the new trustee and shall make payments to the new trustee of all sums due from the Trustee.
- 4.9.6 The new trustee shall exercise all the powers and enjoy all rights and shall be subject to all duties and obligations of the Trustee hereunder as fully as though such new trustee had originally been a party hereto as trustee of the Pension Fund.
- 4.9.7 Notwithstanding the removal or resignation of the Trustee and its subsequent discharge from its duties under the Trust Deed and the Rules, the Trustee shall remain entitled to the benefit of the terms of the Trust Deed till the removal or resignation of the Trustee is effective without prejudice to the Trustee's responsibility or obligation to liquidate any liability for which the Trustee may have become liable under the Trust Deed and / or the Rules.

# 4.10. Transfer Agent / Registrar

The Pension Fund Manager will perform duties as the Transfer Agent of the Fund until any further notice and intimation to the Trustee. The Pension Fund Manager will be responsible for maintaining the Unit Holder's Register, preparing and issuing account statements, Unit Certificates and dividend warrants/advice and providing related services to the Unit Holders.

#### 4.11. Auditor

The Auditor of the Fund are:

# A.F. Ferguson & Co

State Life Building No1-C I.I. Chundrigar Rd, City Railway Colony,

Karachi, Karachi City, Sindh

- 4.11.1 The Pension Fund Manager shall, with the consent of the Trustee, appoint as the Auditor a firm of chartered accountants who shall be independent of the auditor of the Pension Fund Manager and the Trustee. The Pension Fund Manager may at any time, with the concurrence of the Trustee, and shall, if required by the Commission, remove the Auditor and appoint another Auditor in its place. At all times the Pension Fund Manager shall ensure that the Auditor is appointed from the panel of auditors, if any, prescribed by the Commission for this purpose. The appointment of Auditor and contents of the Auditor's report shall be in accordance with provision of the Rules and Regulations. The Auditors shall have access to the records, books, papers, accounts and vouchers of the Trust, whether kept at the office of the Pension Fund Manager, Trustee, Custodian, Transfer Agent or elsewhere and shall be entitled to require from the Pension Fund Manager, Trustee and their Directors, Officers and Agents such information and explanations as considered necessary for the performance of audit. The Trustee shall be entitled to require the Auditors to provide such further reports as may be agreed between the Trustee and the Pension Fund Manager as may be considered necessary to facilitate the Trustee in issuing the certification required under the Regulations.
- 4.11.2 The Auditors shall prepare a written report to the **Employee(s)** on the accounts and books of accounts of the Trust and the balance sheet, profit and loss account, cash flow statement and statement of movement in **Employee(s)**` Funds and on every other document forming part of the balance sheet and profit and loss account, including notes, statements or schedules appended thereto.
- 4.11.3 The contents of the Auditors report shall be as mentioned in the Regulations.
- 4.11.4 The Commission shall monitor general financial condition of the Pension Fund, and, at its discretion, may order special audit and appoint an auditor who shall not be the external auditor of the Pension Fund, to carry out detailed scrutiny of the affairs of the Pension Fund, provided that the Commission may, during the course of the scrutiny, pass such interim orders and give directions as it may deem appropriate. On receipt of the special audit report, the Commission may direct the Pension Fund Manager to do or to abstain from doing certain acts and issue directives for immediate compliance which shall be complied forthwith or take such other action as the Commission may deem fit.

# 4.12. Legal advisor

## Ijaz Ahmed Ijaz Ahmed & Associates

86-S, M1 Commercial Plaza Behind AL Fatah Store, Paragon City Lahore, Pakistan

#### 4.13. Bankers

The bankers to the Fund may include banks as per the discretion of the Management Company to change from time to time. The Trustee shall operate the bank accounts on instruction from the Management Company.

#### 4.14. Bank Accounts

The Trustee shall, at the request of the Pension Fund Manager from time to time, open separate Bank Accounts in Bank titled "CDC-Trustee **ABL-GOKP PENSION FUND**", or any other as deemed necessary, at designated Bank(s) for the Pension Fund and each Sub-Fund for, inter alia, (i) receipt of proceeds of Seed Capital Units and subsequent Contributions into the Pension Fund, (ii) credit of proceeds realized on account of any transfer or withdrawal at or before retirement or re-allocation in relation to Individual Pension Accounts, and (iii) withdrawals from Approved Income Payment Plans for the Pension Fund.

The Bank Accounts shall be opened by the Trustee at such branches of Banks/ Islamic bank or Islamic windows of conventional banks and financial institutions approved by the Pension Fund Manager having entity rating awarded by a credit rating agency approved by the Commission and at such locations as determined by the Pension Fund Manager, subject to compliance with Applicable Laws and after obtaining all necessary Approvals as may be required from time to time.

Notwithstanding anything in the Trust Deed, the beneficial ownership of the balances in the Bank Accounts opened by the Trustee shall vest at all times in the Employee(s) collectively.

Further on the request of the Pension Fund Manager, the Trustee shall open Sub account(s) titled:

- CDC Trustee ABL-GOKP PENSION FUND
- CDC Trustee ABL-GOKPPF Equity Sub Fund
- CDC Trustee ABL-GOKPPF Debt Sub Fund
- CDC Trustee ABL-GOKPPF Money Market Sub Fund
- CDC Trustee ABL-GOKPPF Equity Index Sub Fund

All bank charges for opening and maintaining Bank Accounts for the Trust shall be charged to the Fund.

## 4.15 INVESTMENT FACILITATORS

**ABL** Asset Management Company Limited shall nominate the person(s) to act as an Investment Facilitators for assisting the Eligible Person to participate in the applicable Allocation Plan. A list of Investment Facilitators is provided in Annexure "E".

## 5. CHARACTERISTICS OF THE PENSION FUND

# 5.1 Eligibility

5.1.1 In line with the permission granted by the Commission All Employees of KPK Government. appointed/recruited under the Khyber Pakhtunkhwa Civil Servants (Amendment) Act, 2022 or an Employee of the KPK Government, regularized as civil servant through any legal instrument, issued after coming into force of the Khyber Pakhtunkhwa Civil Servants (Amendment) Act, 2022 irrespective of the effective date of regularization, shall be eligible to contribute to the Pension Fund.

# 5.2 PROCEDURE FOR OPENING INDIVIDUAL PENSION ACCOUNTS

- 5.2.1 The Pension Fund Manager shall be responsible for obtaining all Approvals required in connection with the Pension Fund.
- 5.2.2 An Eligible Person joining the Pension Fund, must open an Individual Pension Account with the Pension Fund Manager using the Prescribed Account Opening Process through the digital portal established by the Employer which is duly integrated with the systems of the Pension Fund Manager or such other process as may be prescribed by the Employer in consultation with the Pension Fund Manager.
- 5.2.3 The Pension Fund Manager shall decide, in consultation with authorized person or office of the Employer, for receiving the completed Prescribed Application Forms and Contributions from on behalf of the Employees either in hard copy or through electronic means. Details of these arrangements shall be duly disclosed by the Employer to the Employees in an appropriate manner.

- 5.2.4 The Pension Fund Manager in coordination with the Employer shall ensure that Prescribed Application Forms can be obtained in either hard copy or electronic form from the Pension Fund Manager or the Employer as the case may be, the Authorized Branches of Pension Fund Manager and Investment Facilitators and/or downloaded from the Pension Fund Manager's website or Employer's Digital Portal/Platform..
- 5.2.5 Each applicant, in case of account opening through Physical Forms, shall obtain a receipt signed and stamped by an authorized officer of the Pension Fund Manager or the Employer as the case may be for acknowledging the receipt of the application and copies of other documents prescribed therein.
- 5.2.6 If an application received pursuant to this clause is found by the Pension Fund Manager to be complete and correct in all material respects, the Pension Fund Manager shall issue an acknowledgement in writing of the opening of the Employee's Individual Pension Account with the Pension Fund Manager and shall also confirm the Allocation Plan opted by the Employee with details of Sub-Funds.
- 5.2.7 The Pension Fund Manager in consultation with the Employer may decide to accept applications for opening Individual Pension account through electronic means subject to the conditions of Customer Due Diligence (CDD) / Know Your Customer Policy (KYC), specified by the Commission through notifications / circulars / Rules / Regulations, etc.
- 5.2.8 The application procedure described in Clauses 5.2.1 to 5.2.7 may be altered by the Pension Fund Manager from time to time in consultation with Employer on behalf of Eligible Person and with the approval of the Commission, where required. Such alterations shall be announced by the Pension Fund Manager from time to time through its website and the Employer through its portal/platform shall be deemed to correspondingly alter the provisions of Clauses 5.2.1 to 5.2.7 without the need to execute a supplemental offering document.

#### **5.3 CONTRIBUTION PROCEDURES**

- 5.3.1 A Employee(s) and/or their Employer, shall endeavor to make contribution in lumpsum or in installment, as the case may be.
- 5.3.2 The Pension Fund Manager shall send an acknowledgement of receipt of each Contribution along with a statement of account to the Employee within one week of the receipt of the Contribution or any other frequency as decided in consultation with the Employer or prescribed by the Commission from time to time.
- 5.3.3 The Pension Fund shall offer Insurance Policy to each Employee(s) (after launch of the Fund) subject to the conditions prescribed by the Employer. The premium/contribution/charges paid to the Insurance companies to cover the Insurance Policy may be charge to the Pension Fund.
- 5.3.4 The Pension Fund Manager may decide to accept contributions through electronic means in consultation with Employer and the Trustee.
- 5.3.5 Any alterations to the contribution procedure enunciated in Clauses 5.3.1 to 5.3.4 arising out of amendments to or substitutions of the Rules and/or the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 and/or the Income Tax Rules shall be announced by the Pension Fund Manager from time to time and such alterations shall be deemed to correspondingly alter the provisions of Clauses 5.3.1 to 5.3.4 without need for executing a supplemental offering document.

#### 5.4 INDIVIDUAL PENSION ACCOUNTS

- 5.4.1 The Pension Fund Manager shall assign a distinctive/unique Customer ID to the Individual Pension Account of each Employee(s).. Such unique Individual Pension Account number shall be issued in line with the criteria prescribed by the Commission.
- 5.4.2 Contributions received from or on behalf of any Employee(s) by Trustee in funds on any Business Day shall be credited to the Sub-fund(s) in accordance with Allocation Plan

- applicable to the Employee(s) and the Pension Fund Manager shall allocate such number of Units of the relevant Sub-Funds. The Units shall be allocated at Net Asset Value notified by the Pension Fund Manager at the close of that Business Day.
- 5.4.3 Contributions shall not be treated as having been received from or on behalf of any Employee(s) unless they are received by the Trustee in realized in the bank account(s) of the fund and only the such realized amount shall be treated as the Contribution received.
- 5.4.4 If any Contribution is received from or on behalf of any Employee(s) on a day which is not a Business Day, it will be treated as having been received on the first following Business Day.

#### 5.5 CHANGE OF THE PENSION FUND MANAGER/ PENSION FUND

- 5.5.1 Employee shall be entitled to transfer in accordance with the terms of the Trust Deed the whole of their Individual Pension Account with the ABL-GOKP PENSION FUND to a pension fund managed by another pension fund manager with whom the Employer has made similar arrangements.
- 5.5.2 No change, whatsoever called, shall be deducted for any transfer of a Employee(s)'s Individual Pension Account to a pension fund managed by another pension fund manager.
- 5.5.3 The Pension Fund Manager shall use the funds received and realized on for the account of a Employee(s)'s Individual Pension Account from a pension fund managed by another pension fund manager to purchase such number of Units of the relevant Sub-Funds as is determined in accordance with the Trust Deed and the Units shall be purchased at Net Asset Value notified at the close of the Business Day on which such realized funds are received by the Trustee.
- 5.5.4 If an Employee(s) desires to transfer his Individual Pension Account, the Employee(s) shall specify in an application given to the Pension Fund Manager and copy to the Employer, the name of the new pension fund manager, the name of the new pension fund, the individual pension account number with the new pension fund manager and the Units or Amount held in the Employee(s)'s Individual Pension Account to be transferred. The application shall be given in a form prescribed by the Pension Fund Manager in consultation with the Employer through this Offering Document.
- 5.5.5 The transfer of individual Pension account from one Pension Fund Manager to another Pension Fund Manager or from one Pension fund to another Pension fund shall only take place as per discretion of the Employee(s) and the notice for the change of the Pension Fund Manager or Pension fund, shall be sent by the Employee(s)to the Employer at least seven working days before the effective date of the proposed change and the Pension Fund Managers shall record such transactions as transfer in the statement of account of the Employee(s).. For this purpose, the units shall be encashed at the net asset value of each sub-fund notified on the working day prior to the date of transfer.
- 5.5.6 The transferred amount shall be used to purchase the units of the sub-funds of the pension fund maintained by the new Pension Fund Manager at the net asset value notified at the close of the working day, of the receipt amount, on such percentage according to the applicable allocation policy.
- 5.5.7 In the event the Commission cancels the registration of the Pension Fund Manager as a pension fund manager or discontinues the authorization of the Pension Fund, in each case in accordance with the Rules and other Applicable Laws, the Pension Fund Manager shall, as soon as practicably possible thereafter, transfer the Individual Pension Accounts of the Employee(s) to pension funds managed by other pension fund managers as selected by the Employee(s) or as directed by the Commission or Employer.

#### 5.6 REGISTER OF EMPLOYEES

- 5.6.1 The Pension Fund Manager shall perform the Registrar Functions directly or it may appoint a Registrar for such purpose, but in each case the responsibility for performing the Registrar Functions shall be that of the Pension Fund Manager itself. Where the Pension Fund Manager appoints a Registrar for performing the Registrar Functions, the Pension Fund Manager shall ensure that the Registrar complies with all relevant provisions of the Trust Deed and the Rules.
- 5.6.2 The Pension Fund Manager or, as the case may be, the Registrar shall maintain the Register at their respective registered office.
- 5.6.3 The Pension Fund Manager shall maintain a register of Employees of the pension fund and inform the Commission, the trustee and the Employer of the address where the register is kept.
- 5.6.4 The Pension Fund Manager shall or shall ensure that the Registrar shall at all reasonable times during Business Hours give the Trustee and the Employer or their representatives access to the Register and to all subsidiary documents and records or certified copies thereof and to inspect the same with or without notice and without any charge. The Commission may however at any time inspect, remove or take possession of the register without any prior notice.
- 5.6.5 The Registrar shall, within seven working days of receiving a written request from any Employee, give to such Employee (whether by post, courier or through electronic means) details of such Employee's account in the Register. Such service shall be provided free of charge to any Employee so requesting once in any financial year. The Pension Fund Manager may, with the approval of Employer, prescribe charges for servicing any additional requests. The Pension Fund Manager may, with the approval of the Commission, prescribe charges for servicing any additional requests which shall be disclosed through Supplementary Offering Document.
- 5.6.6 The Register shall, in respect of each Employee, shall contain the information required by or under the Rules, the Guidelines and such other information as may be specified by the Commission from time to time or required by the Pension Fund Manager and the Employer which at the minimum, may contain the following information:
- a) Registration Number;
- b) Individual Pension Account Number;
- c) Full names, father's name, residency status, CNIC number (in respect of Pakistani Nationals)/ NICOP number (in respect of Overseas Pakistanis), National Tax Number (NTN) if applicable and address of the Employee;
- d) If Employee is registered through Employer, the Individual Pension Account Number will be linked to an Employer Account that will contain the following:
  - i. Employer name;
  - ii. Registered Address;
  - iii. NTN;
  - iv. Number of Employees contributing in VPS; and
  - v. Telephone Number & Email Addresses.
- e) Date of Birth and Gender of the Employee;
- f) Complete record of the amount and date of each contribution paid by the Employee;
- g) Complete record of the amount and date of each contribution paid by the Employer;
- h) Date and Amount of the incoming and the outgoing transfers;

- i) The number of Sub-Funds Units Allocated and Standing in the name of the Employee in the Individual Pension Account or Approved Income Payment Plan balances;
- j) The date on which the name of every Employee(s) was entered in respect of the Sub-Fund Units standing in his/ her name;
- k) Tax/ Zakat status of the Employee(s);;
- 1) Next of Kin;
- m) Record of Specimen signatures of the Employee(s);;
- n) Information on retirement of the Employee(s) and the payments made or to be made;
- o) Information on death and transfer of account to heirs; and
- p) Such other information as may be specified by the Commission, the Employer or Pension fund Manager may require.
- 5.6.7 The Register shall be conclusive evidence as to the Units of Sub-Funds held in a Employee(s) Individual Pension Account or balances of the Employee(s) Approved Income Payment Plan.
- 5.6.8 Any change of address or status of any Employee(s) shall forthwith be notified in writing to the Registrar who, upon being satisfied with the supporting evidence provided therefore, shall update the Register with the change.
- 5.6.9 The Employee(s) or his successors (in case of death of the Employee(s)), as the case may be, shall be the only persons to be recognized by the Trustee, the Employer, the Pension Fund Manager and the Registrar as having any right, title or interest in or to the Units held by the Employee(s) and the Trustee, the Pension Fund Manager and the Registrar may recognize the Employee(s) as the absolute owner thereof and shall not be bound by any notice to the contrary and shall not be bound to take notice of or to see to the execution of any trust, except where required by any court of competent jurisdiction.
- 5.6.10 Upon being satisfied that any Contribution has been received and realized by the Trustee from Employer on behalf of the Employee(s),, the Registrar shall, within one week (seven days) of the receipt of the Contribution, issue a receipt therefor together with an account statement, either physically or electronically, that shall constitute evidence of the number of Sub-Fund Units or Individual Pension Account or Approved Income Payment Plan balances registered in the name of the Employee(s) and shall contain such other information as may be prescribed by the Commission/ Employer from time to time.
- 5.6.11 While making payment of the benefits from the Pension Fund to any Employee(s),, the Pension Fund Manager shall ensure that adequate description of the reasons for the payment (for example, retirement, disability, death benefit) is mentioned in the Register.
- 5.6.12 The Pension Fund Manager shall ensure that the information on the Register shall remain accessible for three years after the last amount in relation to the Pension Fund payable to the Employee(s),, to any other pension fund manager nominated by the Employee(s) to which the Individual Pension Account has been transferred or to any heirs or nominated survivors of the Employee(s),, has been paid.

# 5.7 Date of Retirement

5.7.1 Retirement age of an Employee shall be such date as prescribed by the Employer. The Pension Fund Manager shall send a notice to an Employee under intimation to the Employer at least thirty days

before the chosen date of retirement informing him/her the options available to him/her on retirement. The notice should be sent physically on the mailing address as well as electronically on email or cellular phone number.

In case of contribution made by the Employer on behalf of Employees, the Retirement Date of each Employee shall be the Date of Retirement confirmed by the Employer in writing in accordance with the term of employment with each Employee.

- 5.7.2 If an Employee suffers from any of the following disabilities, as mentioned in VPS Rules, 2005, which render the Employee unable to continue any employment and the Employee may, so elects, be treated as having reached the retirement age at the date of such disability and all the relevant provisions shall apply accordingly namely:
  - (a) loss of two or more limbs or loss of a hand and a foot;
  - (b) loss of eyesight;
  - (c) deafness in both ears;
  - (d) severe facial disfigurement;
  - (e) loss of speech;
  - (f) paraplegia or hemiplegia;
  - (g) lunacy;
  - (h) advanced case of incurable disease; or
  - (i) any injury or disease resulting in a disability due to which the Employee is unable to continue any work or generate any income.

Subject to the requirement of the Rules, the Employer shall confirm any disability specified in Clause 5.7.2 happened with any Employee along with the mode of disbursement to such Employee. A doctor's assessment certificate confirming the said disability shall also be required to be submitted to the Pension Fund Manager.

#### 5.8 BENEFITS ON RETIREMENT

On the date of retirement of an Employee or, if such date is not a Business Day, on the first Business Day following the date of retirement all of the Units held by him in his Individual Pension Account shall be redeemed at Net Asset Value of each Unit notified at close of that day and the proceeds realized thereby shall be credited to his Individual Pension Account in the lower volatility scheme, which shall earn the rate of profit paid to depositors for deposits of a similar maturity by an Islamic Bank (or Islamic windows of conventional banks) selected by the Pension Fund Manager in its discretion. The Employee shall then have the following options, namely:

- (a) withdraw up to 20% of the accumulated balance or such amount from his Individual Pension Account as specified in the KPK Rules; and
- (b) to use the remaining amount to purchase an annuity from Insurance Company or to subscribe to a Pension Annuity Fund as approved by the Commission, as the case may be, of his choice; or
- (c) to enter into an agreement with the Pension Fund Manager to withdraw from the remaining amount in monthly installments according to an income payment plan, approved by the Commission with a minimum tenure of at least 20 years or such other period as prescribed by the Employer. Details of the Approved Income Payment Plan are disclosed in this Offering Document of the plan.
- (d)the transfer of an individual income payment plan account from one Pension Fund Manager to

- another Pension Fund Manager or from one income payment plan to another income payment plan shall only take place once in a financial year and notice for the change, specifying the name of new Pension Fund Manager and the income payment plan shall be sent by the Employee at least seven working days before the effective date of the proposed change.
- (e) At the expiry of the Approved Income Payment Plan according to clause (c) above, the Employee shall have option to use the outstanding balance in his/her Individual Pension account to purchase an Approved annuity plan from an Insurance Company, or to subscribe to the Pension Annity Fund of his/her choice and/or buy an Approved income payment plan for another term and/or to with-draw the amount from his/her account subject to the conditions laid down in the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001. According to the rules, the annuity purchased may be single life, joint or survivor life, level (with or without guarantee period), increasing, investment -linked and retail price index linked or with any additional features as may be offered by the Insurance Companies."

#### 5.9 WITHDRAWAL OF FUNDS BEFORE RETIREMENT

5.9.1 On any Business Day and from time to time before the date of retirement an Employee may withdraw from his balance in the Employee Pension Account Individual Pension Account, subject to KPK Rules, where such withdrawal shall be subject to the conditions laid down in the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 (XLIX of 2001). The withdrawals may be liable to withholding tax or tax penalty, and in case any such liability exists the amount of withholding tax or tax penalty shall be deducted by the Pension Fund Manager from the amount withdrawn and such deducted amount shall be paid to the relevant Authority. Moreover, if so prescribed by the Employer, such withdrawal may also result in withholding of the future contributions by the Employer or such other repercussions as prescribed by the Employer.

Employee(s) must understand that as per existing provisions of KPK Rules, in case an Employee withdraws any amount from his Individual Pension Account before attaining the retirement age; the employer shall stop making employer's contributions in the subject Individual Pension Account and shall not resume such contributions until the Employee deposits the withdrawn amount, along with an additional amount equal to one percent (1%) of the withdrawn amount for every completed month, since the date of withdrawal, in his Individual Pension Account.

- 5.9.2 Where the request made by an Employee under Clause 5.9.1 is for partial withdrawal from his Individual Pension Account, the request shall be given effect to by redemption of Units of Sub-Funds in such proportion that the remaining balance in his Individual Pension Account is in accordance with the Allocation Scheme last applicable for the Employee(s)..
- 5.9.3 If an Employee intends to withdraw funds from his Individual Pension Account before the date of his retirement, he must give written notice of his intention to the Pension Fund Manager in the form prescribed for such purpose by the Pension Fund Manager, with copy to Employer, specifying therein whether the withdrawal is required of the whole or part of the Units held by him, and in the case of part withdrawal, the percentage of Units to be withdrawn.
- 5.9.4 The Pension Fund Manager shall ensure that the withdrawal/redemption form referred to in Clause 5.9.3 shall be available from Authorized Branches of Pension Fund Manager or on its official website and Employer Platform/Portal. Such form shall, if completed by the Employee and submitted to any Authorized Branch of Pension Fund Manager, shall be taken to be the notice to the Pension Fund Manager referred to in that Clause 5.9.3.

- 5.9.5 On any Business Day being not later than the sixth (6th) Business Day after the Employee submitted the completed form to any Authorized Branch under Clause 5.9.3, the Pension Fund Manager shall, subject to Clause 5.9.2, redeem the relevant number of Units held by Employee in his Individual Pension Account at Net Asset Value notified at close of the day on which the Employee submitted the completed form as aforesaid or, if such day is not a Business Day, on the first Business Day following that day and the proceeds realized thereby shall be paid to the Employee subject to Clause 5.9.1.
- 5.9.6 The provisions relating to withdrawal of funds before the date of retirement set out in Clauses 5.9.1 to 5.9.5 may change due to amendments in or substitutions of the KPK Rules the Rules and/or the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001. Any such changes shall be deemed to become part of this Offering Document without the need for executing supplemental Constitutive Documents.

#### 5.10 BENEFITS ON DEATH BEFORE RETIREMENT

- 5.10.1 In case of death of an Employee before the date of retirement, all the Units of the Sub-Funds to his credit shall be redeemed at Net Asset Value notified at close of the day on which information of the Employee's death is given in writing to the Pension Fund Manager by any nominee, executor, administrator or successor of the deceased Employee or, if such day is not a Business Day, the first Business Day following such day, and the proceeds realized thereby shall be credited to the Employee's Individual Pension Account in the lower volatility scheme, which shall earn the rate of profit paid to depositors for deposits of a similar maturity by a Bank selected by the Pension Fund Manager in its discretion or invest/ transfer in the Money Market sub-fund
- 5.10.2 The total amount in the Individual Pension Account of the deceased Employee shall be divided among the survivor(s) or successors of the Employee according to the percentages specified in the succession certificate or as may be ordered by the court, and each successor shall then have the following options, namely:
  - (a) withdraw his share of the amount subject to the conditions laid down in the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 (XLIX of 2001);
  - (b) in accordance with the Rules, transfer his share of the amount into his own individual pension account with the pension fund manager of his/her choice or his/her new individual pension account or his income payment plan to be opened with the Pension Fund Manager of his/her choice;
  - (c) if he is aged fifty-five (55) years or more, use his share of the amount to purchase an Approved Annuity Plan on his life from an Insurance Company or
  - (d) if he is aged less than fifty-five (55) years, use his share of the amount to purchase a deferred Approved Annuity Plan on his life from an Insurance Company, to commence when he reaches the age of fifty-five (55) years or later.
  - (e) Payments at (c) and (d) above will be made directly by the Trustee to the Insurance Company without tax deduction on the instruction of the Pension Fund Manager."
- 5.10.3 Death benefits paid to successors of an Employee under any group life cover taken out by the Employee as part of the Pension Fund shall be additional benefits payable to the successor(s).
- 5.10.4 After an Employee's death the only persons recognized by the Trustee and the Pension Fund

Manager as having title to the Sub-Fund Units held in the deceased Employee's Individual Pension Account shall be the executors, administrators or successors of the deceased Employee.

5.10.5 Any person or persons becoming entitled pursuant to Clause 4.10.4 to any Sub-Fund Units in consequence of the death of any Employee may, subject as hereinafter provided, upon producing such evidence as to his title as the Trustee and Pension Fund Manager shall think sufficient, exercise rights under Clause 5.10.2; provided that the Pension Fund Manager or the Trustee shall not be liable or be involved in any manner whatsoever in any disputes among such executors, administrators or successors and/or the rest of the legal heirs or the legal representatives of the deceased Employee; provided further that all the limitations, restrictions and provisions of this Offering Document related to withdrawal of funds before retirement shall be applicable to withdrawals pursuant to Clause 5.10.2(a).

# 5.11 INSTRUCTIONS FROM EMPLOYEE(S)

All the instructions from a Employee or his, executors, administrators or survivors with regard to this Pension Fund shall be in writing.

#### 5.12 ALLOCATION SCHEME

5.12.1 The Pension Fund Manager shall offer Allocation Scheme to the Employees according to their risk/return and age requirements, through Sub-Funds of the **ABL-GOKP PENSION FUND**, managed by the Pension Fund Manager. The risk profile of each Allocation Scheme shall be dependent on the percentage allocation of that Scheme in the various Sub Fund. Each Allocation Scheme being offered can have exposure to the following sub-Funds:

- (a) ABL-GOKPPF Equity Sub Fund;
- (b) ABL-GOKPPF Debt Sub Fund; and
- (c) ABL-GOKPPF Money Market Sub Fund
- (d) ABL-GOKPPF Equity Index Sub Fund

The Contributions received from any Employee shall be allocated amongst the Sub-Funds in accordance with the Allocation Scheme selected by the Employee or default allocation scheme as laid in the Second and third schedule respectively (in terms of proviso of rule 5(d)(ii)) of the Employee KPK Rules. The Employee has the option to select any one from the Allocation Schemes or products being offered by the Pension Fund Manager at the date of opening of Individual Pension Account. The Employee may change the Allocation Scheme as and when required till retirement. Form for the change in Allocation Scheme must be sent by the Employee in writing or in such other form as may be acceptable to the Pension Fund Manager.

5.12.2 The Pension Fund Manager is offering the following Allocation Scheme to allocate the Contributions received from the Employees in the Sub-Funds:

#### (a) Life Cycle Allocation Scheme

This Allocation Scheme provides the Employees with an option to allocate their contributions in a pre- planned allocation strategy as per their age. The younger the Employee, the higher the allocation towards equity market due to his/her risk-taking ability with reference to long term horizon.

Δσε			Combined Exposure to Equity	Debt / Money Market Sub-Fund
For the period of 3 years from date of account opening		0%	0%	100%
Up to 30 years	Max 50%	Max 25%	Max 50%	Min 50%

Upto 40 years	Max 40%	Max 20%	Max 40%	Min 60%
Upto 50 years	Max 30%	Max 15%	Max 30%	Min 70%
Upto 60 years	Max 20%	Max 10%	Max 20%	Min 80%

The exact exposure to each Sub Fund within the Allocation Scheme would be decided by the Employee at time of account opening and may be changed at any time at the discretion of Employee subject to age limits prescribed under KPK Rules.

#### (b)Default Asset Allocation Scheme

In the event no choice is made by the Employee, a Pension Fund Manager, keeping in view the profile and age of the Employee, shall allocate the Contributions to the default Asset Allocation Scheme as follows

Δ σρ		Equity Sub Fund	Dent Siin Fiina	Money Market Sub- Fund
For the period of 3 years from date of account opening		0%	0%	100%
	30%	10%	30%	30%
Upto 40 years	20%	10%	30%	40%
Upto 50 years	15%	5%	20%	60%
Upto 60 years	10%	0%	10%	80%

- 5.12.3 Currently, as per the arrangement between Employer and Pension Fund Manager, the Employees are allowed to choose in accordance with Life Cycle Scheme as given in clause (a) above or in the event no choice is made by the Employee the Pension Fund Manager shall allocate his contribution to the Default Asset Allocation Scheme as given in clause (b) above. At a later stage, Employees may be given option to choose other Allocation schemes subject to approval by Employer.
- 5.12.4 If Pension Fund Manager want to provide additional allocation schemes or products, it may do so subject to the approval of the Commission.
- 5.12.5 The Employee shall have the option to change selection of Allocation Scheme to another Allocation Scheme being offered by the Pension Fund Manager as and when required till retirement. However, under KPK Rules, for the first three years of contribution by or on behalf of the Employee, such contribution shall remain invested in money market sub-fund.
- 5.12.6 The form for the change in Allocation Scheme shall be provided to the Pension Fund Manager by the Employee before the relevant date, in writing through submission of the Change of Allocation Scheme Form or in such form as may be acceptable to the Pension Fund Manager. On the relevant date, the Units shall be reallocated in accordance with the new Allocation Scheme and any subsequent allocations and reallocations shall be made according the new selected Allocation Scheme.
- 5.12.5 As a part of the Prescribed Application Form, each Employee shall provide an undertaking that Employee has no objection to the investment/allocation policy determined by the Employer or the Commission and offered by the Pension Fund Manager and Employee is fully aware of the associated risks of Allocation Scheme.

# 5.13 Allocation among the Sub-Funds

- 5.13.1 Each Employee will in turn be the holder of Units of the Sub-Funds in proportions determined in accordance with the applicable Allocation Scheme for the Employee.
- 5.13.2 The Pension Fund Manager shall manage the equity allocation within the prescribed limits of the scheme using various investment management tools. Increase or decrease in allocation to the Debt Sub Fund (normally higher-yielding than money market investments) in preference to the Money Market Sub Fund (normally lower risk and lower return investments) will be based on anticipated profit rates movements and risk-reward profile of underlying debt instruments.
- Provided that the Pension Fund Manager is permitted to place the seed capital i.e. Rs. 0.5 million of each Equity, Equity Index and Debt sub-funds in separate bank accounts instead of compliance with the Investment Policy prescribed in the Circular No. 12 of 2021 dated April 06, 2021 for the first three years from the date of launch of the Pension Fund.
- 5.13.3 The Pension Fund Manager will make reallocation of the Sub-Fund Units between the Sub-Funds at least once a year after three years from the date of initial contribution by an Employee to ensure that the allocations of Sub-Fund Units of all the Employees are according to the percentages selected by the Employees or deemed to be selected by the Employees.
- 5.13.4 All Employees of the Pension Fund will, in turn, be holders of Units of the Sub-Funds in various proportions.

# 5.14 Allocation Policy

- 5.14.1 An Employee has the option to select any of the applicable Allocation Scheme as per the KPK Rules in relation to the Contributions and shall make such selection at such date as may be prescribed. For the first three years from the date of opening of the Employees' Individual Pension Account (regardless of age); 100% contributions shall be allocated to the Money Market Sub Fund. An Employee may change any Allocation Scheme selected in relation to his/her Contributions to a different Allocation Scheme selected by him by sending Form of the change to the Pension Fund Manager through the Employer as per the Allocation Policy prescribed by the Employer and approved by the Commission.
- 5.14.2 The number of Units of any Sub-Fund purchased out of Contributions made by any Employee shall be determined in accordance with the Allocation Scheme selected by the Employee.
- 5.14.3 The Pension Fund Manager may assist an Employee in the selection of a suitable Allocation Scheme but the final decision and responsibility as to which Allocation Scheme to choose shall lie with the Employee.
- 5.14.4 The Pension Fund Manager or the Registrar in coordination with the Employer shall ensure a built-in mechanism to facilitate the changes in asset allocation automatically between the Sub-Funds within the limits of the Prescribed Allocation Policy as and when required by the Pension Fund Manager.
- 5.14.5 If any Employee fails to select an Allocation Scheme at the date of opening Individual Pension Account, the Pension Fund Manager shall allocate Contributions of the Employee as per clause 5.12.2 of this Offering Document.
- 5.14.6 The Default Allocation Scheme mentioned in above sub-clause, shall then be deemed to be an Employee's selected Allocation Scheme in the event that the Employee fails to select an Allocation Scheme at the date of opening Employee Individual Pension Account.

Employee Individual Pension account shall not be subject to any lien, pledge or encumbrance, attachment in the execution of a decree, nor shall it be chargeable or assignable; and any agreement to charge or assign an allowance shall be void, and on the bankruptcy of a Employee, no sum shall pass to any trustee or person acting on behalf of Employee creditors

- 5.14.7 . Provided that the individual Pension account can be subject to pledge, lien or encumbrance against the loan or advance given by the Employer to the Employee.
- 5.14.8 Each Employee shall provide an undertaking when establishing their Individual Pension Account or when selecting or deemed to be selecting an Allocation Scheme that they have no objection to the Investment Policy and the Approved Allocation Policy and that they are fully aware of the risks associated with the Allocation Scheme selected by them.
- 5.14.9 The criteria of allocations may be subject to changes and modifications from time to time in accordance with the changes prescribed by the Employer or the Investment Policy and the Prescribed Allocation Policy. All such changes shall be announced through Supplementary Offering Documents.
- 5.14.10 The Employee(s) for the first three years shall only use Money Market Sub Fund for his/her allocation scheme; subsequently this allocation may be changed at Employee instruction as per life cycle allocation scheme or in case no instruction after the first three years then on the basis of Default Allocation Scheme.

# 5.15 The Method of Determining Net Assets value of the Pension Fund

Net Assets of the Pension Fund will comprise of the Net Assets of all the Sub Funds, Individual Pension Account, Approved Income Payment Plan, and any other assets in any other account related to the Pension Fund.

Net Asset Value of the Unit of each Sub-Fund shall be calculated on the basis of the Sub Fund's total Net Asset divided by the number of outstanding Units in that Sub-Fund.

**NET ASSET VALUE OF SUB FUNDS:** Net asset value in relation to a Sub-Fund means the excess of total value of assets over total value of liabilities of the Sub -Funds. The values of assets and liabilities will be computed in the manner specified in the Rules or as may be specified by the Commission from time to time. Such sum shall be rounded off to the nearest four decimal places.

# 5.16 Frequency of Valuations of the Net Assets value and Dealings etc.;

- 5.16.1 The valuation of the Sub-Fund Units will be carried out on each Business Day and any other day determined by the Pension Fund Manager.
- 5.16.2 The valuation shall be conducted as at the close of a Business Day.
- 5.16.3 Contributions from Employees and requests for withdrawals and transfer to other pension fund manager will be received on all Business Days.

## 5.17 Unit Pricing and the Circumstances under which it can Change

- (a) Units of the Sub-Funds will be priced at Net Asset Value per Unit determined at the close of the Business Day as per criteria given in the Rules and amendment therein from time to time.
- (b) Unit pricing may change from time to time subject to change in Rules without any need to register the supplementary Constitutive Documents.

#### 5.18 The Mode of Announcement of Net Asset Value and unit price

The Net Asset Value of Units determined by the Pension Fund Manager shall be made available to the eligible persons at office of the Pension Fund Manager. The Pension Fund

Manager shall make it available on its website and communicate to the Employer for its dissemination on Employer's portal/platform.

## 5.19 Payment of Proceeds on Withdrawals and Transfers

- 5.19.1 Payment of proceeds on withdrawals and transfers shall be determined as per the Rules and the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001.
- 5.19.2 The amount payable on withdrawal shall be paid to the Employee or, in accordance with the constitutive documents, to Employee's, successors, executors, or administrators by crossed cheque, pay order, banker cheque or transfer to their designated banker or Insurance Company or the Pension Annuity Fund, as the case may be, provided that the documents are complete and have been found as satisfactory, not later than the sixth (6th) Business Day from the date of presentation of the duly completed "Early withdrawal Form" at any Authorized Branch.
- 5.19.3 On receiving the Early Withdrawal Form mentioned in above sub clause, complete in all respects, the Pension Fund Manager will withdraw the required Units of the Sub-Funds equal to the requested withdrawal amount at the Net Asset Value prevailing on the close of the Business Day on which the request was received.
- 5.19.4 In the event of notification of death, or retirement (through notice), the Pension Fund Manager shall automatically withdraw all the Units from the Sub-Funds of the respective Employee on the close of the Business Day at which the date of retirement falls or death of an Employee has been notified. The proceeds of Units redeemed will be credited to the Employee's Individual Pension Account. The Employees or their successors, executors, or administrators, as the case may be, shall be entitled to withdraw amounts from the Pension Fund in accordance with the provisions of the Trust Deed, the Rules and any circulars and notices.
- 5.19.5 The transfer of individual pension account from one Pension Fund Manager to another Pension Fund Manager or from one pension fund to another pension fund as per the discretion of the Employee and the notice for the change of the Pension Fund Manager or pension fund, specifying the name of the new Pension Fund Manager or the pension fund shall be sent by the Employee at least seven working days before the effective date of the proposed change.
- 5.19.6 Employees may make transfer requests, by filling the "Change of Pension Fund Manager/Pension Fund Form" and submitting the same with any authorized Distributor or designated offices of the Pension Fund Manager.
- 5.19.7 On receiving a transfer request application mentioned in above clause, complete in all respects, the Pension Fund Manager shall redeem all Units of the Sub-Funds in the Individual Pension Account of the respective Employee and shall transfer the requisite encashed/ with draw amount to the requested pension fund/pension fund manager.
- 5.19.8 For the purposes of purchasing (issuance) and withdrawing (encashment) of Units of the respective Sub Fund, the Pension Fund Manager shall announce the Net Asset Value of each Sub-Fund at the close of each Dealing Day.
- 5.19.9 The Pension Fund Manager and Registrar shall verify the particulars given in the applications for withdrawals and transfers.
- 5.19.10 In the event that any withdrawal request or request to transfer the whole or any part of a Employee's Individual Pension Account is incomplete in any respect, the Pension Fund Manager or the Registrar shall inform the Employee of the discrepancies within one week of the receipt of the request. The payment shall not be made unless all discrepancies have been removed.

- 5.19.11 In the event requests for transfer or withdrawal from the Pension Fund would result in withdrawal of Units on any day in excess of ten per cent (10%) of the issued Units of any Sub-Fund, the transfer or withdrawal requests so in excess may be deferred in accordance with the procedure set out in clause 5.23 of this Offering Document.
- 5.19.12 The receipt of a Employee or, in accordance with the Constitutive Document, of the Employee executors, administrators or successors, or banking documents showing transfer to the Employee or, in accordance with the Constitutive Document, to the Employee executors, administrators or successors, or in accordance with their instructions to any designated banker, Insurance Company or another pension fund, as the case may be, or proof of issue of a cheque and its mail to the Employee's or, in accordance with the Constitutive Document, to the Employee executors', administrators' or successors' address for or of any moneys payable in respect of the Employee's Individual Pension Account shall be a good discharge to the Trustee and the Pension Fund Manager in respect of such moneys.
- 5.19.13 The method for payment of proceeds shall be subject to change due to any changes prescribed by the Commission under the Rules and such changes shall be deemed to become part of the Constitutive Document without the need to execute any Supplementary Offering Document.
- 5.19.14 The Pension Fund Manager may avail financing from any Bank; with the consent of the Trustee for meeting withdrawal requests or transfer of funds to other Pension Fund Managers and such financing shall not exceed limits provided in the Rules.

# 5.20 Withholding Tax

The Trustee on the advice of the Pension Fund Manager shall withhold any tax or tax penalty from payments to the Employees or, in accordance with the Constitutive Document, to their executors, administrators or successors, as the case may be, applicable under the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001and shall deposit the same in the Government treasury under intimation to the Employer.

# 5.21 Dealing, Suspension, and Deferral of Dealing

**5.21.1** Temporary Change in the Method of Dealing 'Or' Suspension of Dealing Under the circumstances mentioned in the Offering Document, the Pension Fund Manager may request the Trustee to consent to a temporary change in the method of dealing in Units of all or any of the Sub-Funds. The Pension Fund Manager may, at any stage with the consent of the Trustee and intimation to the Commission and Employer, suspend the dealing of Units and for such periods it may so decide. Such suspension shall be immediately communicated to the Employees through publication on the website of Pension Fund Manager.

## 5.21.2 Suspension of Fresh Issue of Units

The Pension Fund Manager may, with consent of the Trustee and under intimation to the Commission and Employer, at any time, subject to the Rules, suspend acceptance of all or any class of Contributions and suspend the issue of fresh Units in relation to such Contributions; provided that any such suspension shall not affect making of Contributions by the existing Employee.

#### **5.21.3** Refusal to Accept the Contributions

The Pension Fund Manager may at any time refuse to accept any Contribution in any of the following cases:

(a) In case the contribution is contrary to the Know-Your-Customer (KYC) rules or policy of the Pension Fund Manager or any other Applicable Laws relating to money laundering that the Pension Fund may be subject to or that the Pension Fund Manager may frame

for self-regulation;

- (b) In case the contribution is made by an applicant who has not provided a valid CNIC or NICOP Number;
- (c) If accepting the contribution would in any case be contrary to the interests of the Pension Fund Manager or the Pension Fund or the Employee; or
- (d) If advised by the Employer / Commission to do so.

#### 5.21.4 Suspension of withdrawal of Units/ Withdrawal of Funds

The Pension Fund Manager may with the consent of the Trustee and intimation to the Commission and Employer suspend withdrawal from any of the Sub Funds, subject to the Rules at any time during:

- (a) Extraordinary circumstances including war (declared or otherwise), natural disasters, a major breakdown in law and order, breakdown of the communication system, closure of Stock Exchange on which any of the Securities invested in by the Pension Fund are listed, closure of banking system or strikes or other events that render the Pension Fund Manager unable to function;
- (b) The existence of a state of affairs, which in the opinion of the Pension Fund Manager, constitutes an emergency as a result of which disposal of any Investment would not be reasonably practicable or might seriously prejudice the interests of the Pension Fund or of the Employees;
- (c) Break down in the means of communication normally employed in determining the price of any Investment; or
- (d) When remittance of money cannot be carried out in reasonable time and if the Pension Fund Manager is of the view that it would be detrimental to the remaining Employees to with draw Units at a price so determined in accordance with the Net Asset Value (NAV); and
- (e) Execution of withdrawal of Units on any Dealing Day would result in more than ten percent (10%) of the issued Units of any Sub-Fund being with draw; provided that any suspension or deferral of withdrawal of Units shall not affect any Approved Income Payment Plans.

The Pension Fund Manager may announce, with the consent of the Trustee and intimation to the Commission and the Employer, a suspension or deferral of withdrawal and such a measure shall be taken to protect the interest of the Employees in the event of extraordinary circumstances or in the event withdrawal requests accumulate in excess of ten (10) per cent of the Units of the pertinent Sub-Fund in issue or ten (10) per cent of the pertinent Sub-Fund's NAV. In the event of a large number of withdrawal requests accumulating, the requests may be processed in a Queue System and under extreme circumstances the Pension Fund Manager may decide to wind up the Pension Fund by transferring the assets and records to another Pension Fund Manager with the Prior consent of the Employer and approval of the Commission.

Such suspension or queue system shall end on the day following the first Business Day on which the conditions giving rise to the suspension or queue system shall in the opinion of the Pension Fund Manager have ceased to exist and no other condition under which suspension or queue system is authorized under the Constitutive Documents exists. In case of suspension and invoking of a queue system and end of suspension and queue system the Pension Fund Manager shall immediately notify the Commission, the Employer and the Trustee and also

inform to Employees through its website.

# 5.22 Queue system

If the Pension Fund Manager suspends or defers the withdrawal of Units of any Sub Fund, the Pension Fund Manager shall invoke a queue system whereby withdrawals initiated for the affected Units shall be processed on first come- first-served basis for such of the affected Units as do not exceed ten percent (10%) of the issued Units of the relevant Sub-Fund. Where it is not practical to determine the chronological ranking of any initiated withdrawals in comparison to other withdrawals initiated on the same Business Day, such initiated shall be processed on a proportional basis proportionate to the size of each initiated withdrawal. Withdrawals of Units in excess of 10% of the issued Units of the relevant Sub-Fund shall be treated as initiated on the next Dealing Day; provided that if the carried over withdrawals or the carried over withdrawals together with the fresh withdrawals initiated on such next Dealing Day together exceed ten per cent (10%) of the issued Units of the relevant Sub Fund, such withdrawals units shall be repeated and shall continue till such time the outstanding initiated withdrawals come down to a level below ten percent (10%) of the then issued Units of the relevant Sub Fund.

# 5.23 De-authorization and winding up of the Pension Fund

- 5.23.1 The duration of the Pension Fund shall be perpetual and shall not be wound up by way of liquidation.
- 5.23.2 If the Pension Fund Manager does not wish to maintain the authorization of the Pension Fund, it shall immediately give a three months' notice to the Employer, the trustee and the Employees and after due acknowledgement of the same by the Employer, shall apply to the Commission to de-authorize the Pension Fund Employees, subject to such other conditions as may be prescribed by the Employer in the Agreement or the Rules.
- 5.23.3 In the event the Pension Fund Manager is of the view that the quantum of withdrawal requests that have built up shall result in the Sub-Funds or the Pension Fund being run down to an unmanageable level or it is of the view that the sell-off of assets is likely to result in a significant loss in value for the Employees who are not withdrawing, it may apply to the Commission to de-authorize the Pension Fund and inform the Employer immediately. In such an event, the queue system, if already invoked, shall cease to apply.
- 5.23.4 The Pension Fund may also be de-authorized by the Commission under intimation to the Employer on the grounds provided in the Rules.
- 5.23.5 Upon the Pension Fund being de-authorized, the Pension Fund Manager shall suspend receiving contributions forthwith from any of the Employees from the date of issue of the notice under this clause, proceed to transfer all the records of Individual Pension Accounts and books of accounts of the Pension Fund to another pension fund manager.
- 5.23.6 The Trustee shall ensure that accounts of the Pension Fund till the day of the transfer to the new Pension Fund Manager are audited by the Auditor of the Fund and the audit and Trustee report is submitted within one month from the date of such appointment, to the Employer and Commission, the new pension fund manager and the trustee (in case of any new appointment). The Trustee with the prior approval of the Employer shall decide the cost of such interim audit and the same shall be charged to the Pension Fund with the prior approval of the Commission.
- 5.23.7 Once the Pension Fund has been de-authorized by the Commission, the Pension Fund Manager may, after transferring all the records of Individual Pension Accounts and books of accounts of the Pension Fund to the new pension fund manager, wind up the Pension Fund

under the provisions of the Rules and in the court of jurisdiction.

#### 5.24 Features of Insurance in the Pension Fund

The Pension Fund shall offer Insurance Policy to each Employee (after launch of the Fund) subject to the conditions agreed with the Employer. The premium/ contribution/ charges paid to the Insurance companies to cover the Insurance Policy may be charge to the Pension Fund and shall not exceed 0.25% of the average daily net assets of each sub-fund, as agreed with Employer. Benefits offered under the Insurance plan are as follows:

Death / Permanent Total Disability before attaining retirement age

An amount equal to balance in Individual Pension Account on the date of death / permanent disability subject to minimum of Rs. 500,000 and a maximum of Rs. 2,000,000. Complete details of Insurance benefits will be shared with the Employer and on the website of the Pension Fund Manager.

## 6. FEES, CHARGES AND EXPENSES

Subject to the maximum limit of Total Expense Ratio agreed between the Government of Khyber Pakhtunkhwa (the "Employer") and the "Pension Fund Manager" in the Agreement, the Total Expense Ratio of the Pension Fund shall be computed and disclosed by the Pension Fund Manager in the following manner on its website and on the website of Mutual Funds Association of Pakistan (MUFAP) along with communication to the Employer:

- (a). Total Expense Ratio, excluding Insurance charges and Government taxes and levies;
- (b) Total Expense Ratio, including Insurance charges but excluding Government taxes and levies; and
- (c) Total Expense Ratio, including Insurance charges as well as Government taxes and levies.

#### 6.1. FRONT END FEE

The Pension Fund Manager shall not deduct any sales load or other transaction charges, by whatever name called, in respect of the contributions into, or withdrawals from the Pension Fund.

# 6.2. REMUNERATION OF PENSION FUND MANAGER

The Pension Fund Manager shall be entitled to remuneration for its services out of the Trust Property by way of an annual management fee. The current level of management Fee is disclosed in the Annexure to the Offering document and shall be subject to the maximum limit specified in the Agreement executed among the Pension Fund Manager and the Employer within the allowed expense ratio limit as per regulations.

- 6.2.1 The remuneration due to the Pension Fund Manager shall be accrued on daily basis and paid on monthly basis, within fifteen (15) Business Days after the close of each month.
- 6.2.2 The Pension Fund Manager shall be responsible for the payment of all expenses it incurs from time to time in connection with its responsibilities as Pension Fund Manager. Pension Fund Manager shall not make any charge against the Employees or against the Fund Property or against any individual pension account for its services or for its expenses, except such expenses as are expressly allowed under the agreement between Pension Fund Manager and the Employer and authorized under the provisions of the Rules and the constitutive documents to be payable out of Fund Property. In consideration of the foregoing and save as aforesaid and as provided the Pension Fund Manager shall be responsible for the payment of all expenses incurred by the Pension Fund Manager from time to time in connection with its duties as Pension Fund Manager of the Trust. The Pension Fund Manager shall also bear all expenditures in respect of its secretarial and office space and professional management, including all accounting and administrative services provided in accordance with the provision of the constitutive documents. In the event that a Pension Fund Manager erroneously makes

an incorrect charge, The Pension Fund Manager shall credit the incorrectly charged amount to the respective Sub-Funds, at its own expense.

6.2.3 The remuneration shall begin to accrue from the date of payment in full for all the Seed Capital Units subscribed by the Seed Investors in such manner as to achieve compliance with the undertaking given to the Commission by the Pension Fund Manager pursuant to the Rules (the "Contribution Date"). In respect of the first and the last Accounting Periods, such remuneration shall be prorated on the basis of the actual number of days during such period for which such remuneration has accrued against the total number of days during such period.

#### **6.3.** Remuneration of the Trustee

- 6.3.1 The Trustee shall be entitled to a monthly remuneration out of the Fund Property based on an annual tariff of charges annexed hereto (**Annexure A-2**), which shall be applied to the average daily Net Assets of the Pension Fund during such calendar month.
- 6.3.2 Such remuneration shall be paid to the Trustee in arrears within fifteen Business Days after the end of each calendar month.
- 6.3.3 The Trustee shall bear all expenditures in respect of its secretarial and office space and professional management, in accordance with the provisions of the Constitutive document.
- 6.3.4 The remuneration shall begin to accrue from the date of payment in full of the Seed Capital units subscribed by the Seed Investors. For any period, other than a full calendar month such remuneration will be prorated on the basis of the actual number of days for which such remuneration has accrued for the total number of days in the calendar month concerned.
- 6.3.5 In consideration of the foregoing and save as aforesaid the Trustee shall be responsible for the payment of all expenses incurred by the Trustee from time to time in connection with their duties as Trustee of the Trust. The Trustee shall not make any charge against the Employee(s) or against the Trust Property or against the Distribution Account for their services or for their expenses, except such expenses as are expressly authorized to be paid out of the Trust Property under the provisions of the Rules and the constitutive document.
- 6.3.6 Any change in the remuneration of the Trustee agreed to by the Pension Fund Manager shall require the prior approval of the Commission.

# 6.4. Formation Cost

Formation Costs as agreed with the Employer not exceeding 1.5 % of the Seed Capital of each Sub-Fund, can be charged to the Pension Fund and shall be amortized over a period of five years and shall not include any marketing, sales, promotional or educational, communication or any form of advertisement cost. Formation Costs, including expenditure incurred in connection with the establishment and authorization of the Pension Fund, shall be borne by the Pension Fund, paid to the Pension Fund Manager within the first three months of complete receipt of proceeds against Seed Capital Units subscribed by the Seed Investors and amortized over a period of five years..

# 6.5. Other expenses

Other expenses subject to maximum total expense ratio that shall be chargeable to the Pension Fund in accordance with Clause 6.6 may include:

- (a) brokerage and transaction costs solely related to investment purchases and sales of the Trust Property;
- (b) legal costs incurred in protecting the interests of the Pension Fund or the collective interest

- of the Employees;
- (c) bank charges and financial costs related to financing for withdrawals or transfers in relation to the Pension Fund as permissible under the rules, shall not be higher than the normal prevailing bank charges or normal market rates.
- (d) audit fees in relation to the Pension Fund;
- (e) annual fee payable to the Commission but not any fines, charges, sanctions or penalties asserted by the Commission against the Pension Fund Manager or any of its related companies, in each case in relation to the Pension Fund;
- (f) Taxes, fees, duties if any, applicable to the Pension Fund on its income, turnover, assets and/or its properties including the Sales Tax levied on Services offered by Asset Management Company (for management of Fund), if any, but not any fines, charges, sanctions or penalties asserted by the Commission against the Pension Fund Manager or any of its related companies in relation to the Pension Fund;
- (g) charges and levies of stock exchange, national clearing and settlement company and custody charges, including Central Depositary Company of Pakistan Limited charges, if any;
- (h) Printing costs and related expenses for issuing the quarterly, half-yearly and annual reports;
- (i) All expenses incurred by the Trustee in effecting the registration of all registerable property in the Trustee's name.
- (j) Fund rating fee payable to approved rating agency
- (k) Listing Fee including renewals payable to the Stock Exchange(s) on which Units may be listed
- (l) fees and expenses related to registrar services, accounting, operation and valuation services related to Pension Fund
- (m) custody and Insurances costs relating to the safekeeping of the physical gold in the vault(s) for Commodity Funds
- (n) selling and marketing expenses for the purpose of opening and maintenance of branches; payment of salaries/commission to sales team and distributors; advertising and publicity expense; development of alternate delivery/distribution channels for Pension Fund
- (o) any other expense or charge as may be allowed by the Commission.

## 6.6. Fees, Charges, Costs, etc. To be charged to the Sub-Funds

- 6.6.1 The Pension Fund Manager's management fee and the Trustee's remuneration shall be charged each Sub Fund in proportion to the Net Assets of each Sub-Fund.
- 6.6.2 Formation Cost shall be divided equally among all the Sub-Funds.
- 6.6.3 Brokerage and transaction costs, bank charges and financial costs, custody charges and Taxes, and all direct expenses of Sub Fund, shall be charged to the pertinent Sub-Funds. Legal costs, audit fees and annual fees payable to the Commission and any other common expenses in accordance with the Rules and Regulations, shall be charged to the pertinent Sub-Funds in proportion to their respective Net Assets.

# 7. INVESTMENT POLICY, RESTRICTIONS, RISK DISCLOSURE AND DISCLAIMER

# 7.1. Objective of the ABL-GOKP PENSION FUND

The objective of the Fund is to provide Employees with an individualized, funded (based on defined contribution) as well as flexible pension scheme which is managed by professional investment managers to assist them to plan and provide for their retirement. The design of the scheme empowers the Employees to invest their pensions as per their desired asset allocations.

# 7.2. Investment Policy of the Pension Fund

- 7.2.1 The Pension Fund Manager shall invest assets of the Pension Fund in those securities which are declared eligible by the Commission.
- 7.2.2 The Pension Fund Manager shall make investment of the Pension Fund in a transparent, efficacious, prudent and sound manner. The Pension Fund will initially consist of three Sub Funds.
- 7.2.3 Prior to the Contribution Date the Trustee shall hold the Trust Property in respect of each Sub-Fund in cash in a separate account for each Sub-Fund with a Commercial Bank having at least the minimum rating by a credit rating agency as specified by the Commission or shall invest such cash in short term money market investments, as advised by the Pension Fund Manager. Any income from such investments shall accrue to the Sub Fund to which it pertains. After the Contribution Date all cash shall be invested by the Trustee strictly in compliance with the Investment Policy at the direction of the Pension Fund Manager, in Authorized Investments or in cash
- 7.2.4 All the investments of the Pension Fund shall be strictly in compliance with the Prescribed Investment Policy (subject to relaxations if any, granted by the Commission from time to time). Subject to prior approval of the Commission, the Pension Fund may invest in foreign securities issued, listed or otherwise and traded outside Pakistan on such terms, guidelines and directions as may be prescribed by the Commission and the State Bank of Pakistan from time to time.

# 7.3. Investment Objective and Investment Policy of the ABL-GOKPPF - Equity Sub Fund

- 7.3.1 The Investment Objective of the Equity Sub Fund of the Pension Fund is to earn returns from investments in Pakistani Capital Markets.
- 7.3.2 The Investment limits of the Equity Sub Fund are determined by the Commission. However, in line with the permission granted by the Commission, the Pension Fund Manager shall place the seed capital amount of equity sub fund in a separate bank account instead of compliance with the following requirements for first three years from the date of launch of the Pension Fund. The current Investment policy/limits for equity sub-fund as stated below:
  - (a) Assets of Equity Sub-fund shall be invested in equity securities which are listed on a Stock Exchange or for the listing of which an application has been approved by a Stock Exchange and Equity sub-fund shall be eligible to invest in units of Real Estate Investment Trusts and Exchange Traded Funds provided that entity/sector/group exposure limits as prescribed are complied with;
  - (b) At least ninety percent (90%) of Net Assets of Equity Sub-fund shall remain invested in listed equity securities during the year based on rolling average investment of last ninety (90) days calculated on daily basis;
  - (c) Pension fund manager may make investment maximum up to 5% of net assets of Equity Sub-Fund in units of Private Equity and Venture Capital Funds registered under Private Funds Regulations 2015;
  - (d) Pension fund manager may make investment maximum up to 10% of net asset; of Equity Sub-Fund in public offering and pre-initial public offering of equity securities;
  - (e) Investment in equity securities of any single company shall not exceed ten percent (10%) of Net Assets of Equity Sub-Fund or paid-up capital of that single company, whichever is lower;

- (f) Pension fund manager may invest up to thirty percent (30%) or the index weight, whichever is higher, subject to maximum of thirty-five (35%) of net assets of an Equity Sub-Fund in equity securities of companies belonging to a single sector as classified by Pakistan Stock Exchange;
- (g) Pension Fund Manager may invest any surplus (un-invested) funds in government securities having less than one-year time to maturity or keep as deposits with scheduled commercial banks which are rated not less than "A"; and
- (h) Pension Fund Manager shall ensure that the investment in equity securities of the following, companies shall not exceed 10% of the net assets of the equity sub fund on monthly average basis:
  - a. Company is not traded on regular trading counter of the Pakistan Stock Exchange;
  - b. The minimum free float of the company is less than 15% of total outstanding shares; Provided that this clause shall not be applicable on equity securities which are part of KSE-30 index or KMI-30 index at the time of investment. However, in case an equity security is subsequently excluded from KSE-30 index or KMI-30 index, the Pension Fund Manager shall rebalance the portfolio and ensure compliance within six months of such index recomposition.
  - c. The securities of the company are traded less than 50% of the total trading days during the last six months or from the date of listing as the case may be; and
  - d. Company's paid up capital is fully eroded owing to accumulated losses as per the annual audited account or half yearly limited scoped reviewed accounts, whichever is latest.

The Pension Fund Manager shall not invest the Net Assets of the Equity Sub Fund in any company against which winding-up proceedings have been initiated and/ or a qualified opinion on the going concern assumption has been issued by its statutory Auditor.

For this purpose, the following events shall be considered as winding-up events;

- A show cause notice for winding-up has been issued to the company by the Commission.
- II. Winding-up petition is filed by creditors with a claim equivalent to atleast 10% of the equity of the company as per latest accounts.
- III. Winding-up petition is filed by the shareholders who own atleast 10% of the company's paid-up capital.
- IV. Voluntary winding-up proceedings have commenced through passing of special resolution.

# 7.4. Investment Objective and Investment Policy of the ABL-GOKPPF - Debt Sub Fund

- 7.4.1 The investment objective of the Debt Sub Fund is to earn returns from investments in debt markets of Pakistan, thus incurring a relatively lower risk than equity sub fund.
- 7.4.2 The Investment limits of the Debt Sub Fund are determined by the Commission. However, in line with the permission granted by the Commission, the Pension Fund Manager shall place the seed capital amount of debt sub fund in a separate bank account instead of compliance with the following requirements for first three years from the date of launch of the Pension Fund. The current Investment policy/limits for debt sub-fund as stated below:
  - (a) The Debt Sub-fund shall consist of government securities, cash in bank accounts, , money market placements, deposits, certificate of deposits (COD), certificate of musharakas

(COM), TDRs, commercial papers, TFC/ Sukuk or any other mode of placement, reverse repo, deposits/placements with microfinance bank any other approved debt/money market security issued from time to time;

- (b) Rating of any security in the portfolio shall not be lower than A+;
- (c) Rating of any bank and DFI with which funds are placed should not be lower than A+;
- (d) Rating of any NBFC and Modaraba with which funds are placed shall not be lower than AA;
- (e) At least 25% of the net assets shall be invested in deposit with scheduled Commercial banks (excluding TDRs) or government securities not exceeding 90 days' maturity;
- (f) Exposure to any single entity shall not exceed 10% of net assets of debt sub fund;
- (g) Exposure in debt security of an entity shall not exceed 10% of net assets for debt sub fund or 10% of size of the issue of that debt security, whichever is lower;
- (h) The limits specified in clause (f) and (g) above are applicable to all securities mentioned other than the securities issued by Federal Government;
- (i) Exposure to securities issued by entities of a single sector shall not exceed twenty five percent (25%) of Net Assets of Debt Sub-fund;
- (j) A pension fund manager shall not place funds (including TDR, PLS Saving Deposit, COD, COM, COI and money market placements) of more than 25% of net assets of debt subfund with all microfinance banks, non-bank finance companies and Modarabas;
- (k) The weighted average time to maturity of Debt Sub-fund shall not exceed five (5) years and this condition shall not apply to securities issued by the Federal Government; and
- (1) Rating of microfinance banks with which funds are placed shall not be lower than A+

# 7.5. Investment Objective and Investment Policy of the ABL-GOKPPF - Money Market Sub Fund

- 7.5.1 The Investment Objective of the Money Market Sub-Fund is to earn returns from investments in Money Markets of Pakistan, thus incurring a relatively lower risk than debt sub fund.
- 7.5.2 The Investment limits of the Money Market Sub Fund are determined by the Commission. The current Investment policy/limits for money market sub-fund as stated below:
  - (a) Investment avenues government securities, cash and near cash instruments which include cash in bank accounts (excluding TDRs), treasury bills, money market placements, deposits, certificate of deposits (COD), certificate of musharakas (COM) or any other mode of placement, TDRs, commercial paper, reverse repo;
  - (b) Rating of any security in the portfolio shall not be lower than AA;
  - (c) Rating of any bank and DFI with which funds are placed should not be lower than AA;
  - (d) Rating of any NBFC and Modaraba with which funds are placed shall not be lower than AAA;

- (e) At least 10%, of the net assets shall be invested in deposit with scheduled commercial bank (excluding TDRs) or government securities not exceeding 90 days' maturity;
- (f) Exposure to any single entity shall not exceed 10% of net assets for money market sub fund;
- (g) Exposure in security of entity shall not exceed 10% of net assets for money market sub fund or 10% of size of the issue of that security;
- (h) The limits specified in clause (f) and (g) above are applicable to all securities mentioned other than the securities issued by Federal Government;
- (i) Exposure to securities issued by entities of a single sector shall not exceed twenty five percent (25%) of Net Assets of a money market Sub-fund;
- (j) A pension fund manager shall not place funds (including TDR, PLS Saving Deposit, COD, COM, COI and money market placements) of more than 25% of net assets of money market sub-fund with all Microfinance Banks, non-bank finance companies and Modarabas;
- (k) The weighted average time to maturity of assets of a Money Market Sub-fund shall not exceed ninety (90) days, and
- (1) Time to maturity of any asset in the portfolio of Money Market Sub-fund shall not exceed six (6) months.

# 7.6. Investment Objective and Investment Policy of the ABL-GOKPPF - Equity Index Sub Fund

- a) In line with the permission granted by the Commission, the Pension Fund Manager shall place the seed capital amount of equity index sub fund in a separate bank account instead of compliance with the following requirements for first three years from the date of launch of the Pension Fund.
- b) The Investment Objective of the Equity Index Sub-Fund is to provide investors an opportunity to track closely the performance of the <KSE 100 > Index by investing in companies of the Index in proportion to their weightages.
- c) The Index Sub-fund shall strive to remain fully invested in accordance with the stated index, however, under no circumstances shall it be invested less than 85% of its net assets in securities covered in the index or its subset during the year based on monthly average investment calculated on a daily basis. The un invested amount shall be kept in cash and/or near cash instruments where near cash instruments include cash in bank account (excluding TDRs), and Treasury bills not exceeding 90 days maturity;
- d) Performance Benchmark shall be return of KSE 100 Index. Index Sub-fund may select an index (or a subset thereof) established by a recognized independent third party;
- e) Exposure to securities issued by entities of a single sector shall not exceed weight of sector in the index or its subset; and
- f) Exposure to any security shall not exceed weight of security in the index or its subset.

# 7.7 Investment Restrictions

7.7.1 The Fund Property shall be subject to such exposure limits as are provided in the Rules, subject to relaxations granted by the Commission from time to time.

- 7.7.2 The Fund shall not at any time:
- (a) merge with, acquire or take over management of any other pension fund or pension fund manager unless it has obtained the prior approval of the Commission in writing for such merger, acquisition or takeover;
- (b) pledge any of the securities held or beneficially owned by the Pension Fund except for the benefit of the Pension Fund:
- (c) Purchase from or sell any security to any connected person or Employee except with the approval of its Board of Directors in writing and consent of the Trustee
- (d) participate in a joint account with others in any transaction; except for placement of orders under a single Universal Identification Number (UIN) subject to mechanism approved by the commission
- (e) make any investment with the purpose of having the effect of vesting the management or control in the Pension Fund; or
- (f) employ as a broker, directly or indirectly, any of its directors, officers or Employees or a member of a family of such person which shall include spouse, parents, children, brothers and sisters and enter into transactions with any broker who is a Connected Person where such transactions shall equal or exceed twenty-five per cent or more of the brokerage or commission paid by the Pension Fund in any one Accounting Period;
- (g) Enter into a short sale transaction in any security.
  - 7.7.3 Pension Fund Manager shall be responsible for managing and meeting the liquidity requirements of the Pension Fund.
  - 7.7.4 Pension Fund Manager on behalf of a Pension fund shall not take exposure of more than 20% of net assets in any single group and the term "group" means persons having at least 30% of more shareholding in any other company, as per publicly disclosed information.
  - 7.7.5 Pension Fund Manager shall not invest assets of Pension Fund in securities of a company if equity is less than paid-up capital of the company, irrespective of the limits stated in the Investment Policy.
  - 7.7.6 Pension Fund Manager shall not invest or deposit or place assets of pension fund, if the issuer or the bank or the security does not fulfill the minimum rating specified in the investment policy.
  - 7.7.7 Pension Fund Manager shall adhere to the limits stipulated herein below; however, if the limits are breached merely due to corporate actions including take up of right or bonus issue(s) or due to change in Net Assets resulting; from fluctuation in price of securities or due to withdrawals, the Pension Fund Manager shall regularize the deviation within four months of the breach.
  - 7.7.8 The investment of properties of the Sub-Funds shall be subject to the restrictions/limitations prescribed by the Commission vide its Prescribed Investment Policy from time to time.

## 7.8 Borrowing / Financing Restriction

(a) Subject to the applicable laws for the time being in force and to the terms and conditions herein contained, the Trustee may at any time at the request of the Pension Fund Manager under intimation to the Employer concur with the Pension Fund Manager in making and varying arrangements with Banks for financing by the Trustee for the account of the

Pension Fund; provided that the financing shall not be resorted to, except for meeting the withdrawal requests or transfer of funds to other Pension Fund Managers.

- (b) Borrowing / Financing shall not be resorted to except for meeting withdrawal requests or transfer of funds to other Pension Fund Managers and such financing shall not exceed fifteen percent of the total net assets value of the pension fund at any time, and shall be repayable within a period of ninety days.
- (c) The charges payable to any Bank or Financial Institution against financings on account of the Trust as permissible above shall not be higher than the normal prevailing bank charges or normal market rates for similar service and/or facility.
- (d) The maximum financing for the account of the Trust shall not exceed fifteen per cent of the total Net Asset Value of the Pension Fund and the maximum financing for the account of any Sub-Fund shall not exceed fifteen per cent of the total Net Asset Value of such Sub-Fund or such other limit as may be provided in the Rules. If subsequent to such financing, the Net Assets are reduced as a result of depreciation in the market value of the Fund Property or withdrawal of funds, the Pension Fund Manager or the Trustee shall not be under any obligation to reduce such financing.
- (e) Neither the Trustee, nor the Pension Fund Manager shall be required to issue any guarantee or provide security over their own assets for securing such financing s from Banks and Financial Institutions. The Trustee or the Pension Fund Manager shall not in any manner be liable in their personal capacities for settlement of such financing.
- (f) For the purposes of securing any such financing the Trustee may upon instruction of the Pension Fund Manager mortgage, charge or pledge in any manner all or any part of the Fund Property provided that the aggregate amount secured by such mortgage, charge or pledge shall not exceed the limits provided under the Rules.
- (g) Neither the Trustee nor the Pension Fund Manager shall incur any liability by reason of any loss to the Trust or any loss that a Employee may suffer by reason of any depletion in the Net Asset Value that may result from any financing arrangement made in accordance with the Trust Deed.

# 7.9 Employees Rights in terms of Investment Choice

The Employee, subject to such limitations as prescribed by the Employer and after an initial period of three years starting from the date of opening of Employee's Individual Pension Account (regardless of age) has a right to allocate their Contributions between the Sub Funds in a manner to allow them to adopt a focused investment strategy, according to their risk/return requirements. Each Allocation Scheme being offered shall have a different percentage allocation in Sub-Funds based on which their risk/return may be assessed.

# 7.10 Risk Disclosure

The Pension Fund Manager shall ensure that effective risk control measures are in place for the protection of the Employees.

Employees must realize that all investments in pension Fund and securities are subject to market risks. Our target return cannot be guaranteed and it should be clearly understood that the portfolio of the Fund is subject to market price fluctuations and other risks inherent in all such investments. The risks emanate from various factors that include, but are not limited to:

(1) Equity Risk: Share prices are generally volatile and may go up or down because of their dependence on market sentiments, speculative activity, supply and demand for the shares and liquidity in the market. Mutual funds that purchase shares become part owners in the

companies. The companies' performance, domestic and/or industry outlook with respect to technological and consumer behavior dynamics, market activity and the larger economic scenario influence the price of these shares. Moreover, lack of trading in the investee companies' securities may result in liquidity crisis. When the economy is expanding, the outlook for many companies is positive and the value of these shares may rise, and vice versa. Share prices are also affected by the quality of the management of investee companies.

- (2) Government Regulation Risk Government policies or regulations are more prevalent in some securities and financial instruments than in others. Funds that invest in such securities may be affected due to change in these regulations or policies, which directly or indirectly affect the structure of the security and/or in extreme cases a governmental or court order could restrain payment of capital, principal or income.
- (3) Credit Risk Credit Risk comprises default risk, credit spread risk and down grade risk. Each can have negative impact on the value of the income and money market instruments including Sukuks etc.
  - **Default Risk** The risk that the issuer of the security will not be able to pay the obligation, either on time or at all;
- (4) Country or Political Risk The uncertainty of returns caused by the possibility of a major change in the political or economic environment of the country such as break down of law and order, war, natural disasters, etc. and any governmental actions or legislative changes or court orders restraining payment of principal or income.
- (5) **Price Risk** The price risk is defined as when the value of the Fund, due to its holdings in such securities rises and falls as a result of change in interest rates.
- (6) Liquidity Risk Liquidity risk is the possibility of deterioration in the price of a security in the Fund when it is offered for sale in the secondary market.
- (7) **Settlement Risk** At times, the Fund may encounter settlement risk in purchasing / investing and maturing / selling its investments which may affect the Fund's performance etc.
- (8) Reinvestment Rate Risk In a declining interest/ markup rate economic environment, there is a risk that maturing securities or coupon payments will be reinvested at lower rates, which shall reduce the return of the Fund compared to return earned in the preceding quarters.
- (9) Sovereign Risk Payment of bonds/ notes may be affected by the economic and political events in the country of the relevant issuer. The occurrence of a sovereign risk event could result in the loss of all or a portion of the principal invested, as a result of any economic or political circumstance.
- (10) Events Risk There may be adjustments to the performance of the Fund due to events including but not limited to, natural calamities, market disruptions, mergers, nationalization, insolvency and changes in tax law.
- (11) Withdrawal Risk There may be special circumstances in which the withdrawal of Units may be suspended or the withdrawal payment may not occur within six working days of receiving a request for withdrawal from the Employee.

#### 7.11 Other Risks Involved:

- (a) Mismanagement of the investee company, third party liability whether through class action or otherwise or occurrence of other events such as strikes, fraud etc., in the company in which the investment is made.
- (b) Breakdown of law and order, war, terrorist activity, natural disasters etc.
- (c) Senior rights of some stake holders over other stake holders in the event of winding up.

- 7.6.1 Under exceptional (extraordinary) circumstances, the Pension Fund Manager may suspend withdrawal, invoke a queue system or announce winding-up of the Fund. In such events, the Employee will probably have to wait for payment beyond the normal period and the withdrawal amount so determined may be lower than the price at the time the withdrawal request was lodged. Employees are advised to read the relevant clauses of the Fund's Trust Deed for more detailed information regarding this clause.
- 7.6.2 Risk specific to foreign investments: The Fund may invest outside Pakistan & such investments may be exposed to additional risks including political, economic & exchange rate risks that may reduce the value of the investments. However, evidence shows that diversifying internationally tends to reduce the overall volatility of the portfolio and thus may reduce risks for Employees.
- 7.6.3 Investment in the Pension Fund is suitable for Employees who have the ability to take the risks associated with financial and capital market investments. Capital invested in the financial and capital markets could, in extreme circumstances, lose its entire value. However, diversification of the investment into a number of highly liquid equities, income securities and repurchase transactions tends to reduce the risk substantially. The historical performance of the Funds, the financial and capital market or that of any one security or transaction included in the Fund's portfolio does not indicate the future performance.
- 7.6.4 There may be times when a portion of the investment portfolio of the Scheme is not compliant either with the investment policy or the minimum investment criteria of the assigned 'Category'. This non-compliance may be due to various reasons including, adverse market conditions, liquidity constraints or investment-specific issues. Employees are advised to study the latest Fund Manager Report specially portfolio composition and Financial Statements of the Scheme to determine what percentage of the assets of the Scheme, if any, is not in compliance with the minimum investment criteria of the assigned Category. The latest monthly Fund Manager Report as per the format prescribed by Mutual Funds Association of Pakistan (MUFAP) is available on the website of the Pension Fund Manager (PFM) and can be obtained by calling / writing to the PFM.

#### 7.12 Disclaimer

- (a) The Units of the Sub Funds of the Pension Fund are not bank deposits and are neither issued by, insured by, obligations of, nor otherwise supported by the Commission, the Stock Exchanges, any government agency, the Trustee or any of the sponsors, shareholders or Employees of the Pension Fund Manager or any of the investors of the Seed Capital Units or any other Bank or financial institution or the Employer.
- (b) Investment Risks and Tax Implication: All investments in the Pension Fund are subject to market risks. The value of such investments varies subject to market fluctuations and risks inherent in all such investments. Employees should read this Offering Document carefully to understand the investment policies, risks and tax implication and should consult legal, financial or tax advisors before making any investment decision.
- (c) Withdrawals from the Pension Fund before the retirement age is subject to such conditions as may be prescribed by the Employer and applicable taxes under the provisions of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 and the Rules.
- (d) The target return of the Sub-Funds cannot be guaranteed. It should be clearly understood that the portfolio of the Sub-Funds is subject to market fluctuations and risks inherent in all such investments.
- (e) It should be noted that the value/price of Units of the Sub-Funds can fall as well as rise.

- (f) It should be noted that under certain circumstances the withdrawal from the Pension Fund may be restricted or subject to tax penalties.
- (g) It should be noted that there will be no dividend distribution by the Sub-Funds.

## 8 SAFEGUARD OF MONEY

No contribution should be paid to an intermediary, except to the Pension Fund Manager or its authorized representatives as prescribed. Contributions should be in the form of "Account Payee Only" cheques, payment orders or demand drafts or direct bank transfers or in such other manner as may be agreed between the Employer and the pension fund manager to the account of "CDC Trustee ABL-GOKP PENSION FUND". No contribution should be made in the form of cash or any bearer instrument.

## 9 DISTRIBUTION RESTRICTION POLICY

No distribution of Income or dividend shall be allowed from any of the sub-funds. Any income earned shall be accumulated and retained in the respective sub-funds.

#### 10 TAXATION

## 11.1 Tax Credit for Contributions to the Pension Fund

An eligible person, as defined in the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001, deriving income chargeable to tax under the head "Salary" or the head "Income from Business", will be entitled to a Tax Credit for a Tax Year in respect of any contribution paid in the year by the person to the Pension Fund.

# 11.2 Tax Exemptions

Total income of the Pension Fund approved by the SECP under the VPS Rules, 2005, will be exempt under the Second Schedule of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001.

# 11.3 Withholding Tax

A Pension Fund Manager making payment from individual pension accounts, maintained under an approved pension fund, shall deduct tax from any amount:

- (a) Withdrawn before the age of retirement, provided that tax shall not be withheld in the following cases.
- eligible person suffering from any disability which render him unable to continue with any employment at the age which he may so elect to be treated as retirement age or the age as on the date of such disability if not so elected by him/her; or
- on the share of the nominated survivor of the deceased eligible person.
- (b) Withdrawn, if in excess of fifty per cent of his accumulated balance at or after the retirement age, provided tax shall not be withheld in the following cases.
  - the balance is invested in an approved income payment plan;
  - the balance is paid to an Insurance company for the purchase of an annuity plan;
  - the balance is transferred to another individual pension account of the eligible person; or
  - •the balance is transferred to the survivors approved pension account in case of the death of the eligible person.

The tax is required to be withheld at the last three year's average rate of tax which shall be computed in accordance with the following formula:

A/B

Where,

A= the total tax paid or payable by the person on the person's total taxable income for the three preceding years; and

B= the person's total taxable income for the preceding three years.

#### 11.4 Zakat

Units held by resident Pakistani Employees shall be subject to Zakat at two and a half per cent (2.5%) on lower of the par value of Units and withdrawal price under Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980, (XVII of 1980), except those exempted under the said Ordinance. Zakat will be deducted at source from withdrawal payment, and paid into the Government Treasury.

#### 11.5 Disclaimer

The tax and Zakat information given above is based on the Pension Fund Manager's interpretation of the law which, to the best of the Pension Fund Manager's understanding, is correct but Employees are requested to seek independent advice from their tax advisors so as to determine the taxability arising from their Contributions to the Pension Fund.

#### 11.6 WARNINGS

**INVESTMENT RISKS AND TAX IMPLICATION:** All investments in Pension Fund are subject to market risks. The value of such investments may depreciate as well as appreciate, subject to market fluctuations and risks inherent in all such investments. Employees should read the Offering Document carefully to understand the investment policies, risks and tax implications and should consult their legal, financial or tax advisors before making any investment decisions. Withdrawals from this Employer Pension Fund before the retirement age is subject to tax under the provisions of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 and penalty as may be applicable under KPK Rules.

#### 12 REPORTS AND ACCOUNTS

## 12.1 Fund Accounts

Pension Fund Manager shall prepare Financial Accounts and Reports required under Rules for **ABL-GOKP PENSION FUND** including Sub-Funds as prescribed by the Commission from time to time.

## 12.2 Annual Accounting Period

The Annual Accounting Period shall commence on  $1^{\rm st}$  July and shall end on  $30^{\rm th}$  June of the succeeding calendar year.

Accounting Date shall be the 30<sup>th</sup> day of June in each year and any interim dates at which the financial statements of the Fund are drawn up. Provided, however, that the Pension Fund Manager may, with the consent of the Trustee and after obtaining approval of the Commission and the Commissioner of Income Tax, change such date to any other date.

Accounting Period shall be the period ending on and including an Accounting Date and commencing (in case of the first such period) on the date on which the full amount of Seed Capital is received and in any other case from the end of the preceding Accounting Period.

# 12.3 Periodic Reports to be sent to Employees

The Pension Fund Manager shall share quarterly, half-yearly and annual financial statements in respect of each Pension Fund with the Employer and the Employee. For details, please refer to section pertaining to Obligations of Pension Fund Manager in this offering document and prevailing regulatory framework.

The balance sheet and income and expenditure accounts mentioned shall be prepared separately for each Sub-Fund and in addition thereto consolidated accounts shall be prepared for the entire Fund.

# 12.4 Periodic Reports to be sent to Commission

Annual report and quarterly reports will be prepared and sent to the Commission. For details, please refer to Obligations of Pension Fund Manager.

# 13 SERVICE TO EMPLOYEE(S)

# 13.1 Availability of Forms

All forms mentioned and/or included in this Offering Document will be available at all the Authorized Branches of the Pension Fund Manager and the Investment Facilitators, the Pension Fund Manager's website and may also be requested via post. Sales Agents will also have sufficient stocks of such forms. However, it may be noted that all transaction in the pension fund shall primarily be executed through the digital/online portal as offered by the Employer/Pension Fund Manager.

# 13.2 Register of Employees

13.2.1 The Pension Fund Manager shall perform the Registrar Functions directly or it may appoint a Registrar for such purpose, but in each case the responsibility for performing the Registrar Functions shall be that of the Pension Fund Manager itself. Where the Pension Fund Manager appoints a Registrar for performing the Registrar Functions, the Pension Fund Manager shall ensure that the Registrar complies with all relevant provisions of the constitutive document and the Rules.

#### 13.3 Statement of Accounts

Upon being satisfied that the Contribution to the Fund has been received, in full, from the Employees, the Registrar will send directly to each Employee Account Statement that will constitute evidence of the number of Sub-Fund Units or Individual Pension Account or periodic payment account balances registered in the name of the Employee.

The Registrar will issue an Account Statement, each time there is a transaction in the Individual Pension Account and it will be posted or electronically transmitted to the Employee within six (6) Business Days of each transaction.

#### 14 COMPLAINTS

Any unresolved complaint or dispute between a Employee and the Pension Fund Manager under the VPS Rules, it shall be referred to the Insurance Ombudsman appointed under Section 125 of the Insurance Ordinance, 2000. (XXXIX of 2000). The Insurance Ombudsman shall have all the powers and shall follow the procedures as required under PART XVI of the Insurance Ordinance, 2000.

# 14.1 Procedure for lodging a complaint with the Federal Insurance Ombudsman

The procedure for lodging a complaint with the Insurance Ombudsman shall be as provided in Section 129 of the Insurance Ordinance, 2000 and reproduced below:

(a) A complaint shall be made in writing, addressed to the Insurance Ombudsman. The complaint shall set out the full particulars of the transaction complained of and the name and address of the Employee (complainant).

(b) Prior to making a complaint, the Employee (complainant) shall intimate in writing to the Pension Fund Manager regarding their intention of filing a complaint and if the Pension Fund Manager either fails to respond, or makes a reply which is unsatisfactory to the complainant, within a period of one month, the Employee (complainant) may file a complaint, at any time thereafter, within a further period of three (3) months:

Provided that the Insurance Ombudsman may, if satisfied that there were reasonable grounds for the delay in filing the complaint, condone the delay and entertain the complaint.

(c) The Insurance Ombudsman may adopt any procedure he considers appropriate for investigating a complaint.

Provided that he shall not pass any order against the Pension Fund Manager without first giving it a notice and an opportunity to be heard.

- (d) Subject to Section 128 of Insurance Ordinance, 2000, the Insurance Ombudsman shall not have any power to issue an order in the nature of a stay order or to entertain any complaints if the matter is pending before a Court, Tribunal or other legal forum.
- (e) The Insurance Ombudsman may reject a complaint summarily or he may accept the same or pass any other order he deems fit.

Provided that in each case he shall pass a reasoned order for Employee decision.

(f) The Federal Government may further prescribe rules for the conduct of proceedings in relation to complaints brought before the Insurance Ombudsman.

**Note:** The Pension Fund Manager will not be responsible or liable for maintaining service levels and /or any delay in processing claims arising out of this facility. The Pension Fund Manager, the Trustee and the underlying Fund shall not be held liable for honoring any Insurance claims.

#### 15 Contact Details of Office of Federal Insurance Ombudsman

The Present Insurance Ombudsman and Employee contact details are as follows: Federal Insurance Ombudsman Office 2<sup>nd</sup> Floor, Pakistan Red Crescent Society, Annexe Building, Plot # 197/5, Dr. Doud Pota Road, Karachi.

Phone: 021-99207761-62

#### 16 TRANSACTIONS WITH CONNECTED PERSONS

- (a) No Pension Fund Manager on behalf of the Pension Fund shall take exposure in any form or invest in debt or equity securities of connected persons or purchase from or sell any security to any of the Connected Person with the approval of its Board of Directors in writing and consent of Trustee.
- (b) Neither the Trustee or the Custodian (if Trustee has appointed another person as Custodian) nor the Pension Fund Manager shall sell or purchase any Investment with the Pension Fund save in the capacity of intermediary or in the normal course of business.
- (c) All cash forming part of the Pension Fund assets shall be deposited with the Trustee or the Custodian, which is a Bank, return shall be paid on the deposit by such Trustee or Custodian at a rate that is not lower than the rate offered by the said Bank to depositors of similar duration.

# 17 ARBITRATION IN CASE OF DISPUTES BETWEEN THE PENSION FUND MANAGER AND THE TRUSTEE

In the event of any disputes arising out of Constitutive Documents between the Pension Fund Manager on the one part and the Trustee on the other part, including as to the respective rights and obligations of the Parties hereto, as well as those relating to the interpretation of the terms and conditions of the constitutive document and/or the Supplementary Offering Documents, relating to the Fund, the same shall be referred first to the Commission and thereafter, if the dispute still continues, for arbitration by two arbitrators, one to be appointed by the Pension Fund Manager and the other to be appointed by the Trustee. In the event of lack of consensus between the two arbitrators, the matter shall be referred to an umpire, to be selected by the two arbitrators before commencement of the reference. The unanimous decision of both the arbitrators, or the decision of the umpire, as the case may be, shall be final and binding upon both the Parties. The arbitrators and the umpire shall be selected from amongst, senior partners of renowned firms of chartered accountants, or senior partners of renowned Law Firms, or senior bankers, or senior members of any Stock Exchange (who may even be the heads of corporate members of any Stock Exchange). The venue of the arbitration shall be Karachi. The arbitration shall be conducted in accordance with the Arbitration Act, 1940.

#### 18 DISPUTES BETWEEN THE EMPLOYEES AND THE PENSION FUND MANAGER

If any complaint or dispute arises between the any Employee or any of its any, executors, administrators or successors and Pension Fund Manager under this the constitutive document or the Rules, it shall be referred to an authority as provided in the Rules.

## 19 GENERAL INFORMATION

The Constitutive Documents concerning the **ABL-GOKP PENSION FUND** may be inspected at the registered office of the Pension Fund Manager at, **ABL Asset Management Company Limited**, 14, Main Boulevard, DHA Phase 6, Lahore, Paksitan.

#### 20 STATEMENT OF RESPONSIBILITY

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE PENSION FUND MANAGER ACCEPTS RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE ACCURACY OF THE INFORMATION HEREIN CONTAINED AS OF THE DATE OF PUBLICATION.

## 21. GENERAL

- (a) Any notice required to be served upon a Employee shall be deemed to have been duly given if sent by post or courier service to or electronically submitted or left at Employee address as appearing in the Register. Any notice so served by post shall be deemed to have been served on the day following that on which the letter containing the same is posted, and in proving such service it shall be sufficient to prove that such letter was properly addressed, stamped and posted.
- (b) In case a general notice is required to be served upon all the Employees through newspaper, the Trustee or the Pension Fund Manager shall advertise any such notice in any leading daily newspapers in Pakistan having primary circulation in Khyber Pakhtunkhwa. The cost of issuing and publishing a general notice shall be charged to the Trust.
- (c) Service of a notice or document on any Employer shall be deemed effective service on all the Employees registered through that Employer unless the Employee has given notice to the Pension Fund Manager that he is no longer in the employment of that Employer.
- (d) Any notice or document sent by post or courier service to or left at the registered address of a Employee shall notwithstanding that such Employee be then dead or bankrupt and whether or not the Trustee or the Pension Fund Manager have notice of Employee death or bankruptcy be deemed to have been duly served and such service shall be deemed a

- sufficient service on all persons interested (whether jointly with or as claiming through or under him) in the Units registered in favor of that Employee.
- (e) A copy of this Offering Document, Trust Deed and of any deed supplemental hereto shall be made available for inspection at the respective head offices of the Trustee and the Pension Fund Manager at all times during usual Business Hours and shall be supplied by the Pension Fund Manager to any person on application at a charge disclosed in the Offering Document.

#### 21 DEFINITIONS

Unless the context requires otherwise, in this Offering Document (including in its Recitals) the following words or expressions shall have the meaning respectively assigned to them below:

- "Accounting Date" means 30<sup>th</sup> June in each year; provided, however, that the Pension Fund Manager may, with the consent of the Trustee and after obtaining approval of the Commission, change such date to any other date;
- "Accounting Period" means the period ending on and including an Accounting Date or, if nearer, on and including the day on which the Net Assets of all the Sub-Funds becomes zero and commencing from and including the date of establishment of the Pension Fund or, if nearer, from and including the day after the last Accounting Date.
- "Account Statement" means statement of transactions in Units of each Sub-fund in the Individual Pension Account of the Employee, containing such information as may be prescribed by the Commission from time to time;
- "Agreement" means the agreement signed between the Employer and the Pension Fund Manager dated December 22, 2022.
  - "Allocation Schemes" means the allocation schemes offered by the Pension Fund Manager from time to time in conformity with the Prescribed Allocation Policy issued by the Commission;
  - "Annuity" means a series of payments of set frequency,
- "Applicable Law" means any common or customary law, constitutional law, any statute, regulation, resolution, rule, ordinance, enactment, judgment, order, code, decree, directive, notification, clarification, guideline, policy, requirement or other governmental restriction and any form or decision of or determination by or interpretation of any of the foregoing (whether or not having the force of law) by any Authority, now or hereafter in effect, in each case as amended, re-enacted or replaced to the extent applicable.
- "Approval" means any consent, registration, filing, notarization, certificate, license, approval (including foreign exchange control approval), permit, Authority, confirmation or exemption from or by or with any national, supranational or regional government or administrative, fiscal, judicial or governmental body, commission, agency, authority, central bank or similar entity and all corporate, creditors', shareholders' and directors' approvals or consents required for execution of the Trust Deed and performance of the transactions contemplated herein.
  - "Approved Annuity Plan" has the meaning ascribed to it by Section 2(3A) of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001.
  - "Business Day" means any day on which scheduled banks/stock exchanges are open for business in Pakistan

- "Company" means an asset management company registered as a Pension Fund Manager.
- "Constitutive Document" include the trust deed, offering document, supplemental documents and other principal documents governing the formation of a Pension Fund and all other related material agreements.
- "Combined Pension Annuity Fund" means a pension annuity fund established by more than one Pension Fund Manager.
- "Contribution" means an amount as may be voluntarily determined by an individual payable annually, semiannually, quarterly, or monthly to one or more Pension Fund Managers and held in one or more individual Pension accounts of a Employee, subject to any specified minimum limit.
- "Custodian" means a Bank, a central depository company or any other depository for the time being appointed by the Trustee to hold and protect the Trust Property or any part thereof as custodian or nominee on behalf of the Trustee; provided that the Trustee may also itself provide custodial services for the Fund.
- "Cut-Off Time"/ "Business Hours" means the day time for dealing in Units of the Fund. The Cut-Off Timing/Business Hours will be mentioned on the website of Pension Fund Manager.
- "Dealing Day" means every Business Day on which dealing in the Pension Fund is conducted as disclosed in the Offering Document, provided that the Pension Fund Manager may with the prior written consent of the Trustee and upon giving not less than seven days' notice declare any particular Business Day not to be a Dealing Day;
- "Deed" or "Trust Deed" means the Trust Deed which is the principal document governing the formation management or operation of the Fund.
- "Default Allocation Scheme" means the default asset allocation scheme as determined by the Pension Fund Manager in conformity with the Prescribed Allocation Policy for allocating between the Sub-Funds the Contributions received from Employee(s) who have not themselves selected any Allocation Scheme:
- "Eligible Person" shall be construed to be the same as assigned in the term "*Employees*" provided in rule 2(1)(f) of the KPK Contributory Provident Fund Rules, 2022.
- "Employer" means the Government of Khyber Pakhtunkhwa;
- "Employer Pension Fund" means a pension fund as defined in the Rules.
  - **"Exposure"** includes finance, subscription to or investment in securities, debt instruments, units or certificates or shares of a Notified Entity, placements, and deposits, with financial institutions, certificates, derivatives, margin trading system or any mechanism that replaces it, but does not include:
    - (a) obligations under letters of credit and letters of guarantee to the extent of cash margin held by an NBFC;
    - (b) finance provided to financial institutions through REPO transactions with underlying statutory liquidity requirement eligible securities; and
    - (c) deposits in current and savings accounts other than term deposits.
- "Force Majeure" means any occurrence or circumstance or element which delays or prevents performance of any of the terms and conditions of the constitutive documents of the pension fund or any obligations of the Pension Fund Manager or the Trustee and shall include but not limited to any

circumstance or element that cannot be reasonably controlled, predicted, avoided or overcome by any party hereto and which occurs after the execution of the constitutive documents and makes the performance of the constitutive documents in whole or in part impossible or impracticable or delays the performance, including but not limited to any situation where performance is impossible without unreasonable expenditure. Such circumstances include but are not limited to floods, fires, droughts, typhoons, earthquakes and other acts of God and other unavoidable or unpredictable elements beyond reasonable control, such as war (declared or undeclared), insurrection, civil war, acts of terrorism, accidents, strikes, riots, turmoil, civil commotion, any act or omission of a governmental authority, failure of communication system, hacking of computer system and transmissions by unscrupulous persons, closure of stock exchanges, banks or financial institutions, freezing of economic activities and other macro-economic factors, etc.

"Front-end fee (Sale Charges)" means the Sales charges which may be included in the offering price of the Units; provided however that different levels of Front-end fee (sale charges) may be applied to different investors, as determined by the Pension Fund Manager as per agreement with the Employer. However, aggregate of Front-end fee (sale charges) should not exceed 3% of Net Asset Value.

"Federal Government" means the Federal Government of Islamic Republic of Pakistan.

"Financial Institution" means a Bank, Development Finance Institution, Non-Banking Finance Company, Modaraba or an institution registered under relevant laws to provide financial services within or outside Pakistan.

"Formation Costs" means all preliminary and floatation expenses of the Fund including expenses in connection with authorization of the Fund and its application fee payable to the Commission, execution and registration of the Constitutive Document, issue, legal costs, and all expenses incurred during the period leading up to the authorization.

"Government Securities" includes monetary obligations of the Government or a Provincial Government or a corporation wholly owned or controlled, directly or indirectly, by the Federal Government or a Provincial Government and guaranteed by the Federal Government and any other security as the Federal Government may, by notification in the official Gazette, declare, to the extent determined from time to time, to be a Government Security.

"Income Payment Plan" means a plan constituting an agreement with the Pension Fund Manager after retirement enabling withdrawal of the remaining amount in any Individual Pension Account in monthly installments as allowed under the Applicable laws.

"Investment" means any Authorized Investment forming part of the Trust Property of any Sub-Fund.

"Net Assets" means, in relation to a Voluntary Pension Scheme, means the excess of assets over liabilities of the Pension fund, computed in the manner provided in the regulation.

#### "Offering document" includes, -

a published document containing information on a Voluntary Pension Scheme to invite the public for purchase of certificates or units in that scheme;

a document inviting contributions from eligible persons for a Pension fund; and all supplementary documents thereto or any document relating to an income payment plan;"

"Online" means transactions through electronic data-interchange whether real time transactions or otherwise, which may be through the internet, intranet networks and the like.

"Ordinance" means the Companies Ordinance, 1984 and Companies Act, 2017.

"Par Value" means the face value of Rs. 100 for a Unit of allocation Plan under the Fund.

- "Employee" means an Employee of KPK Government as defined in Khyber Pakhtunkhwa Contributory Provident Fund Rules, 2022 (KPK Rules) or Participant as defined in the Trust Deed," who has contributed or on whose behalf Contributions are made into one or more pension funds and held in one or more identifiable Individual Pension Accounts managed by one or more Pension Fund Managers;
- "Personal Law" means the law of inheritance and succession as applicable to the individual Employee.
- "Pension Annuity Fund" means a pension fund established for providing periodic payment to Employees contingent on their survival.
  - "Provincial Governments" mean the Provincial Governments of all four provinces of Pakistan.
  - "Pension Fund" means this fund offered in the form of Employer Pension Fund made up of Sub-Funds created from the Contributions paid by the Employees and would consist of all the assets for the time being held or deemed to be held by Sub-Funds and includes all income or investment returns thereon but excludes fees, charges and expenses related to the management of the investments of Sub-Funds.
  - "Pension Fund Manager" means an asset management company, any pension fund manager or a life Insurance company duly authorized by the Commission to efficaciously manage the contributions made by or on behalf of Employees in pension fund and meet such other conditions as may be prescribed from time to time by the Commission;
  - "Prescribed Allocation Policy" means the allocation policy as prescribed by the Commission from time to time under the Rules;
  - "Prescribed Investment Policy" means Investment Policy prescribed by the Commission from time to time under the Rules.
  - "Records" include ledgers, day books, cash books and all other manuals or magnetic records used in the business of a Pension Fund Manager.
- "Regulations" means regulations as defined under the Rules.
- "Register" means the register of Employees kept pursuant to the Rules and the Trust Deed.
- "Registrar" means an organization that the Pension Fund Manager appoints for performing the Registrar Functions and, if no such organization is performing such functions, it shall mean the Pension Fund Manager.
- "Registrar Functions" means the functions with regard to:
  - (a) maintaining the Register as per the Rules, the Deed or as may be prescribed by the Commission from time to time;
  - (b) processing requests for opening of Individual Pension Account, issue, withdrawal, transfer and transmission of Units and requests for recording changes in data / information / particulars with regard to the Employees or that of their survivors or nominees;
  - (c) issuing statements of account in respect of Individual Pension Account to Employee;
  - (d) such other functions as may be required under the Rules with respect to record keeping; and
  - (e) such other functions as are required under the Trust Deed to be carried out by the Registrar.

- "Retirement Age" means any age between sixty and seventy years or such age as may be prescribed in the Rules from time to time, which the Employee selects for retirement, in accordance with the provisions of the Rules.
- "Retirement Date" means the date on which the retirement of a Employee from the Pension Fund becomes effective.
- "Rules" means the Voluntary Pension System Rules, 2005, and includes all Guidelines issued, directions given, regulations and interpretations made and conditions imposed (either specifically in relation to the Pension Fund or generally) by the Commission thereunder from time to time.
  - **"SECP" or "Commission"** means Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan established under Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan Act, 1997 and shall include its successor.
- "Seed Capital" means the amount invested or arranged by the Pension Fund Manager as initial investment in each Sub-Fund of the Pension Fund. This investment will be kept for a minimum period of three years from the date of investment or as determined by the Commission
  - "Seed Capital Units" means the amount invested or arranged by the Pension Fund Manager as initial investment in each Sub-Fund of the Pension Fund. This investment will be kept for a minimum period of three years from the date of investment or as determined by the Commission;
- "Seed Investors" of the Pension Fund shall be such initial investors, which may include the Pension Fund Manager, whose subscription shall in aggregate be in compliance of the requirements of Rule 9(3)(b) of the Rules. The Seed Investors shall be issued with Seed Capital Units representing their subscription.
  - "Seed Capital Investors" means the investor of Seed Capital.
  - **"Stock Exchange"** means any Stock Exchange registered under the Securities & Exchange Ordinance, 1969 (XVII 1969).
  - "Sub-Fund" means a collective investment sub-scheme of a specified investment class and/or investment policy set up within the overall Pension Fund. The Trust Property shall be accounted for and segregated with respect to each Sub-Fund;
  - **"Supplementary Offering Document"** means a document issued by the Pension Fund Manager, with consent of the Trustee after approval of the Commission, describing the new features of the Pension Fund to invite offers by the eligible persons to invest in the Fund;
  - "Supplementary Trust Deed" means a deed registered between the Pension Fund Manager and the Trustee, with approval of the Commission, amending or adding to the Trust Deed. Such Supplementary Trust Deed shall be binding on each Employee, as if he/she is party to it and so to be bound by its provisions;
- "Transfer Agent" means a company including a Bank that the Management Company shall appoint for performing the Registrar Functions. The Pension Fund Manager may itself perform the Registrar Function.
- "Insurance Company" includes Insurance Company as defined in Insurance Ordinance 2000.
- "Tax Year" shall have the same meaning as ascribed under the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 (Ordinance No. XLIX of 2001).

**"Trust Deed"** or "Deed" means the Trust Deed of the Fund executed between the Pension Fund Manager and the Trustee along with all the exhibits appended hereto.

"Trust Property" means the aggregate proceeds credited in the Pension Fund including the Contributions received and seed capital received from Seed Investors of each Sub-Fund after deducting therefrom or providing there out any applicable Front-end fee (sale charges) and any other expenses chargeable to the Pension Fund including each Sub-Fund; and includes the Investments and all income, Profit and other benefits arising therefrom and all cash, bank balances and other assets, movable or immovable, and property of every description for the time being held or deemed to be held upon trust by the Trustee for the benefit of the Employees pursuant to the Trust Deed;

"Trustee" means Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited (CDC) or any other company appointed with approval of the Commission from time to time;

"Withdrawal Form" means a standardized form prescribed by the Pension Fund Manager Company to be duly filled by the Employee to redeem Units.

"Unit" means one undivided share in the Sub-Fund to which the share pertains, and where the context so indicates, includes a fraction of a Unit.

"Zakat" has the same meaning as in the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980.

Words and expressions used but not defined herein shall have the meanings assigned to them in the Act and Rules and Regulations, words importing persons include corporations, words importing the masculine gender include the feminine gender, words importing singular include plural and words "written" or "in writing" include printing, engraving lithography, or other means of visible reproduction. The headings and table of contents are for convenience only and shall not affect the construction of the Trust Deed

#### 22 INTERPRETATION

In this Offering Document, unless the context shall otherwise require:

- (a) a reference to any legislation or legislative provision includes any statutory modification or re-enactment of, or legislative provision substituted for, and any subordinate legislation under, that legislative provision;
- (b) the singular includes the plural and vice versa;
- (c) a reference to an individual or person includes a company, firm, trust, Authority or government and vice versa;
- (d) a reference to any gender includes all genders;
- (e) a reference to a Recital, Clause or Annexure is to a Recital, Clause or Annexure of or to this Offering Document;
- (f) a Recital or Annexure forms part of this Offering Document;
- (g) a reference to any agreement or document is to that agreement or document (and, where applicable, any of its provisions) as amended, novated, restated or replaced from time to time;
- (h) a reference to any party to this Offering Document or any other document or arrangement includes that party's executors, administrators, successors, permitted substitutes, permitted transferees and permitted assigns;

- (i) where an expression is defined, another grammatical form or variation of that expression has a corresponding meaning;
- (j) a reference to any "Account" or "account" includes any renewal, redenomination, redesignation or sub-account thereof;
- (k) "include", "includes" and "including" shall be respectively construed as "include without limitation", "includes without limitation" and "including without limitation", and all derivative terms shall be construed accordingly; and
- (l) words "written" or "in writing" include printing, engraving, lithography, or other means of visible reproduction.

#### 23 HEADINGS

In this Offering Document, headings are for convenience of reference only and do not affect interpretation.



# SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION OF PAKISTAN LICENSING & REGISTRATION DIVISION LICENSING DEPARTMENT

Licence No. SECPL/LRD/LD/1/AMC/ABL-AML/2022- 53

Islamabad, December 7, 2022

### LICENCE TO CARRY OUT ASSET MANAGEMENT SERVICES AS NON-BANKING FINANCE COMPANY

The Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan, having considered the application for the renewal of license to carry out **Asset Management Services** submitted by **ABL Asset Management Company Limited** under rule 5 of the Non-Banking Finance Companies (Establishment and Regulation) Rules, 2003 (the "Rules"), and being satisfied that it would be in the public interest so to do, in exercise of powers conferred by sub-rule (9) of rule 5 of the Rules, hereby renews the license of **ABL Asset Management Company Limited** to carry out **Asset Management Services** subject to the conditions stated herein below or as may be prescribed or imposed hereafter:

- (i) ABL Asset Management Company Limited shall comply with Part VIII of the Companies Ordinance, 1984, the Companies Act, 2017, the Securities Act, 2015, the Rules, the Non-Banking Finance Companies and Notified Entities Regulations, 2008 (as amended or replaced) and any directives, circulars, codes, notifications and guidelines issued by the Commission;
- (ii) ABL Asset Management Company Limited shall submit annual, half yearly, quarterly or such other reports as specified in the applicable laws; and
- (iii) This license is valid for a period of three years w.e.f. December 07, 2022, and shall be renewable every three years as specified in the Rules.

(M. Mubbashar Hassan) Head of Department (LD)



# Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan Specialized Companies Division Policy, Regulation and Development Department

Registration No. 08 / SEC/ PW /ABL AMC

Islamabad, the 23 September, 2013

# CERTIFICATE OF REGISTRATION AS PENSION FUND MANAGER

The Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan, having considered the application of ABL Asset Management Company Limited and being satisfied that ABL Asset Management Company Limited is eligible for registration, in exercise of powers conferred by sub-rule (2) of rule 5 of Voluntary Pension System Rules, 2005 ("the VPS Rules"), hereby grants registration to ABL Asset Management Company Limited as Pension Fund Manager subject to the conditions stated herein below or as may be prescribed or imposed hereafter:

- ABL Asset Management Company Limited shall strictly comply with all the relevant provisions of the Companies Ordinance, 1984, the VPS Rules, the guidelines and directives issued from time to time under the VPS Rules and any other law applicable in this regard; and
- 2. ABL Asset Management Company Limited shall not make any offer to any person/public to participate in any of its pension fund(s)/scheme(s) unless the Commission has authorized such pension fund(s)/scheme(s) under the VPS Rules.

The registration shall be suspended or cancelled if the license to carry on asset management services granted to ABL Asset Management Company Limited under the Non-Banking Finance Companies (Establishment and Regulation) Rules, 2003 is suspended or cancelled.

(Imtiaz Haider)
Commissioner SCD

tent beda

# ANNEXURE "A-2"

# REMUNERATION OF TRUSTEE

The trustee remuneration shall consist of reimbursement of actual custodial expenses / charges plus the following tariff:

Net Assets (Rupees)	Tariff
Up to 1 billion	Rs.0.3 million or 0.15% p.a. of Net Assets, whichever is higher.
1 billion to 3 billion	Rs.1.5 million plus 0.10% p.a. of Net Assets, on amount exceeding Rs.1 billion.
3 billion to 6 billion	Rs.3.5 million plus 0.08% p.a. of Net Assets, on amount exceeding Rs.3 billion.
Over 6 billion	Rs.5.9 million plus 0.06% p.a. of Net Assets on amount exceeding Rs.6 billion.



# SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION OF PAKISTAN Specialized Companies Division

SECP

Authorization No. SCD/AMCW/ABLGOKPPF/2023

3

Islamabad, December 28 2023

#### **AUTHORIZATION OF PENSION FUND**

The Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan, having considered the application for authorization of the ABL GOKP Pension Fund (ABLGOKPPF), and being satisfied that the said ABL GOKP Pension Fund (ABLGOKPPF) has provided information as specified under Form III of the Voluntary Pension System Rules, 2005, in exercise of the powers conferred by sub-rule (1) read with sub-rule (4) of Rule 9 of the Voluntary Pension System Rules, 2005, hereby grants authorization to ABL GOKP Pension Fund (ABLGOKPPF) subject to the conditions as may be prescribed or imposed hereafter.

(Mujtaba Ahmad Lodhi) Commissioner (SCD)

# Annexure "B-2"



### Approval of Offering Document

#### SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION OF PAKISTAN

#### SPECIALIZED COMPANIES DIVISION

#### **FUND MANAGEMENT DEPARTMENT**

No. SCD/AMCW/ABLGOKPPF/2023

December 29, 2023

Mr. Naveed Nasim
The Chief Executive Officer,
ABL Asset Management Company Limited,
Plot#14, Sector MB, Phase VI Commercial, D.H.A.,
Lahore.

Subject: Approval of the Offering Document of ABL GoKP Pension Fund

Dear Sir,

Please refer to your email dated December 06, 2023 on the subject noted above.

- 2. In this regard, I am directed to convey approval of the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (the Commission) in respect of the Offering Document of ABL GoKP Pension Fund (the 'Fund') in terms of sub-rule 5 of Rule 9 of the Voluntary Pension System Rules, 2005 (the 'VPS Rules, 2005'), subject to the following conditions:
  - I. Approval of the Offering Document will be valid for a period of One hundred and Twenty (120) days from the date of approval within which the Fund will be offered for subscription provided that there is no change in the approved documents or the approval has not been extended. In case of failure to offer for subscription within the aforesaid timeline, the offering document shall be resubmitted for review and approval.
  - II. Offering Document of the Fund will contain information as set out in Schedule XV of the Non-Banking Finance Companies and Notified Entities Regulations, 2008 (the Regulations). It will be mentioned that the Pension Fund Manager manages the Fund and its name will be prominently displayed on first page of the Offering Document.
  - III. Contents of Offering Document will not be altered/amended/deleted without prior written approval of the Commission except for adding reference of date(s) and No. of letter(s) approving the Document; wherever relevant.
  - IV. In case the amendments are proposed in the fundamental attributes of pension fund and/or amendments with respect to offering of units to the eligible persons shall be subject to 30 days prior notice to the eligible persons and prior approval of the Commission.
  - V. In case amendments are proposed in the Constitutive Documents due to change in regulatory requirements, the same shall be incorporated without prior approval of the Commission and the supplement Constitutive Document for amendments shall be submitted to the Commission for information within one week from the date of amendments.
  - VI. In case of any amendments made in the constitutive documents of pension fund through supplemental constitutive documents approved by the Commission, the Pension Fund Manager

NIC Building, Jinnah Avenue, Blue Area, Islamabad.

PABX: 9207091-4 - Fax. No. 9100473



#### SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION OF PAKISTAN

#### **SPECIALIZED COMPANIES DIVISION**

#### **FUND MANAGEMENT DEPARTMENT**

shall place the updated and consolidated constitutive documents (with notes referring to the supplemental constitutive document highlighting the change made in the original document/clauses), along with the original and supplemental/restated constitutive documents separately on its website. The updated constitutive documents shall be placed immediately or after completion of the duration of the notice period, as the case may be. Furthermore, the updated constitutive documents shall clearly specify the last date of updation i.e. "XYZ fund updated up to DD/MM/YY".

- VII. Approval of the Offering Document will, in no way, absolve the Pension Fund Manager of its obligations about contents of, or statements made in the Document.
- VIII. The Pension Fund Manager will not invest assets of the fund abroad unless it has obtained prior written approval of State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) and the Commission in this regard.
  - IX. All advertisements of a Pension Fund shall be in conformity with the requirements as specified by the Commission.
  - X. The Pension Fund Manager will manage the Fund strictly in accordance with the VPS Rules, 2005, the Regulations and the Khyber Pakhtunkhwa Contributory Provident Fund Rules, 2022.
  - XI. The Pension Fund Manager shall promptly notify the Employer, i.e. the Government of Khyber Pakhtunkhwa, upon obtaining approval for the offering document and will give at least a week to the eligible investors for studying the Offering Document.
- XII. The authorized investments of the sub-funds will be in accordance with the provisions of the VPS Rules, 2005, the Regulations and the Khyber Pakhtunkhwa Contributory Provident Fund Rules, 2022 unless specific exemption/permission has been granted by the Commission.
- XIII. The Pension Fund Manager shall submit a statement duly signed by all directors regarding responsibility for the information contained in the Offering Document as being accurate at the date of publication.
- 3. This office is available for any further clarity as may be required on the subject.

Zarbakhat

Management Executive

Cc: The Chief Executive Officer

Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited, CDC House, 99-B, Block 'B', S.M.C.H.S.,

Main Shahra-e-Faisal, Karachi.

# Registration/Approval of Trust Deed



Reg No: 042/65-ST/TRUST/DLR

Date: 22.11.2023

I hereby certify that

"ABL GOKP PENSION FUND (ABL-GOKPPF)"

"PLOT/BUILDING#14, MAIN BOULEVARD, DHA PHASE-6, DISTRICT LAHORE"

Which is a Trust under Section 15-A has this day been duly registered under Section 16 of the Punjab Trusts Act 2020, given under my hand and seal in the office of Director Land Records, Board of Revenue, Punjab, Farid Court House, Lahore on 22<sup>nd</sup> of November, 2023.

THE THE PARTY OF T

DIRECTOR LAND RECORDS PUNJAB, LAHORE



# SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION OF PAKISTAN SPECIALIZED COMPANIES DIVISION FUND MANAGEMENT DEPARTMENT

No. SCD/AMCW/ABLGOKPPF/2023-173

October 24, 2023

Mr. Alee Khalid Ghaznavi
The Chief Executive Officer,
ABL Asset Management Company Limited,
Plot#14, Sector MB, Phase VI Commercial, D.H.A.,
Lahore.

Subject: Clearance of Draft Trust Deed of Proposed "ABL-GOKP Pension Fund"

Dear Sir,

Please refer to the letter dated October 02, 2023 and subsequent email dated October 05, 2023, wherein draft trust deed of proposed ABL-GOKP Pension Fund (the "Fund") to be executed between ABL Asset Management Limited and Central Depository Company Private Limited (the "Trustee") has been submitted for review and clearance.

- 2. In this regard, I am directed to inform you that this office has no objection to the contents of the draft trust deed of the proposed ABL-GOKP Pension Fund submitted vide your email dated October 05, 2023 for registration under the Punjab Trusts Act, 2020.
- 3. The clearance of the trust deed is, however, without prejudice to the conditions and requirements stipulated in the Certificate of Registration issued in favor of M/s. ABL Asset Management Limited and the requirements stipulated in the Voluntary Pension System Rules, 2005.
- 4. You are advised to submit copy of the duly registered trust deed to the Commission.

Yours truly.

Zarbakhat

Management Executive

Cc: The Chief Executive Officer

Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited, CDC House, 99-B, Block 'B', S.M.C.H.S., Main Shahra-e-Faisal, Karachi. The Director, Punjab Land Record, Lahore.

# **Approval of Trustee**



# SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION OF PAKISTAN SPECIALIZED COMPANIES DIVISION FUND MANAGEMENT DEPARTMENT

No. SCD/AMCW/ABLGOKPPF/2023-174

October 24, 2023

Mr. Alee Khalid Ghaznavi
The Chief Executive Officer,
ABL Asset Management Company Limited,
Plot#14, Sector MB, Phase VI Commercial, D.H.A.,
Lahore.

Subject: Approval of the appointment of "Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited" as Trustee of the proposed ABL-GOKP Pension Fund and Remuneration of the Trustee

Dear Sir,

Please refer to the letter dated October 02, 2023 and subsequent email October 10, 2023 received from your office on the subject noted above.

- 2. In this regard, I am directed to convey the approval of the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (the "Commission") for the appointment of Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited (CDC) as the Trustee of the proposed ABL-GOKP Pension Fund under rule 29 of the Voluntary Pension System Rules, 2005.
- 3. Furthermore, in terms of Rule 34 of the Voluntary Pension System Rules, 2005, the Commission has approved the following remuneration of the Trustee:

Net Assets (Rupees)	Tariff
Up to 1 billion	Rs.0.3 million or 0.15% p.a. of Net Assets, whichever is higher.
1 billion to 3 billion	Rs.1.5 million plus 0.10% p.a. of Net Assets, on amount exceeding Rs.1 billion.
3 billion to 6 billion	Rs.3.5 million plus 0.08% p.a. of Net Assets, on amount exceeding Rs.3 billion.
Over 6 billion	Rs.5.9 million plus 0.06% p.a. of Net Assets on amount exceeding Rs.6 billion.

3. This office is available for any further clarity as may be required on the subject.

Zarbakhat

Management Executive

Cc: The Chief Executive Officer

Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited, CDC House, 99-B, Block 'B', S.M.C.H.S., Main Shahra-e-Faisal, Karachi.

#### **ANNEXURE 'C-1'**

#### **Current Level of Front-end fee (Sale Charge)**

Front-end fee (Sale Charge) (%)		
Nil		

**Note:** There shall be no sales charge payable in the event of the transfer of individual pension account from one Pension Fund Manager to another Pension Fund Manager.

#### **Current Level of Remuneration of Pension Fund Manager**

Pension Fund Manager shall be entitled to an accrued management fee within the limits of Total Expense Ratio as described below:

Sub- Funds	Maximum Total Expense Ratio excluding Insurance charges and Govt levies (as % of Net Assets)	Maximum Insurance Charge (as % of Net Assets)*	Maximum Total Expense Ratio including Insurance charges (as % of Net Assets)
Money Market Sub-	0.75% p.a.	0.25% p.a.	1% p.a.
Fund			
Debt Sub- Fund	0.75% p.a.	0.25% p.a.	1% p.a.
Equity Index Sub-	1.00% p.a.	0.25% p.a.	1.25% p.a.
Fund			
Equity Sub- Fund	1.75% p.a.	0.25% p.a.	2% p.a.

<sup>\*</sup>As per the agreement between Pension Fund Manager and the Employer, the Pension Fund shall offer Insurance Policy to each Participant (after launch of the Fund) subject to the conditions agreed with the Employer.

Management shall disclose actual rate of management fee charged as percentage of net assets of Voluntary Pension Scheme in monthly Fund Manager Report.

### **Business Hours and Current Cut off Time**

Transactions	<b>Business Hours</b>	Cut off Time
Application for issuance of units and Withdrawal of Units		Monday to Friday 9:00 am to 4:30 pm
	Friday 9:00 am to 6:00 pm	

The Cut-Off Time may vary from time to time as may be determined by the Pension Fund Manager, under intimation to the trustee and SECP and the same shall be communicated to the Employee(s) before such unit transactions shall be effectuated.

#### Note:

- a) Any change in the charges structure and/or management fee shall be notified after prior approval of the Commission through a supplemental.
- b) Any change in the Cut-off Timing including for the month of Ramadan shall be notified to Employee(s) via Company's Website.

## **ANNEXURE 'E'**

## **Designated Outlets**

Pension Fund Manager of the Fund is ABL Asset Management Company Limited and other information of the Fund can be collected from the address of the Pension Fund Manager available on <a href="https://www.ablfunds.com">https://www.ablfunds.com</a> or from the branches of the Pension Fund Manager / Investment Facilitators.